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Company 
Profile
Founded in 2020, Zarea has rapidly emerged as Pakistan’s frst listed 
B2B e-commerce trading platform, pioneering the digitization of 
commodity trade across the country. In just five years, we have 
experienced remarkable growth, driven by our unwavering 
commitment to innovation, transparency, and effciency in the B2B 
supply chain. Our mission to modernize and streamline commodity 
trading through technology remains at the core of everything we do 
and our performance reflects that With strong market adoption, a 
growing network of partners, and consistently expanding trade 
volumes, Zarea is proud to be shaping the future of digital commerce 
in Pakistan.
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It gives me immense pride and satisfaction to 
present the Chairman’s Review for the year 
ended 2025. This year has been marked by both 
challenges and transformation, with economic 
turbulence and global financial headwinds 
creating a complex operating environment. 
Despite these external pressures, Zarea has 
demonstrated remarkable resilience, delivering 
robust growth, operational excellence, and 
strategic progress.

The Company achieved exceptional results, 
recording revenue growth from Rs. 441 million in 
FY2024 to Rs. 1,343 million in FY2025—an 
extraordinary increase that highlights the 
strength of our platform, the agility of our 
strategy, and the trust placed in us by our 
stakeholders.

While Pakistan continued to face significant 
macroeconomic challenges, including 
devastating floods and financial constraints, 
encouraging signs—such as improvements in 
the fiscal and current account positions and 
strengthening international relations—signal a 
more favorable environment for sustainable 
growth. These positive developments give us 
cautious optimism for the years ahead.

Chairperson’s Review

Looking beyond the reporting year, Zarea has 
also taken a significant strategic step by 
expanding operations into the United Arab 
Emirates. This move, completed after the close 
of FY2025, establishes a strong regional 
presence and opens access to broader 
international markets. We view this as a 
foundation for long-term scalability and 
deeper global integration, aligned with our 
vision of transforming Pakistan’s commodities 
marketplace.

I would like to extend my heartfelt appreciation 
to our management team, whose discipline, 
resilience, and relentless pursuit of excellence 
enabled us to navigate this challenging year. 
Their focus on productivity, process 
improvement, and innovation has significantly 
strengthened our competitive position.
I also wish to thank our Board of Directors for 
their strategic guidance and steadfast support, 
which have been invaluable in shaping Zarea’s 
long-term direction.

Above all, I express my sincere gratitude to our 
stakeholders, partners, and valued customers 
for their continued trust and confidence in 
Zarea. Your support inspires us to push 
boundaries, drive innovation, and build a 
stronger, more sustainable future together.

Sincerely,
Chairperson

Misbah Momin
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I am delighted to present the CEO’s Report for 
the financial year 2025—a landmark year for 
Zarea, defined by record achievements, 
strategic breakthroughs, and accelerated 
growth that have firmly positioned us on a 
sustained upward trajectory.

One of the most significant milestones was 
Zarea’s successful listing on the Pakistan Stock 
Exchange (PSX), making us the first publicly 
listed e-commerce company in Pakistan’s 
technology sector. This historic achievement 
established Zarea as a trusted, investable, and 
sustainable growth story and provided vital 
capital to scale operations both locally and 
internationally. Proceeds from the IPO are 
strategically being deployed to strengthen 
infrastructure, expand our market footprint, 
and advance digital innovation. The results 
speak for themselves: revenue and earnings 
both doubled year-on-year, reflecting the 
confidence of our investors and the efficiency 
of our operations.

The broader economic landscape also turned 
more supportive in FY2025. GDP growth 
rebounded, inflation eased, and interest rates 
declined, creating a more business-friendly 
environment. Improved political stability 
further boosted investor sentiment, enabling 
companies like Zarea to capitalize on rising 
consumer confidence and growing demand 
for digital solutions. As a platform at the 
forefront of digital commerce and innovation, 
we continue to serve Pakistan’s rising 
tech-savvy population, who demand 
efficiency, transparency, and ethical practices. 

Our application has been purpose-built to meet 
these expectations—offering a seamless, secure, 
and user-centric experience that fosters trust 
and promotes inclusive economic participation.

Beyond our core marketplace, Zarea’s 
investment portfolio also delivered strong 
results. Through prudent, data-driven strategies, 
we achieved diversified income streams that 
outperformed market benchmarks—further 
strengthening our financial position and 
resilience.

Looking ahead, our strategy is anchored in three 
pillars: geographical expansion, capacity 
enhancement, and internal process 
optimization. We will continue to invest in 
governance, digital infrastructure, and human 
capital, ensuring we maintain momentum while 
creating sustained value for shareholders.

As we look toward the future, our journey is 
guided by a bold vision:

“Driven by our mission to transform commerce, 
we are unlocking Pakistan’s $50 billion 
commodities market—fueling SME growth, 
increasing output and throughput, enabling 
easy access to capital, and leading a digital 
transformation that will redefine trade for 
generations to come.”

This vision continues to inspire our strategy and 
execution, ensuring that Zarea not only creates 
value for shareholders but also contributes 
meaningfully to Pakistan’s economic progress.

In closing, I extend my deepest gratitude to our 
employees, Board, shareholders, partners, and 
customers. Your collective commitment and 
trust have been the foundation of our success. 
Together, we will continue to drive innovation, 
deliver growth, and set new benchmarks for 
excellence in Pakistan’s digital economy.

Sincerely,
Chief Executive Officer

Message from the CEO
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Goldfinger Private 
Limited Directors

Zarea Limited

Zarea Agritech Limited

General Public

41.90%34.29% 23.81%

75%25%
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 Organizational
Hierarchy

CHIEF MARKETING OFFICER CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICERCHIEF TECHNOLOGY OFFICER CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER

COMPANY SECRETARY

HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT

HR COMMITTEE AUDIT COMMITTEE

BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

HEAD OF HUMAN RESOURCE

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER



Key
Highlights



Key Highlights

1.3 Billion 
PKR Sales Turnover

08 Billion 
PKR Market 

capitalization

300K
traded volumes 

metric tons 

500K+ 
Truck kilometers 

saved

1000
Registered suppliers 

50+ 
Cities

17K+ 
Transactions

300K
tons of CO2 

emissions saved

10+
years of price data

50%
Net profit margin 
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Credit Rating

Rating as on : 2025

Rating Type
Long Term

Rating
A-(A Minus)

Zarea Limited

Rated by the Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited

A-
Long Term

A2
Short Term

Short Term A2(A Two)
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Vision, Mission

Vision

We aspire to transcend boundaries through innovation and efficiency, revolutionizing 

the industry with cutting-edge technology. By fostering strong partnerships and up-

holding an unwavering commitment to excellence, we seek to empower our stakehold-

ers and contribute to sustainable economic growth. Our vision is to be a catalyst for 

progress, creating lasting value and driving positive change in the communities we 

serve.



Mission

Rooted in innovation, integrity, and inclusivity, our mission is to transform the commodity 

sector by unlocking economic potential and simplifying market engagement. We are 

committed to serving farmers, businesses, and investors, acting as a trusted gateway to 

opportunities that foster sustainable growth and shared prosperity.
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Code of Conduct
Zarea is committed to building a business that operates with integrity, accountability, 
and transparency at its core. Our Code of Conduct reflects the values that guide our daily 
operations, decisions, and stakeholder interactions. All employees, contractors, and 
representatives of Zarea are expected to adhere to these principles and uphold the trust 
placed in us by our partners, customers, and the communities we serve.

1. Ethical Governance and Professional Conduct

Zarea upholds the highest standards of corporate governance, ethical behavior, and 
professional responsibility. Employees are expected to maintain honesty, fairness, and 
respect in all internal and external dealings. Misrepresentation, favoritism, or actions that 
could undermine public trust in the organization are strictly prohibited.

2. Compliance with Applicable Laws and Regulations

All employees must comply with the laws, rules, and regulations applicable to Zarea’s 
operations in Pakistan and internationally. This includes compliance with:

• Trade and procurement regulations
• Digital platform and data governance laws
• Environmental and labor standards

3. Financial Transparency and Accountability

Zarea ensures that all financial and operational transactions are recorded with accuracy, 
completeness, and timeliness in accordance with applicable financial reporting 
standards. Employees are required to maintain transparent records and report any 
discrepancies or irregularities.

4. Insider Information and Market Conduct

Employees must refrain from using confidential or non-public information for personal 
gain or sharing it with others who might misuse it. All forms of insider trading are strictly 
prohibited and may lead to legal action under SECP regulations

5. Secondary Employment and Conflicts of Interest

Employees are expected to dedicate their full professional time and efforts to Zarea 
during working hours. Engaging in secondary employment, side businesses, or board 
memberships without prior written approval is not allowed. Conflicts of interest—real or 
perceived—must be disclosed immediately. These may include:

• Business dealings with family members
• Ownership in companies supplying goods or services to Zarea
• Personal relationships with clients, vendors, or government officials that may 
influence decisions
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6. Protection and Responsible Use of Company Assets

Employees are custodians of Zarea’s assets, which include:
• Technology platforms and infrastructure
• Intellectual property and research data
• Company time, vehicles, and facilities
• Confidential documents and financial records

All assets must be used efficiently and exclusively for legitimate business purposes.

7. Data Privacy and Confidentiality

Zarea is committed to protecting personal and business data in accordance with data 
protection laws and international best practices. Employees must ensure that sensitive 
customer, supplier, and employee information is handled with:

• Confidentiality
• Security
• Restricted access
• Breach of data confidentiality may result in serious disciplinary and legal 
consequences.

8. Anti-Bribery, Corruption, and Sanctions Compliance

Zarea maintains a zero-tolerance policy toward bribery, corruption, and illicit 
transactions. Employees may not:

• Accept or offer bribes or kickbacks
• Engage with individuals or entities listed on sanctions lists
• Facilitate money laundering or terrorism financing
• Violations will be treated as gross misconduct and may lead to termination and 
prosecution.

9. Equal Employment Opportunity

Zarea is an equal opportunity employer committed to fairness and inclusion. 
Employment decisions are based solely on merit, performance, and qualifications. 
Discrimination on the basis of the following is strictly prohibited and subject to 
immediate corrective action:

• Gender
• Age
• Religion
• Ethnicity
• Disability
• Socioeconomic background

10. Harassment-Free Workplace

All Zarea employees are entitled to a workplace that is safe, respectful, and free of 
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harassment. Any behavior—verbal, physical, or online—that creates a hostile or 
intimidating environment will not be tolerated. Clear reporting and grievance redressal 
procedures are in place to handle such matters confidentially and impartially.

11. Whistleblower Protection

Zarea encourages all employees and stakeholders to report unethical, illegal, or 
dangerous behavior through its confidential whistleblower channel. We ensure:

• Full protection from retaliation
• Anonymous reporting options
• Thorough and timely investigations

12. Health, Safety, and Wellbeing

Zarea promotes a culture of health, safety, and employee wellbeing. We strive to:

• Maintain safe physical and digital work environments
• Implement occupational safety standards
• Offer programs that support mental and physical wellness

13. Responsible Use of Technology

As a digital-first company, Zarea expects employees to use all technology, systems, and 
communication tools:

• Responsibly
• Securely
• Productively
• Unauthorized use, cyber threats, or any breach of IT policy will result in strict 
action.

14. Gifts, Entertainment, and Hospitality

Employees must avoid accepting gifts or favors that could influence—or appear to 
influence—business decisions. Permissible exceptions include:

• Promotional items of nominal value
• Event hospitality approved by management
• Any gift received must be reported to the reporting manager or HR.

15. Corporate Social Responsibility and ESG Commitment

Zarea is driven by its mission to create social and environmental impact through its 
business practices. All employees are expected to support the company’s efforts in:

• Environmental stewardship through biomass and Agri-sustainability
• Supporting rural communities
• Promoting ethical sourcing and trade

16. Public Communication and Media Relations



Employees may not speak to the media or share company information publicly without 
prior approval from the Corporate Communications or HR Department. This includes:

• Media interviews
• Blog or social media posts related to Zarea
• Public speaking engagements

17. Personal Use of Company Resources

Personal use of Zarea’s communication devices, internet, or software tools must be 
limited, responsible, and in line with company policy. Excessive use may be investigated 
and curtailed.

18. Breach of Code

Violations of this Code of Conduct may result in:

• Disciplinary action
• Suspension or termination of employment
• Legal action, where applicable

Employees are expected to review this code annually and commit to upholding its 
values in all professional interactions.



Gender Pay Gap statement

Gender Pay Gap Statement under Circular 10 of 2024
As on June 30, 2025  

Following are the gender pay gap ratios:

(i) Mean Gender Pay Gap: 47%

(ii) Median Gender Pay Gap: 33%

The above ratios reflect the overall employee gender pay gap across the organization. 
The Company ensures equitable compensation for female members in their respective 
roles based on experience, qualifications, and performance.

Nouman Ul Hassan
Director
Zarea Limited
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Directors’ Profile

6. Protection and Responsible Use of Company Assets

Employees are custodians of Zarea’s assets, which include:
• Technology platforms and infrastructure
• Intellectual property and research data
• Company time, vehicles, and facilities
• Confidential documents and financial records

All assets must be used efficiently and exclusively for legitimate business purposes.

7. Data Privacy and Confidentiality

Zarea is committed to protecting personal and business data in accordance with data 
protection laws and international best practices. Employees must ensure that sensitive 
customer, supplier, and employee information is handled with:

• Confidentiality
• Security
• Restricted access
• Breach of data confidentiality may result in serious disciplinary and legal 
consequences.

8. Anti-Bribery, Corruption, and Sanctions Compliance

Zarea maintains a zero-tolerance policy toward bribery, corruption, and illicit 
transactions. Employees may not:

• Accept or offer bribes or kickbacks
• Engage with individuals or entities listed on sanctions lists
• Facilitate money laundering or terrorism financing
• Violations will be treated as gross misconduct and may lead to termination and 
prosecution.

9. Equal Employment Opportunity

Zarea is an equal opportunity employer committed to fairness and inclusion. 
Employment decisions are based solely on merit, performance, and qualifications. 
Discrimination on the basis of the following is strictly prohibited and subject to 
immediate corrective action:

• Gender
• Age
• Religion
• Ethnicity
• Disability
• Socioeconomic background

10. Harassment-Free Workplace

All Zarea employees are entitled to a workplace that is safe, respectful, and free of 
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Directors’ Profile

Ms. Misbah Momin
Chairperson

Entrepreneur & Philanthropist
President of the Misbah Momin Foundation and MM Talks, with a strong focus on 
social impact.
Communications & Business Development
Brings valuable experience, fostering growth and engagement in various initiatives.
Notable Contributions
Key member of CARE Foundation for several years, supporting educational devel-
opment.
Advocate for Women's Rights
Former member of Pakistan's National Commission on the Status of Women 
(NCSW), championing women's rights and empowerment.

MINDFUL

Mr. Ali Alam Qamar
 CEO/Director

Educational Background
Holds a BSc in Management from SOAS University of London, a master's in Finance 
from the University of Cambridge, and completed a specialized Sustainable 
Finance course at Harvard University.
Expertise in Procurement
Brings valuable experience, fostering growth and engagement in various initiatives.
Vision for Digital Transformation
Dedicated to transforming Pakistan's procurement sector into a digital, stream-
lined ecosystem

Mr. Sohail Wajahat Siddqui
 Independent Director

Visionary Corporate Leader: 
Former Federal Minister and ex-Managing Director of Siemens 
Pakistan, driving major growth in order intake, share price, and dividends
Expert in Energy Sector
Expert in Energy Sector
Over 30 Years as CEO of Cluster, MD at Siemens Pakistan, and Chairman of 
Pakistan State Oil, with a focus on efficiency and transparency.
Award-Winning Contributions: 
Honored with the Sitara-e-Imtiaz for impactful work in Pakistan's 
Telecommunication and Engineering sectors.
Strategic Energy Innovator: 
Developed an integrated energy roadmap for Pakistan, delivering solutions to 
reduce power shortages and drive sector savines
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Mr. Juneid Akram
 Non-Executive Director

Veteran in Tax and Customs Administration
Over 30 years with Pakistan's Federal Board of Revenue (FBR), specializing in tax 
policy and customs operations.
Key Leadership Roles
Served as Director General, Director of Intelligence, and Collector of Customs, 
leading initiatives to combat tax evasion and boost national revenue.
Innovator in National Projects
Contributed to systems like STARR and PACCS, modernizing tax and customs 
processes across Pakistan.
Strategic Asset Post-Retirement
Brings expertise in risk management and strategic planning, offering the board 
valuable oversight and insights.

Mr. Nouman Ul Hassan
 CMO/Executive Director

Digital Marketing and Software Expertise
Over 10 years of experience in software development and digital marketing, with 
notable roles at IBEX and as a top-rated freelancer on Upwork and Fiverr.
Technical Proficiency
Skilled in SEO, PPC, social media marketing, content marketing, and data analytics, 
crafting impactful digital marketing strategies.
Significant Impact at ZL
Led digital marketing initiatives that generated 5+ million impressions and attract-
ed 250,000+ visitors, enhancing brand visibility and conversion rates.
Innovative and Strategic Leader
Combines technical insight with strategic acumen, positioning ZL for sustained 
success in a competitive digital landscape.

Mr. Muhammad Afzal 
Chaudhry
Independent Director

Extensive Banking Experience
Over 43 years across leading domestic and international banks, with expertise in 
credit risk and special assets management.
Senior Roles in Major Banks
Served as Chief, Special Assets Management (UBL), Deputy GM (Commercial Bank 
of Oman), and Regional Head Credit (First Women Bank).
Diverse Sector Exposure
Specialized in managing issues in commercial, corporate, industrial, and banking 
sectors.
Educational Distinction
Holds a post-graduate degree in Economics from Punjab University and a Diploma 
in Banking with "Role of Honour" from the Institute of Bankers, Pakistan.

Educational Background
Holds a Bachelor of Arts and Sciences from SOAS, University of London.
Fashion Industry Entrepreneur
Known for innovative ideas and a strong sense of style in her ventures.
Prominent Industry Figure
Successfully established as a leader in the fashion world.
Creative Visionary
Combines a strong academic foundation with a passion for creativity in her 
business pursuits

Ms. Meezan Fahd 
Mukhtar
Non-Executive Director



Journey so Far

Incorporated as Private Limited Company

Sep 2020 Jun 2021

Feb 2025

Jan 2024

Jul 2025

Established as a Private Limited Company in 
Pakistan with a bootstrapped equity of PKR 20 
million, setting the foundation for a high-growth 
commodities e-commerce platform.

Media Recognition
Featured in prominent Pakistani media 
outlets such as Profit, Business Recorder, 
GEO, Dawn, and others, establishing brand 
credibility and recognition in the 
marketplace.

Dec 2023
Strategic Licenses & Expansion
Acquired the prestigious Zone Enterprise 
License from the Special Technology Zones 
Authority, securing a 10-year tax exemption 
from date of granting till December 2033.

Geographic Expansion
Extended operations to Khyber 
Pakhtunkhwa (KPK) province and launched 
Zarea internship programs as Corporate 
Social Responsibility to support industry 
education and growth

Profitability Milestone
ZL’s reserves exceeding PKR 350 million 
and platform usage revenue surpassing 
PKR 280 million.

Incorporation In UAE
Base in Dubai Silicon Oasis Freezone, 
Zarea Commerce FZCO will Serve as 
regional headquarters for scaling 
International oprations

Listing on PSX
Pakistan’s first e-commerce 
platform to launch an IPO, marking 
a digital economy milestone.

Annual 
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Dec 2021 Jan 2022
Expanded e-commerce operations 
into the agriculture sector, broadening 
the scope of our e-commerce 
offerings to cater to a vital industry in 
Pakistan.

Growth
Jun 2023
Achieved over 5,000 transactions across 
10+ cities, onboarded 100+ suppliers, and 
garnered 8.23 million impressions, 
reinforcing Zarea’s position as a key 
player in the e-commerce sector.

Supplier Network Expansion Sector Expansion
Successfully onboarded over 
50 suppliers, marking a 
significant milestone in building 
a robust and diverse supply 
chain.

Jun 2022
Technology Innovation
Launched advanced data analytics tools 
to monitor daily prices of 10+ 
commodities across Pakistan, 
empowering customers with real-time 
market insights.

Aug 2025
Export to UAE
Successful execution of its first export 
consignment to UAE as part of its global 
expansion strategy

Annual 
Report 2024-2526



Annual 
Report 2024-2527

This achievement not only underscores the company’s robust business model 
but also highlights the growing recognition of technology-driven procurement 
as a transformative force in Pakistan’s economy.

Zarea achieved a landmark milestone by becoming Pakistan’s 
first listed B2B e-commerce company, cementing its role as a 
pioneer in digital trade. The IPO was oversubscribed 1.9 times, 
raising PKR 1.03 billion and reflecting strong investor confidence 
in Zarea’s growth potential.

KEY EVENTS
Zarea IPO



The government reaffirmed its commitment to e-commerce growth through its 
E-Commerce Policy, tax incentives, broadband expansion, and public private 
partnerships.
This engagement reinforced Zarea’s leadership role in shaping Pakistan’s digital trade 
landscape and highlighted its contribution to building a transparent, efficient, and 
innovation driven e-commerce ecosystem.

Key discussion points included

Regulatory reforms to streamline policies for 
e-commerce businesses.

Digital payments to enhance security and 
consumer trust.

Logistics and infrastructure improvements for 
efficient delivery networks.

SME empowerment through greater adoption of 
online trade.

Attracting foreign investment into Pakistan’s 
digital economy.
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KEY EVENTS

Meeting with the Prime Minister on 
E-Commerce Policy
Zarea’s CEO met with the Honorable Prime Minister of Pakistan Shahbaz Sharif to discuss 
the future of digital commerce and the role of B2B platforms in driving economic growth.



Key Events

Key focus areas included:

• Policy Reforms to support digital trans
formation and ease of doing business.

•  Infrastructure Development in indus
trial zones and logistics.

• Youth Entrepreneurship Initiatives 
through training, finance, and mentor
ship.

• Public Private Collaboration to drive 
sustainable growth.

Zarea showcased its role in digitizing 
procurement of industrial and con
struction materials, supporting SMEs, 
and aligning with Punjab’s vision of a 
transparent and efficient industrial 
economy.

This engagement highlights Zarea’s 
growing leadership voice in shaping 
policy and fostering innovation for 
Pakistan’s industrial future.

CEO’s Meeting with 
the Chief Minister Punjab

Zarea’s CEO, Ali Alam Qamar, led a 
delegation from the Entrepreneurs’ 
Organization (EO) in a meeting with 
the Honourable Chief Minister of 
Punjab, Maryam Nawaz Sharif. The 
delegation discussed pressing 
industrial challenges and proposed 
solutions to strengthen Punjab’s 
economic and industrial landscape.

Annual 
Report 2024-2529



Annual 
Report 2024-2530

As part of its commitment to 
fostering community engage-
ment and supporting national 
institutions, Zarea was honored 
to sponsor the 14th Joint Chiefs 
of Staff Committee Open Golf 
Championship. This prestigious 
event brought together mem-
bers of the armed forces, veter-
ans, and distinguished guests 
in a celebration of camarade-
rie, sportsmanship, and nation-
al pride.

Zarea strongly believes in the 
importance of promoting 
healthy, outdoor lifestyles as a 
way to balance the demands 
of modern life. By supporting 
events that encourage physical 
well-being and mental rejuve-
nation, the company aims to 
contribute positively to the 
well-being of individuals and 
communities alike.

Zarea is especially proud to 
support initiatives that honor 
the courage and dedication of 
Pakistan’s armed forces. Host-
ing and participating in such 
events reflects our deep 
respect for those who serve the 
nation and aligns with our 
broader mission of building 
meaningful, long-lasting rela-
tionships across all 
segments of society.

Golf Event Sposorship
KEY EVENTSKEY EVENTS



Key Events 
Pakistan Agriculture Show
Zarea proudly participated in the Pakistan Agricultural Show held at the Expo Center in 
Lahore, where it showcased its growing portfolio of traded agricultural commodities and 
sustainable biomass products. Featured offerings included premium-quality corn, corn 
cob, and rice husk—reflecting Zarea’s commitment to delivering reliable, eco-friendly 
solutions for both agricultural and industrial markets.

The event attracted a diverse audience of industry professionals, end consumers, and 
supply chain stakeholders, many of whom showed significant interest in Zarea’s product 
catalogue and digital platform. Our expert team was on hand to provide personalized 
demonstrations and engage in meaningful conversations about how Zarea simplifies 
sourcing, ensures product quality, and fosters long-term business partnerships.

By participating in the Pakistan Agricultural Show, Zarea reinforced its position as a trust-
ed supplier in the agricultural sector and highlighted the strategic value of its digital 
platform in driving transparency, efficiency, and scale in commodity trading.

This marks one of many exhibitions and industry events Zarea will attend, both in Paki-
stan and on the international stage, as we continue to expand our footprint and connect 
with forward-thinking partners across the agri-value chain.
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Alliances and Membership
We actively build alliances and maintain memberships with respected institutions such 
as Dun & Bradstreet and the Lahore Chamber of Commerce. These collaborations 
strengthen our credibility, broaden our reach, and align us with global standards. 
Through such partnerships, Zarea continues to expand its influence and foster innova-
tion in procurement.
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Zarea's geographical footprint spans key strategic locations that enhance its opera-
tional efficiency and market reach. The company's head office is located in Lahore, 
complemented by a support office in Haripur, Khyber Pakhtunkhwa, ensuring strong 
regional management across Pakistan. Zarea operates nine agricultural commodity 
and biomass collection centers distributed throughout Punjab, situated near major 
farming belts to facilitate timely collection and efficient distribution across the country.

Pir Mahal
Collection Center

Luddan
Collection Center

Sangla Hill
Collection Center

Zarea Head Office Lahore

Jahan Khan
Collection Center

Mitru
Collection Center

Melsi
Collection Center

Qaim Pur
Collection Center

Kasur
Collection Center

Layyah
Collection Center

Dunya Pur
Collection Center

Sub Office Hari Pur

Zarea’s Geographic Footprint



Expanding its international presence, Zarea recently established its UAE Free Zone Com-
pany (FZCO) in Dubai, serving as a vital hub for receiving export shipments from Paki-
stan. This facility enables seamless distribution throughout the Middle East market and 
onward forwarding to global destinations, strengthening Zarea’s position in 
international trade.

Dubai UAE 
Regional Office



Business Model
Revenue from Platform Marketplace

Platform (Marketplace) 
Model

Connects buyers and 
sellers on a digital platform 
without holding inventory.
Orders are processed and 
delivered directly by 
suppliers.

Supplier Onboarding

Outbound: On-ground 
visits, trade hubs, and 
industry associations.
Inbound: Digital cam-
paigns, events, and refer-
rals.

Supplier Network

Includes industry wholesal-
ers, distributors, local 
traders, and sales agen-
cies, ensuring consistent 
quality and a reliable 
supply chain.

Revenue Model

Earns platform usage fees 
as a percentage of trans-
action value.
Fees collected upon 
delivery and recognized in 
financials.

Payment Facilitation

Manages buyer-seller 
payment settlements.
Offers e-banking and other 
payment methods.

Customer
Registration

Browse
Marketplace

Product
Selection

Add to
Cart

Payment 
Reconciliation

Order
Delivery

Logistics 
arrangement by 

Zarea supply 
chain team

Order confirmation/know 
your customer (KYC) 

check by Zarea 
CSR team

Checkout
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Revenue from Sale of Agricultural Commodities
Zarea Limited operates as an e-commerce marketplace specializing in connecting 
buyers and sellers of various commodities. Its business model centers around two func-
tions: the Platform (Marketplace) Model and the Sale of Agri Commodities to support 
seasonal demand in agricultural commodities. Here’s a breakdown of Zarea’s business 
structure and operations.

Key Operational Features

Sale Mechanism

Logistics

Uses an open-market approach, sourcing quotes for cost-
effective and reliable transportation.

Ensures efficient delivery to buyers based on volume and 
location.

Warehousing

Zarea operates nine warehouses and collection centers 
across Punjab for procurement, storage and sale of agricul-
ture grains and biomass commodities.

Data Analytics

Provides insights into market trends, pricing, and supply-de-
mand changes.
Enhances profitability and operational efficiency through 
better pricing and inventory management.

Focuses on seasonal agricultural biomass commodities

Provides short-term advances to suppliers to secure supply 
during peak demand.

Advances are converted into sales when customer orders are 
placed.

Sales are recorded in Revenue and purchases in Cost of Sales 



Strategic 
Objectives





Strategic Objectives 

Strategic Objective Strategies in place or to be implemented Time frame

Increasing shareholder 
wealth sustainably.

Zarea Limited’s foremost strategic priority is the 
sustainable creation of shareholder value. The 
Company is committed to maximizing 
long-term wealth for its shareholders through 
a disciplined approach to evaluating its strate-
gic direction, optimizing its product and service 
offerings, exploring high-potential markets, 
and making prudent investment decisions.
A critical component of this strategy is ensuring 
that value is returned to shareholders in the 
most tax-efficient manner possible. This 
involves balancing reinvestment for growth 
with shareholder distributions that reflect the 
Company's financial strength and long-term 
outlook.
In line with this commitment, Zarea paid a divi-
dend in its first year as a publicly listed enti-
ty—an early and tangible demonstration of 
management’s focus on delivering value.

Long term

Expanding market 
share of traded 
commodities.

Zarea Limited is actively focused on expanding 
its market share within the traded commodities 
segment by broadening the range of products 
available on its platform. In the short term, the 
Company is prioritizing the onboarding of a 
larger and more diverse base of suppli-
ers—particularly within the agricultural sec-
tor—by engaging directly with farmers and 
producers. This initiative aims to enhance 
product variety, improve supply consistency, 
and ensure greater price competitiveness.
Concurrently, Zarea is leveraging its extensive 
and growing customer network to penetrate 
adjacent industries and expand the reach of its 
existing product portfolio. Targeted sales 
efforts and strategic outreach initiatives are 
being undertaken to identify new buyers across 
related sectors, thereby increasing overall 
transaction volumes and market penetration.
These efforts are designed to deliver immedi-
ate impact by increasing liquidity on the plat-
form, improving buyer satisfaction, and posi-
tioning Zarea as a comprehensive and reliable 
source for a wide range of commodities.

As part of its long-term vision to become a 
leading multinational e-commerce and 
agri-trading platform, Zarea Limited has suc-
cessfully established operations in the United

Short term

Expanding 
international reach.

Long term

Annual 
Report 2024-2541



Strategic Objective Strategies in place or to be implemented Time frame

Arab Emirates (UAE). The Company has initiat-
ed cross-border sales, particularly targeting 
poultry and livestock feed mills, marking a 
significant step in its international growth 
trajectory.
This strategic expansion into the UAE serves as 
a foundation for broader market penetration 
across the Middle Eastern region. Zarea aims to 
leverage this presence to build strong supplier 
and customer relationships, enhance supply 
chain integration, and gain deeper insights into 
regional demand dynamics.
Looking ahead, Zarea intends to systematically 
grow its international footprint, exploring 
opportunities in both nearby and distant mar-
kets. This will involve assessing trade corridors, 
regulatory environments, and sector-specific 
demand to identify high-potential regions 
where its digital trading platform and 
value-added services can deliver measurable 
impact.

Improving logistics and 
supply chain 
infrastructure.

Given Zarea Limited’s active involvement in the 
long-distance transportation of goods across 
Pakistan, the development of a robust, efficient, 
and reliable logistics and supply chain network 
is a strategic imperative. To support its growing 
trade volumes and ensure timely delivery 
across its expanding customer and supplier 
base, the Company is making targeted invest-
ments in key logistical assets.
As part of this initiative, Zarea is expanding its 
network of commodity collection centers and 
upgrading its in-house trucking fleet. These 
enhancements are designed to streamline the 
movement of goods across the country, reduce 
delivery lead times, and strengthen connectivi-
ty between suppliers and end consumers.
By building a more integrated and scalable 
logistics infrastructure, Zarea aims to improve 
service reliability, reduce transportation costs, 
and further reinforce its position as a trusted, 
end-to-end commodity trading platform.

Medium term

Upgrading technology 
platform and AI/ML 
capabilities.

Zarea Limited is focused on continuously 
enhancing its digital platform to deliver a 
seamless, intelligent, and personalized user 
experience. As part of this initiative, the Com-
pany is actively refining its website’s features, 
design, and functionality to better serve its 
growing client base. A new, user-friendly, and 
visually appealing version of the platform is 
currently under development, aimed at 
improving navigation, engagement, and over

Medium term
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Strategic Objective Strategies in place or to be implemented Time frame

all customer satisfaction.
In parallel, Zarea’s technology team is deploy-
ing AI-powered agents to assist users in real 
time—offering tailored advice and product rec-
ommendations based on individual business 
needs and purchasing behaviors. These 
enhancements are designed to make the 
buying process more intuitive, efficient, and 
data-driven.
Additionally, the Company is building in-house 
machine learning (ML) capabilities to forecast 
commodity price trends. These predictive 
models will enable Zarea to provide clients with 
strategic procurement insights, helping them 
make more informed buying decisions and 
manage cost volatility effectively.
Together, these advancements reinforce 
Zarea’s commitment to innovation, custom-
er-centricity, and digital leadership within the 
agri-trading and B2B e-commerce sectors.

Operational efficiency 
and cost management

Zarea Limited is committed to maintaining a 
lean and efficient operational model to support 
sustainable growth. In the short term, the Com-
pany is actively monitoring and reviewing its 
cost structure to identify areas for optimization 
and ensure the prudent use of resources.
Robust internal controls have been implement-
ed across functions to minimize wastage, pre-
vent cost leakages, and promote financial 
discipline. In parallel, departmental budgets 
are allocated based on strategic priorities, with 
clear accountability and performance bench-
marks in place.
To further encourage cost-effective operations, 
Zarea has introduced performance-based 
incentives that reward departments and 
teams for achieving measurable savings with-
out compromising on service quality or busi-
ness output. These initiatives are designed to 
improve overall operational agility, maintain 
profitability, and support reinvestment into 
growth-driving areas of the business.

Short term

Organizational talent 
development 

Zarea Limited recognizes that its people are 
fundamental to the Company’s long-term 
success and technological leadership. As part 
of its medium-term strategy, Zarea is commit-
ted to investing in the growth and develop 
ment of its workforce through targeted train-
ing and capacity-building initiatives. Struc-
tured training programs are being rolled out 
across departments to enhance technical and 
functional skillsets, ensuring employees are 

Medium term
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Strategic Objective Strategies in place or to be implemented Time frame

well-equipped to meet the evolving demands 
of the business. To further support employee 
development and engagement, the Company 
has implemented a comprehensive Human 
Resource Management (HRM) system. This 
system not only streamlines HR processes but 
also aligns with Zarea’s broader identity as a 
forward-thinking, tech-enabled organization.
In addition, Zarea promotes internal mobility 
and skill diversification through job rotation 
initiatives, encouraging employees to broaden 
their expertise and contribute more holistically 
to organizational goals. These efforts aim to 
foster a high-performance culture, enhance 
employee retention, and build a strong lead-
ership pipeline for the future.

Sustainability and ESG 
Initiatives.

Zarea Limited is deeply committed to integrat-
ing sustainability and responsible business 
practices into its long-term growth strategy. 
The Company aligns its environmental, social, 
and governance (ESG) initiatives with the 
United Nations Sustainable Development Goals 
(UN SDGs), using them as a global benchmark 
for defining and measuring impact.
A key element of Zarea’s sustainability 
approach is its strategic entry into the 
agri-biomass sector. This move aims to reduce 
environmentally harmful practices such as 
crop burning, while promoting the efficient use 
of agricultural waste—thereby supporting 
cleaner energy solutions and improved 
resource utilization.
On the social front, Zarea remains dedicated to 
uplifting underprivileged communities through 
ongoing charitable programs and support 
initiatives. In addition, the Company actively 
seeks ways to create sustainable employment 
opportunities in rural areas, recognizing the 
critical role that inclusive economic participa-
tion plays in long-term national development.
By embedding ESG principles into its core oper-
ations, Zarea strives to create lasting value for 
all stakeholders—ensuring that profitability 
goes hand in hand with environmental stew-
ardship and social responsibility.

Long term
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Product Profile

Cement Agri Biomass

Steel

Coal

Building &
Finishing

Fertilizers



Cotton & Yarn
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Sugar

Cotton & Yarn

Grain & Pulses

Chemical

Agri Perishable
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Transforming Agriculture 
Through Agricultural Biomass
Creating a Circular Economy 
from Agricultural Waste
Pakistan is blessed with fertile lands and a strong agrarian heritage. The country produc-
es over 100 million metric tons of agricultural crops annually—including wheat, rice, sug-
arcane, maize, and cotton—making agriculture a cornerstone of its economy and food 
security.

However, this agricultural abundance also generates a parallel volume of waste—tens of 
millions of tons of crop residues, stalks, husks, and organic by-products that often go 
unused or are burned for disposal. This practice not only results in environmental degra-
dation—contributing to smog, soil depletion, and greenhouse gas emissions—but also 
represents a massive loss of untapped economic potential.

Biomass as a Resource Not Waste

Zarea works directly with farming communities across Pakistan to identify, collect, and 
manage agricultural waste in a responsible and sustainable manner. Our agricultural 
research team evaluates the collected biomass to determine its optimal reuse poten-
tial. Depending on quality and composition, biomass is processed into:

• Organic fertilizer compost, helping restore soil fertility and reduce dependency on 
chemical inputs

• Animal feed for poultry and livestock, supporting food security and reducing feed 
import reliance

• Raw material for industrial inputs, such as paper production, textiles, and bio-based 
packaging

• Feedstock for renewable energy, including biogas, pellets, and biofuel production

Built on Infrastructure, Science, and Community Engagement

This transformation is made possible by Zarea’s integrated value chain, which includes:

Turning Agricultural Waste into Agricultural Wealth
As an ESG-conscious and innovation-driven company, Zarea Limited is committed to 
transforming Pakistan’s agriculture sector by turning biomass waste into valuable 
resources. Our mission is to establish a circular agricultural economy where organic 
by-products are no longer discarded or burned, but rather collected, processed, and 
repurposed into usable, income-generating inputs. sions but also represents a massive 
loss of untapped economic potential.
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• A dedicated research and agronomy team that analyzes biomass for best-use appli-
cations

• A robust logistics and warehousing network, ensuring timely collection and delivery 
across rural and urban markets

• Strong relationships with farming communities, built on trust, fair compensation, and 
shared environmental goals

• Partnerships with industrial buyers and export markets, opening new revenue streams 
for rural producers

By monetizing what was previously discarded, Zarea is helping farmers generate supple-
mental income, reduce environmental harm, and enhance agricultural productivity.

Leading by Example in Agricultural Sustainability

Zarea’s efforts represent a paradigm shift in agricultural resource management not just 
a business opportunity, but a model of responsible, sustainable growth. We aim to inspire 
similar initiatives across the sector, encouraging agribusinesses, cooperatives, and poli-
cymakers to view biomass not as a liability, but as an asset to be harnessed.

Protecting Pakistan’s Agrarian Future

With increasing urbanization and climate stress, Pakistan's traditional farming practices 
face existential threats. Zarea firmly believes that agriculture must remain at the heart of 
the national economy—not only to ensure food security, but to safeguard livelihoods, 
protect ecosystems, and drive inclusive growth.

By harnessing the full potential of agricultural biomass, we envision a future where every 
harvest creates value far beyond the grain—a future where agriculture sustains, empow-
ers, and enriches generations to come.

Rice Straw

Sesame Straw Mustard Kuttal Rice Polish (Nakku) Soybean Meal

Rhodes Grass Rice Husk Corn Cob (White) Corn Cob (Red) Corn Silage Wheat Straw

Bagasse Alfa Alfa Cotton Stalk
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Biomass as a Resource Not Waste

Zarea works directly with farming communities across Pakistan to identify, collect, and 
manage agricultural waste in a responsible and sustainable manner. Our agricultural 
research team evaluates the collected biomass to determine its optimal reuse poten-
tial. Depending on quality and composition, biomass is processed into:

• Organic fertilizer compost, helping restore soil fertility and reduce dependency on 
chemical inputs

• Animal feed for poultry and livestock, supporting food security and reducing feed 
import reliance

• Raw material for industrial inputs, such as paper production, textiles, and bio-based 
packaging

• Feedstock for renewable energy, including biogas, pellets, and biofuel production

Built on Infrastructure, Science, and Community Engagement

This transformation is made possible by Zarea’s integrated value chain, which includes:
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Businesses We Serve
We proudly serve a diverse range of industries, including feed mills, corn mills, textile 
mills, builders, contractors, and retail shops. Zarea enables these businesses to access 
raw materials efficiently, reduce procurement costs, and streamline operations. Our dig-
ital platform empowers enterprises of all sizes to source with confidence and focus on 
growth.

Our Customers
Zarea partners with some of Pakistan’s leading companies such as Interloop, Sapphire 
Textiles, Packages Group, and Rafhan Maize Products. These valued relationships reflect 
the trust major corporations place in our ability to deliver consistent quality and service. 
By catering to their procurement needs, we contribute to driving industrial growth and 
competitiveness.

Retail Shop

Retail Shops

Cement
Plants

Textile Mills

Builders &
Contractors

Paper
Manufacturers

Chemical
Industries

Corn Mills  Food
 Industry

Power Plants

Flour Mills

Dairy Farms Rice Mills Corporate
Farms

Cattle Farms

Feed Mills



Zarea Workplace
At Zarea, employees are regarded as the true backbone of the organization, driving its 
growth, innovation, and success. To honor their contribution and foster a sense of unity, 
an Iftar gathering was organized during the holy month of Ramadan. This occasion pro-
vided a meaningful opportunity for staff members to come together outside of work, 
share a meal, and strengthen the bonds of teamwork and mutual respect.
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In addition, Zarea celebrated Pakistan’s Independence Day on 14th August at its premis-
es with full enthusiasm and national spirit. This celebration not only reinforced the Com-
pany’s commitment to national pride but also allowed employees to connect with one 
another in a festive and uplifting environment. Such activities highlight Zarea’s belief 
that a cohesive, motivated workforce is essential to achieving long-term organizational 
goals.
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SWOT Analysis

Strengths
• Tech-driven goods trading platform with low overheads.

• First-mover advantage as a B2B e-commerce marketplace for commodities.

• Strong and loyal customer base, including Rafhan Maize.

• Robust supplier network ensuring reliable availability.

• User-friendly mobile app enhancing customer engagement.

• Tax-free zone location providing fiscal and competitive advantages.

Weaknesses
• Collection centers limited to Punjab, restricting national footprint.

• Exposure to construction sector policies and agriculture sector regulations.

• Vulnerable to climate risks (e.g., excessive rainfall reducing yields).

• Stigma against online ordering still affects retail segment adoption.

• High commodity prices vs. per capita income limit wider penetration.

Opportunities
• Growing population driving demand for food, housing, and energy.

• Young, tech-savvy demographics creating preference for online platforms.

• Global demand for clean energy and agri-based commodities.

• Favorable government policies promoting IT and renewable energy sectors.

• Potential for geographic expansion beyond Punjab and into export markets.

Threats
• Cybersecurity threats to the digital platform.

• Climate change reducing agricultural productivity.

• Shrinking arable land in Pakistan.

• Political and policy uncertainty undermining long-term planning.

• Rising inflation and business cycle volatility.

• Theft of agricultural stocks and supply chain vulnerabilities.

• Competitors replicating business model.
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Core Values 

Innovation with Invention At Zarea, we believe that trust starts with 
transparency. Whether it's how we price 
our products, structure our partnerships, 
or communicate with stakeholders, we 
are committed to openness and honesty 
in everything we do. Clear, direct com-
munication is not just a practice—it’s a 
principle that guides our decisions and 
builds lasting confidence across our net-
work.

Transparency

Consistency is at the heart of Zarea’s opera-
tions. Every deal we make is a promise—and 
we keep our promises. Buyers, suppliers, and 
investors rely on us because we’ve built a rep-
utation for following through, every time. From 
logistics to execution, we maintain a high 
standard of dependability, ensuring that our 
partners can count on us for today and 
tomorrow.

Reliability in Every Deal
Relationships are the foundation of our 
business. We prioritize empathy, respect, 
and mutual growth in every partnership 
we form. Whether we’re working with a 
first-time supplier or a long-term inves-
tor, we focus on building trust and creat-
ing value for everyone involved. At Zarea, 
people come first—always.

People-first Partnerships

We don’t chase trends—we build solutions. 
At Zarea, innovation means more than just 
new technology; it means finding smarter, 
more effective ways to solve real-world 
problems. We harness technology as a 
tool to drive value, efficiency, and prog-
ress—not as a gimmick. Our approach 
blends creativity with practicality, deliver-
ing results that matter.



Political
Zarea operates in a dynamic political landscape where 
instability can significantly influence government policies 
affecting key industries such as construction, agriculture, 
and technology sectors closely tied to Zarea’s operations. 
Shifts in political leadership, regulatory changes, or public 
policy adjustments may directly impact the availability of 
products, end-user demand, and overall profitability.
Zarea actively monitors political developments at both 
national and regional levels to assess potential risks and 
opportunities. This vigilance enables the company to adapt 
its strategic planning and maintain resilience in the face of 
policy uncertainty.

Economic
The overall economic environment has a direct impact on 
consumer purchasing power and business investment 
activity. In Pakistan, recurring boom-and-bust economic 
cycles pose challenges to the consistency of business 
inflows and market stability. These fluctuations can 
influence demand patterns, supply chain costs, and access 
to capital. To mitigate these risks, Zarea focuses on offering 
a diversified range of products tailored to various customer 
segments. By maintaining affordability and value, the 
company aims to remain accessible to a broad customer 
base, ensuring steady sales performance even during 
periods of economic downturn.

Social
Improving literacy rates and greater access to information, 
combined with increasing urbanization, are reshaping 
consumer behavior across Pakistan. These shifts demand 
continuous adaptability in how products are marketed and 
delivered. With a predominantly young population that 
spends a significant amount of time online, digital 
engagement has become a critical avenue for reaching 
and influencing potential customers—a space where many 
companies are competing for attention.
Zarea actively engages with diverse demographic 
segments to stay informed about their evolving preferences 
and expectations. By leveraging these insights, the 
company tailors its product offerings and marketing 
strategies to remain relevant, accessible, and responsive to 
the needs of both urban and rural consumers.

PESTEL analysis
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Technological 
Technology plays a foundational role in Zarea’s operations, 
from digital platforms and customer interfaces to backend 
logistics and data management. As such, ensuring 
seamless technological performance is critical to 
maintaining business continuity and customer trust. 
Disruptions such as internet connectivity issues, platform 
malfunctions, or breaches of consumer data can 
significantly impact operational efficiency and damage the 
company’s reputation.
Recognizing these risks, Zarea allocates significant 
resources toward maintaining a secure, reliable, and 
user-friendly technological infrastructure. This proactive 
approach ensures that Zarea not only meets current 
technological demands but is also well-positioned to adapt 
to emerging digital trends and customer expectations.

Legal
Compliance with labor laws, financial regulations, and 
industry-specific legislation is essential for the 
continuity and credibility of Zarea’s operations. The 
regulatory environment in Pakistan is dynamic, with 
frequent updates that can affect operational costs, 
procedural requirements, and legal exposure. 
Non-compliance with these evolving laws can result in 
significant financial penalties, reputational damage, 
and operational disruptions.
To mitigate these risks, Zarea prioritizes continuous 
monitoring of the legal and regulatory landscape. The 
company ensures timely adherence to all applicable 
laws and proactively fulfills mandatory requirements.

Environmental
Extreme climate conditions in recent years have had 
devastating impacts on food systems and rural livelihoods, 
particularly in Pakistan. As a company involved in 
agriculture-related sectors, Zarea is exposed to the risks 
posed by adverse environmental events, including 
disruptions to supply chains, reduced crop yields, and 
increased volatility in commodity availability.
While Zarea cannot influence weather patterns, it 
recognizes the importance of building resilience against 
environmental shocks. The company is actively exploring 
opportunities in renewable biomass trade and supporting 
initiatives that benefit vulnerable rural communities. These 
efforts not only contribute to environmental sustainability 
but also help diversify Zarea’s sources of agricultural 
commodities, strengthening its long-term 
supply chain security.
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SUSTAINABILITY &
           DIGITIZATION

As the challenges of climate change and food security grow 
more urgent—particularly for a country like Pakistan—Zarea is 
committed to playing a meaningful role in addressing these 
critical issues. Our sustainability efforts span from ensuring fair 
pricing and better livelihoods for farmers, to reducing harmful 
emissions through the efficient use of crop waste for energy 
production.

We also actively support charitable drives and skill development 
programs aimed at empowering underprivileged communities. 
At the same time, we recognize that where there are challenges, 
there are also opportunities. The rapid advancement and 
adoption of technology opens doors for Zarea to drive both 
economic value and social impact. By staying at the forefront of 
ESG initiatives, we aim to build a more inclusive, equitable, and 
sustainable future—one that uplifts communities while 
accelerating innovation and responsible growth.



SUSTAINABILITY AT 
ITS CORE AT ZAREA
Smarter Sourcing, 
Greener Future.
At Zarea, sustainability is at the core of our 
mission. As a B2B procurement digital plat-
form, we leverage technology to drive 
smarter, eco-friendly sourcing, reduce waste, 
and optimize supply chains. By prioritizing 
responsible suppliers and minimizing 
paper-based transactions, we empower 
businesses to make sustainable choices 
e�ortlessly. Together, we can build a greener, 
more e�cient future-one decision at a time.
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Zero Hunger

This goal aims to end hunger, achieve food security, improve nutrition, and promote sustainable 
agriculture. Zarea helps reduce post-harvest loss by monetizing crop residues (e.g. straw, husks) 
and supporting rural agricultural ecosystems through added income streams for farmers.

Affordable & Clean Energy
This goal ensures access to affordable, reliable, sustainable, and modern energy for all. Zarea 
supplies biomass as a renewable fuel, reducing dependence on fossil fuels like coal or furna
ce oil in industrial boilers and power generation.

Decent Work & Economic Growth

This goal promotes inclusive and sustainable economic growth, employment, and decent work 
for all. Zarea’s trading activity supports local job creation, especially in rural areas (co
llection, processing, logistics). It promotes green economy growth.

Industry, Innovation & Infrastructure

This goal focuses on building resilient infrastructure, promoting sustainable industrialization, 
and fostering innovation. By enabling industries to switch to biomass, Zarea promotes clean 
industrial innovation and reduces energy costs for SMEs and manufacturers.
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Responsible Consumption & Production
This goal is about ensuring sustainable consumption and production patterns. Zarea promotes 
circular economy practices by collecting and repurposing agricultural waste into clean energy 
and exportable commodities.

Climate Action
This goal calls for urgent action to combat climate change and its impacts. Zarea’s biomass 
products enable industries to reduce their carbon emissions significantly compared to fossil 
fuels, supporting low-carbon transitions.

Life on Land
This goal seeks to protect, restore, and promote sustainable use of terrestrial ecosystems, 
forests, and biodiversity. By encouraging farmers not to burn residues (like rice straw), Zarea 
helps reduce air pollution, improve soil health, and mitigate biodiversity loss.

Partnerships for the Goals

This goal emphasizes strengthening global partnerships to achieve sustainable development. 
Through trade relationships, clean energy advocacy, and international exports, Zarea contribu-
tes to global collaboration for climate solutions.
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Zarea believes that sustainable progress 
is only possible when the welfare of 
farmers—the backbone of Pakistan’s agri-
cultural economy—is safeguarded. Unfor-
tunately, many farmers are subjected to 
exploitation by powerful commodity 
buyers, who undercut prices and force 
distressed sales. This cycle often compels 
farmers to sell their land, ultimately redu-
cing Pakistan’s cultivated area and jeo-
pardizing the nation’s food security.

With Pakistan’s overall unemployment 
rate at 8.5% and rural unemployment 
around 9%, the pressures faced by 
farming communities extend beyond 
fields into broader social challenges. 
Rising unemployment contributes to 
poverty and other social ills, especially in 
rural regions where agriculture is the 
primary source of livelihood.

Zarea is committed to breaking this 
cycle by ensuring guaranteed harvest 
sales, fair, transparent, and timely 
pricing, and the creation of rural em-
ployment opportunities. By leveraging 
its proprietary commodity database 
and deep industry knowledge, Zarea 
empowers farmers to achieve the best 
possible earning rates for their produ-
ce. This not only uplifts farming commu-
nities but also encourages them to con-
tinue contributing to Pakistan’s agricul-
tural output—an industry critical to the 
nation’s food safety and economic sta-
bility.

Through responsible trade practices, 
Zarea envisions a more equitable, just, 
and resilient agricultural economy, 
where farmers are recognized and 
rewarded for their indispensable role in 
sustaining the country.

Responsible Trade Empowering Farmers



Through in-house monitoring of key agricultural commodities such as corn and wheat, 
Zarea tracks prices, supply levels, and demand trends to ensure accurate estimation and 
timely procurement for its clients. This data-driven approach not only reduces inefficien-
cies but also allows Zarea to provide actionable insights, helping customers make infor-
med decisions with speed and confidence.

The integration of historical price data further empowers clients by enabling precise cost 
estimations, thereby eliminating unnecessary delays and expenses associated with 
manual price inquiries. At the same time, Zarea’s digital platform ensures the fair distribu-
tion and optimal utilization of available commodities, minimizing waste and strengthe-
ning food security.

Digitizing Commodity 
Trade in Pakistan
As part of its ESG commitment, Zarea is at the forefront of digitizing commodity trading in 
Pakistan. By replacing archaic, paper-based, and fragmented trading practices with real-time, 
cloud-based, and data-driven systems, Zarea is bringing greater efficiency, transparency, and 
sustainability to the commodity supply chain.
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One of the most pressing environmental challenges in Pakistan is the widespread 
practice of crop residue burning, which poses severe risks to both agriculture and 
the climate. Crop burning erodes soil quality by depleting essential nutrients, 
undermines long-term agricultural productivity, and significantly increases carbon 
dioxide emissions, amplifying the impacts of climate change. As a frontline victim 
of global warming, Pakistan can ill afford such unsustainable practices. At the same 
time, burning wastes valuable biomass resources that could otherwise be put to 
productive use.

Zarea addresses this challenge by leveraging its digital commodity platform to 
create a viable market for agricultural residues. By linking buyers and sellers, Zarea 
provides farmers and landowners with an incentive to avoid burning and instead 
channel residues into economic use. This model not only prevents environmental 
damage but also promotes rural job creation, as more local community members 
are engaged in the collection, processing, and distribution of biomass.

Cleaner Climate
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The benefits are far-reaching. Valuable biomass can be repurposed into nutritious animal feed 
and utilized as a renewable fuel in industrial biomass boilers, reducing reliance on fossil fuels. By 
preventing soil degradation, cutting emissions, and promoting resource efficiency, Zarea direct-
ly advances multiple United Nations Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs), including Climate 
Action (SDG 13), Zero Hunger (SDG 2), Affordable and Clean Energy (SDG 7), Decent Work and 
Economic Growth (SDG 8), Responsible Consumption and Production (SDG 12), and Life on Land 
(SDG 15).

Through this initiative, Zarea is driving a cleaner, more sustainable climate strategy for Pakistan 
while creating inclusive economic opportunities for rural communities.
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Through this integrated infrastructure—spanning from rural villages to international ports Zarea 
ensures that agricultural residues and commodities are collected, stored, and delivered sustai-
nably, creating value for farmers, clients, and global markets alike.

Building Infrastructure 
To scale its biomass and agri-commodity trading in a sustainable and efficient manner, Zarea 
is investing in robust physical infrastructure and advanced operational systems. The Company 
has established a network of collection center warehouses and village-level aggregation hubs, 
designed to source commodities such as rice husk, corn cobs, wheat straw, Rhodes grass, and 
other agri-produce directly from farming communities. These facilities enable the safe and 
timely storage of perishables, while also supporting accurate and reliable logistical distribution 
to industrial clients.

Complementing this physical footprint, Zarea leverages its in-house real-time dashboards to 
monitor stock levels, commodity pricing, and carbon savings, ensuring both transparency and 
operational agility. To support global trade, Zarea has also set up an export-grade compression 
and packaging hub at seaports, enabling the processing of commodities into internationally 
compliant export goods.
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Partnership with 
Misbah Momin Foundation

ESG Spotlight

Zarea proudly supports the Misbah Momin Foundation (MMF), a Lahore-based non-profit esta-
blished in 2012 with a steadfast mission to enlighten, empower, and uplift Pakistan’s most vulne-
rable communities Misbah Momin Foundation. By aligning with MMF, Zarea reinforces its dedi-
cation to sustainable development, education, and social inclusion.

MMF’s Skill Development Program focuses on delivering vocational training—particularly digital 
literacy, tailoring, and beautician skills—to youth and women in rural and underserved regions, 
enabling economic independence and self-employment Misbah Momin Foundation. Through 
its Climate Action Program, MMF organizes localized plantation drives—such as planting 300 
trees per targeted campaign—to foster environmental conservation and community aware-
ness Misbah Momin Foundation. Additionally, the Foundation carries out wide-reaching charity 
efforts, including interest-free microfinance initiatives, weekly food distributions, and support 
during Ramadan, all aimed at addressing poverty and supporting marginalized segments of 
society Misbah Momin Foundation.

Annual 
Report 2024-2567



Through this meaningful collaboration, Zarea demonstrates its commitment to ESG values—su-
pporting gender empowerment, environmental sustainability, and grassroots community wel-
fare—amplifying the social and ecological impact of its business beyond the balance sheet.
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Pakistan’s Digital Transformation
A Snapshot

Zarea’s Role in Driving the
Digital Frontier

Pakistan’s digital ecosystem has surged forward, marked by a rapidly expanding mobile and 
internet user base—197 million mobile subscribers and 116 million internet users, translating to 
nearly half the population online. The digital economy’s market size has ballooned into the tens 
of billions of dollars, with e-commerce alone surpassing US$10 billion in value and poised for 
further growth. Simultaneously, digital banking and payments are gaining dominance—with 84% 
of retail payments now made digitally, millions embracing mobile and internet banking platfor-
ms, and real-time systems like Raast facilitating trillions in transactions. These trends collectively 
reflect a nation steadily charting its path towards a digitally empowered future.

Against this backdrop, Zarea emerges as a pivotal force in Pakistan’s agri-tech and digital trade 
transformation. Positioned at the nexus of agriculture, trade, and digital infrastructure, Zarea 
leverages widespread mobile and internet penetration, e-commerce growth, and digital pay-
ments infrastructure to seamlessly connect suppliers, mills, and industrial clients. By embedding 
into the digital ecosystem—from mobile connectivity to Raast-enabled payments—Zarea not 
only streamlines procurement but also accelerates financial inclusion and modern supply 
chains. In doing so, it champions efficiency, transparency, and inclusivity within a rapidly digiti-
zing economy.

59% 
Internet penetration as a % of 
population(225M) (255M) 

PKR 258B

Ecommerce Transactions 
Volume 213 Million Worth 

Fixed Broadband
Connection 213 Million Worth 

PKR 27T/22.6M Users  
Mobile Banking Transactions Volume 1686 Million 

150M

146M 
Pakistan Mobile  
4G Subscribers



Governance



Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies 
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulation, 2019

 

 

Name of Company: ZAREA LIMITED  

Year Ended:         June 30, 2025. 
The company has complied the requirements contained in Regulation in the following manner:-  

1. The total number of directors are seven (07) as per the following 
Category Numbers 

Male  05 

Female  02 

 
2. The composition of the Board as follow: 

   Category  Names  
Non-Executive Independent 
Directors 

Mr. Muhammad Afzal Chaudhry 
Mr. Sohail Wajahat Siddiqui 

Executive Directors  Mr. Ali Alam Qamar 
Mr. Nouman Ul Hassan  

Non-Executive Directors 
Mrs. Misbah Momin  
Mr. Juneid Akram 
Ms. Meezan Fahd Mukhtar  

 

3. The Directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than 
seven listed companies, including this company. 

4. The Company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps 
have been taken to disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting 
policies and procedures. 

5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and 
significant policies of the company. A complete record of particulars of significant policies 
along with the dates on which they were approved or amended has been maintained. 

6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decision on relevant matters 
have been taken by Board /Shareholders as empowered by the relevant provision of the 
Act and these Regulations. 

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in her absence, by a 
Director elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the 
requirements of Act and the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and 
circulating minutes of meeting of Board. 

8. The Board of Directors has a formal policy and transparent procedures of remuneration 
of directors in accordance with the Act and these Regulations. 

9. Five (5) members of Board of Directors comply with the requirements of Directors’ 
Training as required under clause 19 of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate 
Governance) Regulations, 2019; 
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10. The Board has approved appointment of CFO, Company Secretary and Head of Internal 
Audit, including their remuneration and term and conditions of employment and complied 
with relevant requirements of the Regulations. 

11. CFO and CEO duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the Board. 
12. The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below: 
a) Audit Committee 

Names  Designation Held 
Mr. Muhammad Afzal 
Chaudhry 

Chairman 
 

Mr. Juneid Akram Member 
Mr. Nouman Ul Hassan  Member 

b) HR and Remuneration Committee 
Names  Designation Held 
Mr. Sohail Wajahat 
Siddiqui 

Chairman 

Mr. Ali Alam 
Qamar 

Member 

Ms. Meezan Fahd 
Mukhtar  

Member 

 
13. The Terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been forms, documented and 

advised to the committee for compliance. 
14.  The frequency of meetings of the aforesaid committees during the Financial Year ended 

June 30, 2025 were as per following  
a) Audit Committee: Four meetings held 
b) HR and Remuneration Committee: Two (02) meeting held. 

15. The Board has set up an effective internal audit function. The Staff is considered suitably 
qualified and experienced for the purpose and is conversant with the policies and 
procedures of the company. 

16. The Statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a 
satisfactory rating under the Quality Review program of the Institute of Chartered 
Accountant of Pakistan and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they 
and all their partners are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants 
(IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of Pakistan and that they and the partners of the Firm involved in the audit are not a close 
relative( Spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent children) of the Chief executive 
officer, Chief Financial Officer, head of Internal audit, Company Secretary or director of 
the company; 

17. The Statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to 
provide other services except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other 
regulatory requirements and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC 
guidelines in this regard. 

18. We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3,6,7,8,27,32,33 and 36, of the CCG have 
been complied with, and 

(a) In respect of regulation 6(1), the company believes that it has sufficient impartiality 
and is able to exercise independence in decision making within the Board and 
hence, does not require to roundup the fraction to 3 independent directors.   
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19. The Company has fully ensured compliance with the mandatory provisions of the Code. Since the 
Code requires a “comply or explain” approach towards the non-mandatory provisions, we confirm 
that all optional requirements have also been complied with, except for the following: 

(a) Constitution of a separate Nomination Committee as recommended under 
Regulation 29(1) of the Code, since the Board effectively discharges all 
responsibilities of the Nomination Committee. The Board regularly monitors and 
assesses requirements regarding any changes needed to the Board’s committees, 
including the chairmanship of those committees. 

(b) Constitution of a Risk Management Committee as recommended under 
Regulation 30(1) of the Code, since the Board itself, and through its Audit 
Committee, annually reviews the business risks facing the Company to ensure that 
a sound system of risk identification, risk management, and related internal 
controls is maintained to safeguard assets. 

(c) Directors’ Training as recommended under Regulation 19(1) of the Code, which 
remains due for two directors because of their unavailability during the training 
session. This will be completed in the next available slot. 
 
 

________________  ___________________ 
     Mrs. Misbah Momin   Mr. Ali Alam Qamar 
                Chairperson   Chief Executive Officer 

 
    Lahore: August 28, 2025 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REVIEW REPORT 
 
To the members of Zarea Limited 
 
Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies (Code of Corporate 
Governance) Regulations, 2019  
 
We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate 
Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of Zarea Limited for 
the year ended 30th June, 2025 in accordance with the requirements of Regulation No. 36 of the Regulations.  
 
The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. 
Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company’s 
compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-
compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the 
Company’s personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the 
Regulations.  
 
As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the 
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. 
We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal control covers all 
risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company’s 
corporate governance procedures and risks.  
 
The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of 
the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party 
transactions. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the 
approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit 
Committee.  
 
Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of 
Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the 
requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended 30th June, 2025. 
 

 

Naveed Zafar Ashfaq Jaffery & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

Place. Lahore 

Date: September 26, 2025 

UDIN: CR202510575CpIcaUonv 
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Directors’ 
Report



The Board of Directors of Zarea Limited  feels 
pleasure in presenting to you the Annual 
Report along with the Audited Financial 
Statements for the year ended June 30, 2025. 

Group Overview 
The Company was incorporated in Pakistan on 16 September, 
2020 as a private limited company, under the Companies Act, 
2017 having registered office at 6011, Delta-6 NASTP, Abid Majeed 
Road Cantt. Lahore Pakistan. The company converted into Public 
Limited Company on April 15, 2024 and listed on Pakistan Stock 
Exchange (PSX) on 28 February 2025 through Initial Public Offer 
(IPO).

Overall Economic Overview
During the year under review, the Pakistani economy showed signs of stabilization and recorded 
a moderate growth rate of 2.7%, against the target growth rate of 3.56%. This compares with a 
growth rate of 2.38% recorded in the corresponding year. The year under discussion witnessed 
significant decrease in the discount rate which came down to 11% from 22% rising confidence of 
sustainable economic recovery. The turnaround was largely supported by strong growth in 
workers' remittances and a modest rise in exports, according to provisional data released by the 
State Bank of Pakistan (SBP).

Pakistan’s agriculture sector experienced modest growth during the year, which was not as 
remarkable as the performance achieved in the previous year. Major crops contracted by 13.5%, 
with cotton production down 30.7%, wheat by 8.9%, maize by 15.4%, and cotton ginning lower by 
19%. Conversely, livestock (4.72%), other crops (4.78%), forestry (3.03%) and fisheries (1.42%) 
showed resilience. Agriculture still contributed around 23.5% of GDP, highlighting its structural 
importance. 

Real-economy indicators relevant to Zarea showed mixed but improving momentum. Cement 
dispatches continued to recover in mid-2025 (double-digit YoY growth in July–August), 
signaling a gradual upturn in construction demand from both public and private sectors. 
Agriculture posted an uneven picture: while wheat output in 2024/25 was historically strong, 
late-September monsoon floods created downside risks for the upcoming Rabi season and for 
cotton-linked value chains. 

For Zarea, these dynamics have clear implications:

• Materials demand: Softer inflation, lower rates, and PSDP focus on infrastructure support 
ongoing demand for cement, steel and construction inputs, improving transaction volumes 
on B2B platforms. 

• Agri & biomass: Strong wheat but flood-related crop losses heighten the need for resilient 
procurement, storage, and traceability, creating opportunities for Zarea’s agri and biomass 
verticals.

• FX & pricing: A more stable rupee and improved remittance inflows aid pricing visibility for 
imports and exports. 

At the same time, Pakistan is experiencing a significant digital transformation. Broadband 
penetration has surpassed 130 million subscriptions, mobile wallet usage continues to expand, 
and government initiatives are pushing forward digital payments, e-commerce, and fintech 
adoption. The business-to-business (B2B) segment, long underserved, is now witnessing strong 
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uptake of technology-enabled solutions, with enterprises increasingly shifting procurement, 
logistics, and financing processes onto digital platforms. This digital revolution not only 
enhances transparency and efficiency but also creates new opportunities for platforms like 
Zarea to play a central role in formalizing trade and unlocking efficiencies across Pakistan’s 
commodity value chains.

While challenges remain in the broader economy, the combination of stabilizing 
macroeconomic indicators, targeted infrastructure spending, and improving construction and 
agriculture demand provides a fertile ground for growth. With its strong positioning in 
commodities, agri-biomass, and digital B2B trade, Zarea Limited is well placed to benefit from 
these positive trends and continue its trajectory as Pakistan’s leading B2B commodities 
e-commerce marketplace.

Principal activities

The Company operates one of  Pakistan’s leading online B2B marketplaces, connecting buyers 
and sellers of commodities through a proprietary technology platform. Revenue is primarily 
derived from Platform Usage Fees (PUF) on transactions executed via its e-commerce platform, 
as well as from the purchase and sale of agricultural commodities facilitated on the platform. In 
addition, the Company generates income from short-term investments in equities, fixed-income 
securities, and mutual fund units. Leveraging technology to streamline operations and enhance 
user experience, the Company is continuously investing in digital innovation to strengthen its 
market position. It remains firmly committed to environmental, social, and governance (ESG) 
principles, embedding responsible business practices, operational integrity, ethical governance, 
and full regulatory compliance at the core of its activities.

Business Performance

Amid improving economic conditions, Zarea has continued to deliver strong performance and 
sustained growth. During the year, the Company expanded its presence across multiple cities, 
strengthening its supplier network and diversifying product offerings to include industrial, 
agricultural, and energy-related commodities. To further support Pakistan’s transition towards 
cleaner energy, Zarea has established nine collection centres across Punjab for the 
procurement of agri-biomass, contributing directly to sustainable fuel substitution and green 
energy initiatives.

The Company also successfully launched its import and export division, enabling cross-border 
trade of key commodities and positioning Zarea as a competitive player in regional and global 
supply chains. In parallel, significant investments were made in advanced technologies, 
including upgraded supply chain management systems and faster order processing 
capabilities. These initiatives reduced order-fulfilment times, improved traceability, and elevated 
customer satisfaction levels.

Throughout the year, management placed strong emphasis on operational excellence and 
continuous improvement, resulting in enhanced efficiency, stronger profitability, and a more 
resilient business model aligned with long-term growth.

Financial Performance of the Group

In the fiscal year ending on June 30, 2025, the Group reported a revenue of PKR 1,342.93 million 
fueled by strong customer retention and new acquisitions, showing a 204% increase from the 
previous year. Despite challenging economic conditions, this growth demonstrates the Group’s 
strong presence in various business sectors. The profit after taxation increased by 129% 
compared to the previous year, with earnings per share at PKR 3.04.

The Group’s performance during the year under review is summarized below:
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Changes during financial year concerning the nature of the business 
of the company
There are no changes during the financial year concerning the nature of the 
business of the company.

Future outlook and Prospects for Growth
Looking ahead, Zarea remains firmly focused on building scale, enhancing efficiency and 
technology, and expanding its footprint across Pakistan and beyond. The Company sees 
significant opportunity in digital procurement, industrial inputs, and agri grains and biomass, 
supported by a recovering macroeconomic environment and rising demand for sustainable 
supply chain solutions. With continued investments in technology, logistics, and value-added 
processing, Zarea is positioned to capture new growth avenues, diversify revenue streams, and 
strengthen its role as a leading B2B marketplace. These initiatives will not only reinforce the 
Company’s domestic leadership but also open pathways to establish Zarea as a regional 
commodities player, aligned with global trends in digitization and green energy.

  

 

Consolidated

Particulars 2025 2024 CAGR (5 Years)

Revenue

Operating Profit 

Profit After Taxation 

Earnings Per Share (PKR) 

1,342,929,037 

296,128,957

670,950,065 

3.04

441,761,852

257,244,301 

292,711,085

3.99

226.95% 

153.76%

239.78%

Total consolidated assets
(PKR) CAGR 142.42%

Consolidated Operating profit 
(PKR) CAGR 153.78% 

Consolidated Revenue
(PKR) CAGR 226.95%

11.80

2025

2024

2023

2021

2022

296,228,956

257244301
111361509

1,342,929,037

 441,761,852

 159,066,227

 116,403,660

11,752,862

2025

2024

2023

2021

2022

296,228,956

257244301
111361509

296,128,957

257,244,301

111,361,509

76,475,203

 7,141,272

2025

2024

2023

2021

2022

296,228,956

257244301
111361509

2,409,353,010

 629,698,003

 246,616,018

 132,185,709

69,770,558

2025

2024

2023

2021

2022

296,228,956

257244301
111361509

670,950,065

  292,711,085

 81,252,073

  23,608,201

5,034,033

Consolidated PAT
(PKR) CAGR 239.79% 

Annual 
Report 2024-2579



Increase In Agricultural Output

Shift Towards Renewable Energy

Growth in SMEs Trade

Increase In Construction Activity

Infrastructure Development

Increase In Exports

Digitization Of Trade & B2B Procurement

Expansion of 3G/4G/5G Connectivity

 GROWTH DRIVERS
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Expansion Plan

During the year, Zarea advanced its strategic growth agenda through several expansion 
initiatives designed to diversify its product portfolio, strengthen supply chains, and capture new 
markets.

• New Commodity Categories: The Company is rolling out new commodities including coal, 
fertilizers, yarn and chemicals, positioning itself as a key player in the B2B commodities market 
across Pakistan.

• Import Division for Industrial Procurement: To cater to industrial clients, Zarea is in the 
process of establishing a dedicated Import Division for essential commodities such as 
agricultural products, yarn, steel, and chemicals. 

• Export Division: Zarea initiated exports of agricultural commodities including corn, Rhodes 
grass, and corn silage, with a three-year revenue target of USD 10 million, unlocking 
opportunities in high-demand regional markets.

• Strategic In-House Logistics: The Company is investing in its own logistics arm to improve 
operational control, enhance delivery efficiency, reduce dependency on third parties, and 
create scalable growth avenues.

• Technology Expansion & Upgrade: A comprehensive upgrade of Zarea’s digital platform is 
underway, adding new features, web functionalities, and user-centric enhancements to 
streamline procurement journeys, increase transaction volumes, and reinforce Zarea’s 
leadership in the B2B e-commerce sector.

• Value Addition in Commodities: Zarea entered into value-added processing and packaging 
of commodities such as corn silage and agri-biomass, improving shelf life, product quality, 
and efficiency in bulk handling.

• Regional Collection Centers: The Company is establishing a network of collection centers 
across Punjab and KPK to streamline procurement and aggregation of agricultural 
commodities. These centers will strengthen Zarea’s supply chain, reduce logistical delays, 
and ensure timely and reliable fulfillment of customer demand.

Through these initiatives, Zarea continues to diversify its revenue base, strengthen its market 
position, and build the foundations for sustainable long-term growth in both local and 
international markets.

Main trends & factors likely to affect the future development, 
performance and position of the company business
The Company operates in a dynamic environment where multiple factors will shape its future 
trajectory. Technological change remains the most prominent, with rapid advancements in 
artificial intelligence, data analytics, and automation driving efficiency, transparency, and new 
business models. Zarea is fully prepared to leverage these trends and position itself at the 
forefront of the AI-driven transformation of commodity supply chains.

Other key factors likely to influence the Company’s development include:

• Macroeconomic Conditions: Interest rate adjustments, inflation trends, and currency stability 
will directly impact procurement costs, financing availability, and overall demand in the 
industrial and agricultural sectors.

• Regulatory Landscape: Increasing emphasis on compliance, corporate governance, and 
taxation reforms will require strong internal controls and agile adaptation to evolving 
frameworks.

• Sustainability & ESG: Rising demand for green energy and sustainable sourcing will create 
opportunities in agri-biomass and renewable-linked supply chains, while also requiring 
investment in environmentally responsible practices.

• Global Trade Dynamics: Shifts in import-export policies, trade agreements, and regional 
demand for agri-commodities will influence the pace and scale of Zarea’s international 
expansion.

• Talent & Human Capital: The ability to attract, retain, and develop skilled 
professionals—especially in technology, logistics, and supply chain management—will be 
crucial to sustaining long-term competitiveness.
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• Digital Adoption in B2B Commerce: With enterprises increasingly moving toward 
e-procurement and digital marketplaces, Zarea is uniquely positioned to capitalize on this 
trend, but must continuously innovate to stay ahead of new entrants and global competitors.

Together, these factors will define the Company’s future performance and strategic positioning. By 
proactively investing in technology, compliance, sustainability, and human capital, Zarea aims to 
not only mitigate risks but also capture opportunities for sustained growth and leadership in the 
B2B commodities sector.

Corporate Governance and Financial Reporting Framework
As required by the Code of Corporate Governance (incorporated in the Listing Rules of the stock 
exchanges in the country), the Board of Directors is pleased to state: 

• The financial statements, prepared by the management of the Company, present fairly its 
state of affairs, the    results of its operations, cashflows and changes in equity. 

• Proper books of accounts of the Company have been maintained. 
• Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of the financial 

statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.
• International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as applicable in Pakistan, have been 

followed in the preparation of financial statements.
• Information about taxes and levies is given in the Notes to the Financial Statements.
• The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and 

monitored. 
• There is no significant doubt on the company’s ability to continue as a going concern. 
• There has been no material departure from best practices of Corporate Governance, as 

detailed in the listing regulations. 
• The management of the Company is committed to following good corporate governance, 

taking all appropriate measures to comply with best practices, and continuously reviewing the 
system of internal controls in the light of Companies Act 2017.

• There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance as 
detailed in the listing regulations.

Chairperson’s Review
The Chairperson's review is enclosed and duly endorsed by Board of Directors.

Code of Conduct
The Company has formed Code of Conduct to run its business operations effectively.

Statement of Compliance
Statement of Compliance duly reviewed by Board of Directors and Auditors is annexed.

Board Evaluation
As required under the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance Regulations), 2019, the 
Board conducts a self- evaluation of its performance on an annual basis. The Board of Directors 
believes that continuous assessment is critical in determining how effectively the Board has 
performed against the objectives and goals that they have set for themselves. Based on the 
results of the evaluation, areas of improvement are identified and corrective action plans are 
prepared and acted upon.
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Evaluation Criteria of the Board
Apart from their mandatory job requirements, the performance of the Board of our Company is 
evaluated regularly along the following parameters, both at individual and team levels:

• Follow-up and review of annual targets set by the management.
• Review of succession planning of management.
• Contribution and interest in regard to improving health safety and environment, employment 

and
• other policies and practices in the Company.
• Effectiveness in bringing in a mix of gender, talents, skills and philosophical perspectives.
• Ability to identify aspects of the organization's performance requiring action.

The overall performance of the Board measured on the basis of above-mentioned parameters 
for the year was satisfactory.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
The Directors of the Company are committed towards long term measures in line with United 
Nation's Sustainable Development Goals. The Company is committed to contribute its resources 
for the betterment of the environment without prejudice. Its Health, Safety, and environmental 
(HSE) policies are geared towards the betterment of employees and community. The Company 
ensures environment friendly operations, products, and services while promoting environmental 
awareness among its employee and the community. 

The Company contributes generously to the Misbah Momin Foundation, underscoring its 
commitment to social responsibility and community welfare. In addition, the Company actively 
supports inclusive growth by inducting employees from surrounding communities and rural 
areas, while also offering internship opportunities to fresh graduates to enhance their career 
development

Environment, Social, Governance (ESG)
The Company recognizes the importance of and is committed to adhering to SECP’s regulatory 
guidelines on ESG disclosure. Given the significant impact of ESG factors on investor con¬fidence, 
financial stability, and overall business viability, integrating sustainability considerations into our 
operations will help mitigate risks, enhance our reputation, and offer sustainable products and 
services. This approach ultimately creates long-term value for all stakeholders.

Impact of Company’s business on the environment
Zarea recognizes that its operations in commodities, agriculture, and industrial supply chains 
carry an environmental footprint, and the Company is committed to minimizing adverse impacts 
while promoting sustainable practices. By establishing nine agri-biomass collection centres 
across Punjab, Zarea is directly contributing to the reduction of reliance on fossil fuels, 
encouraging cleaner alternatives, and supporting the transition toward green energy.

The Company’s focus on digital procurement and e-commerce solutions also reduces the need 
for paper-based transactions and inefficient supply chains, leading to lower waste and carbon 
emissions. Furthermore, investments in in-house logistics are designed to enhance fuel 
efficiency, optimize delivery routes, and reduce dependency on fragmented third-party services 
that often add to emissions.

Aligned with its ESG principles, Zarea continues to evaluate opportunities for sustainable 
sourcing, waste reduction, and renewable energy integration across its business lines. These 
initiatives not only mitigate environmental risks but also position the Company as a responsible 
market leader contributing to Pakistan’s broader climate and sustainability goals.
External Auditors
The present auditor, Naveed Zafar Ashfaq Jaffery & Co., Chartered Accountants, who are retiring 
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this year, have offered themselves for reappointment. Being eligible, the audit committee has 
recommended the reappointment of Naveed Zafar Ashfaq Jaffery & Co., Chartered Accountants, 
as the external auditor of the Company for the year ending June 30, 2026.

Principal Risk and Uncertainties Facing the Company

Following are some of the risk factors that may impact our business and financial results:

• Macroeconomic Volatility: Fluctuations in GDP growth, inflation, interest rates, and exchange 
rates can directly impact commodity pricing, procurement costs, and customer demand.

• Regulatory & Compliance Risks: Frequent changes in taxation policies, trade regulations, and 
corporate governance requirements create compliance pressures and could affect business 
operations if not addressed promptly.

• Supply Chain Disruptions: Climate events, transportation bottlenecks, and global 
commodity shortages may impact the timely availability of key inputs, particularly in 
agriculture and energy-related commodities.

• Credit & Counterparty Risk: As the Company facilitates large-scale B2B transactions, 
defaults or delays in payments by buyers or suppliers can affect liquidity and cash flow.

• Technology & Cybersecurity: Rapid digital adoption brings exposure to system failures, data 
breaches, and cybersecurity threats, which could disrupt operations and affect customer 
trust.

• Environmental & Climate Risks: Pakistan’s vulnerability to floods, droughts, and other climate 
shocks can disrupt agricultural yields, commodity flows, and business continuity.

• Competition & Market Dynamics: Any changes in market structures may intensify 
competition, requiring continuous innovation and differentiation.

• Human Capital Dependence: Retaining and nurturing skilled professionals in technology, 
supply chain, and financial management remains critical for sustained growth.

The Company actively mitigates these risks through robust internal controls, diversified product 
offerings, prudent financial management, and continuous investment in technology, 
governance, and talent development.

Adequacy of Internal Financial Controls

The management of Zarea Limited as a Group is responsible for the establishment and 
maintenance of the Company’s and the Group’s system of internal control in order to identify and 
manage risks faced by the Group. The system provides reasonable, though not absolute, 
assurance that: 

• assets are safeguarded against unauthorized use or disposition;
• proper and reliable accounting records are available for use within the business;
• adequate control mechanisms have been established within the operational businesses and
• Internal financial controls deployed within the Company have been satisfactory throughout 

the year.

Board of Directors

Currently, the Board of Directors comprises of seven members including Chief Executive Officer. 
Among five male and two female members, two are executive, five are non-executive including 
two independent directors. The board has two sub committees: Audit Committee and Human 
Resource and Remuneration Committee, the composition of which are shown below:
 
Audit Committee:

1. Mr. Muhammad Afzal Chaudhary (Chairman)
2. Mr. Nouman Ul Hassan (Members)
3. Mr. Juneid Akram (Members)
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Human Resource and Remuneration Committee:

1. Mr. Sohail Wajahat Siddiqui (Chairman)
2. Mr Ali Alam Qamar (Member)
3. Ms. Meezan Fahd Mukhtar (Member)

During the fiscal year, four (4) Board, four (4) Audit Committee, and two (2) Human Resource & 
Remuneration Committee meetings were held. Attendance by each director is as follows:

Directors’ Remuneration policy 

Executive Directors’ remuneration is paid in line with the Company’s formal policy, approved by 
the Board of Directors which is in accordance with the Companies Act, 2017 and the CCG. The fee 
of the Non Executive and Independent Directors for attending the Board and Committee 
meetings of the Company is determined by the Board from time to time. 

Related Party Transactions 

The Company has made detailed disclosures about the related party transaction in the financial 
statements annexed with the annual report. Such disclosure is in line with the requirement of the 
Companies Act, 2017 and applicable International Financial Reporting Standards. A complete list 
of all Related Party Transaction is compiled and submitted by the Internal Auditor, which has 
been verified that all transactions or arrangements with the related parties were carried out in 
the ordinary course and are conducted on an arm’s length basis to the Board’s Audit Committee 
periodically. After the review by the Audit Committee the transactions or arrangements with all 
the related parties are placed before the Board of Directors for their consideration and approval.

Dividend/Bonus Shares
The Board, after examining the financial position of the Company, has decided to keep the 
company liquid to the maximum possible extent under the current difficult economic situation. 
The Board has recommended rupee 1 cash dividend per share for the year ended June 30, 2025 
(2024: nil)

Pattern of Shareholding
The pattern of shareholding of the Company is annexed. There was no trading in the shares of the 
Company by the Directors, Chief Executive, Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary, Company 
Executives and their spouses and minor children during the year except those which are 
mentioned in the annexed statement required under the Code of Corporate Governance. 
Necessary returns in this respect were filed with the regulatory authorities besides informing the 
Board and the Stock Exchange of the said transactions as required under the Code of Corporate 
Governance.

 

Name of Director Board of Directors Audit Committee HR & R Committee
Mr. Ali Alam Qamar 4 N/A 2
Mrs. Misbah Momin 4 N/A N/A
Ms. Meezan Fahd Mukhtar 4 N/A 2
Mr. Nouman Ul Hassan 4 4 N/A
Mr. Muhammad Afzal Chaudhary 4 4 N/A
Mr. Sohail Wajahat Siddiqui 4 N/A 2
Mr. Juneid Akram 4 3 N/A
Total no. of meetings held 4 4 2
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Subsequent Event
No material changes and commitment affecting the financial position of the Company have 
occurred between the end of the financial year i.e. June 30, 2025 and date of this report.

Acknowledgement
The Board of Directors extends heartfelt gratitude to all stakeholders, including customers, banks, 
suppliers, contractors, and shareholders, for their unwavering support and confidence. We also 
express our gratitude to our dedicated employees for their hard work and commitment during 
this period. Our commitment remains steadfast in serving the best interests of all stakeholders 
and contributing to the overall welfare of our country.

For & on behalf of the board 

Mr. Ali Alam Qamar
Chief Executive Officer   

Mr.  Nouman Ul Hassan
Director
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Group Financials at a Glance

Revenue

PKR

PAT CAGR

239.78%

Operating profit CAGR

153.76%

PKR

Cash & Bank 

324.06 MN

1,342.92 MN

Operating profit margin

22.05%

Revenue CAGR

Grass Profit CAGR

148.03%

226.95%

Gross profit margin

33.12%

Net profit margin

49.96%

Return on assets

27.85%

PAT Y/Y growth

129.22%

PKR

Short term investments

792.46 MN

PKR
3.04
EPS

PKR

Total assets

2,409.35 MN

Return on Equity

29.48%



Operating & Financial Highlights
Consolidated

2025
Consolidated Revenue

Cost of Sales

Gross profit

Administrative and General Expenses

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Other Expenses

Investments Gain/(Loss)

Finance Costs

Other Income

Profit before taxation

Taxation

Net profit after taxation

Other Comprehensive Income

Total Comprehensive Income

Basic & Diluted earning per share 3.04 3.99 51.84 11.8 2.52

(898,166,352) 

444,762,685  

(73,319,897)

1,342,929,037 

(75,313,832)

-

378,130,021

(3,308,912)

-

670,950,065

-

670,950,065

-

670,950,065

441,761,852

(131,017,772)

310,744,080

(24,740,049)

(28,759,730)

-

34,521,421

(79,577)

-

291,686,145

1,024,940

292,711,085

-

292,711,085

159,066,227

(33,621,244)

125,444,983

(5,200,902)

(8,882,572)

-

(7,614,408)

(70,133)

-

103,676,968

(22,424,895)

81,252,073

-

81,252,073

116,403,660

(30,550,000)

85,853,660

(2,796,191)

(6,582,266)

(44,416,509)

-

(849)

265,000

32,322,845

(8,714,644)

23,608,201

-

23,608,201

2024 2023 2022
11,752,862

-

11,752,862

(3,104,791)

(1,506,799)

(312,480)

-

(12,588)

-

6,816,204

(1,782,171)

5,034,033

-

5,034,033

2021

Unconsolidated 

2025
Revenue

Cost of Sales

Gross profit

Administrative and General Expenses

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Other Expenses

Investments Gain/(Loss)

Finance Costs

Other Income

Profit before taxation

Taxation

Net profit after taxation

Other Comprehensive Income

Total Comprehensive Income

Basic & Diluted earning per share 3.04 3.99 51.84 11.8 2.52

(898,166,352) 

444,762,685  

(73,319,897)

1,342,929,037 

(75,313,832)

-

378,130,021

(3,307,056)

-

671,051,921

-

671,051,921

-

671,051,921

441,761,852

(131,017,772)

310,744,080

(24,640,049)

(28,759,730)

-

34,521,421

(79,577)

-

291,786,145

1,024,940

292,811,085

-

292,811,085

159,066,227

(33,621,244)

125,444,983

(5,200,902)

(8,882,572)

-

(7,614,408)

(70,133)

-

103,676,968

(22,424,895)

81,252,073

-

81,252,073

116,403,660

(30,550,000)

85,853,660

(2,796,191)

(6,582,266)

(44,416,509)

-

(849)

265,000

32,322,845

(8,714,644)

23,608,201

-

23,608,201

2024 2023 2022
11,752,862

-

11,752,862

(3,104,791)

(1,506,799)

(312,480)

-

(12,588)

-

6,816,204

(1,782,171)

5,034,033

-

5,034,033

2021
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Financial Analysis

2025

2021 20,000,000

2022 20,000,000

2023 20,000,000

2024 200,000,000

262,500,000

Share Capital
(PKR) CAGR 90.34%

2025

2021 5,034,033

2022 28,642,234

2023 139,105,574

2024 426,855,623

1,097,907,544

 Reserves
(PKR) CAGR 284.29%

2025

2021 41,687,520

2022 31,746,011

2023 36,131,603

2024 70,653,024

792,460,397

Investmnets
(PKR) CAGR 108.81%

2025

2021 11,111,107

2022 28,096,632

2023 67,426,298

2024 93,013,441

323,064,043

Cash and bank
(PKR) CAGR 132.21%

2025

2021 5,910,289

2022 7,162,998

2023 16,549,412

2024 47,949,790

187,224,277

PPE and intangibles
(PKR) CAGR 137.24%

2021

2022

2023

2025

5,034,033

23,608,201

81,252,073

2024 292,811,085

671,051,921

Net Profit After Tax
(PKR) CAGR 239.79%

2025

2021 11,752,862

2022 85,853,660

2023 125,444,983

2024 310,744,080

444,762,685

 Gross Profit
(PKR) CAGR 148.03%

257244301

2025

2021 7,141,272

2022 76,475,203

2023 111,361,509

2024 257,344,301

296,228,956

Operating Profit
(PKR) CAGR 153.78%

Revenue
(PKR) CAGR 226.95%

2025

2024

2023

2022

2021 11,752,862

116,403,660

159,066,227

441,761,852

1,342,929,037
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2

46.05%

47. 4%

2.76% 3.95%

45.95%

49.79%

0.21%
4.05%

Financial Position of the Company: 
Total Current Assets
Total Equity
Total Liabilities
Total Non-Current Assets

The company demonstrates a solid financial position, underpinned by a substantial increase in both current and 
non-current assets during the year. The rise in current assets has further strengthened liquidity, ensuring the company 
is well-positioned to meet its short-term obligations and maintain operational flexibility. At the same time, the growth in 
non-current assets reflects long-term investments in capacity, infrastructure, and other strategic areas that will 
support sustainable growth in future periods.

Equity has also increased significantly, resulting in a stronger capital base and an even higher equity-to-assets ratio. 
This indicates that the company is largely self-financed and less reliant on external borrowings, thereby minimizing 
financial risk and exposure to interest rate volatility. The combination of higher assets and equity reflects not only 
improved financial strength but also management’s prudent approach to reinvesting earnings for business expansion 
and value creation.

Finacial Position of the Company

2025 2024

Financial Year

Total non-current assets

Total Current assets

Total Liabilities

Total Equity

190,205,153 

2,218,999,713

132,771,369

2,276,433,497

 50,930,665

  578,517,338

 2,592,379

626,855,624

2025 2024
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Ratios and Analysis
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS 
For the year ended 30 June 2025

 Vertical analysis

2025
Revenue

Cost of Sales

Gross profit

Administrative and General Expenses

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Other Expenses

Investments Gain/(Loss)

Finance Costs

Other Income

Profit before taxation

Taxation

Net profit after taxation

Other Comprehensive Income

Total Comprehensive Income

-66.88% 

33.12%

-5.45%

100.00%

-5.61%

0.00%

28.16%

-0.25%

0.00%

49.97%

0.00%

49.97%

0.00%

49.97%

100.00%

-29.66%

70.34%

-5.58%

-6.51%

0.00%

7.81%

-0.02%

0.00%

66.05%

0.23%

66.28%

0.00%

66.28%

100.00%

-21.14%

78.86%

-3.27%

-5.58%

0.00%

-4.79%

-0.04%

0.00%

65.18%

-14.10%

51.08%

0.00%

51.08%

100.00%

-26.24%

73.76%

-2.40%

-5.65%

-38.16%

0.00%

0.00%

0.23%

27.77%

-7.49%

20.28%

0.00%

20.28%

2024 2023 2022
100.00%

0.00%

100.00%

-26.42%

-12.82%

-2.66%

0.00%

-0.11%

0.00%

58.00%

-15.16%

42.83%

0.00%

42.83%

2021

 Horizontal analysis

2025
Revenue

Cost of Sales

Gross profit

Administrative and General Expenses

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Other Expenses

Investments Gain/(Loss)

Finance Costs

Other Income

Profit before taxation

Taxation

Net profit after taxation

Other Comprehensive Income

Total Comprehensive Income

685.53%

143.13%

297.16%

303.99%

261.87%

0.00%

1095.35%

4155.79%

0.00%

229.98%

0.00%

229.18%

0.00%

229.18%

277.72%

389.69%

247.71%

473.76%

323.78%

0.00%

-453.37%

113.47%

0.00%

281.44%

-4.57%

360.37%

0.00%

360.37%

136.65%

110.05%

146.11%

186.00%

134.95%

-100.00%

100.00%

8260.66%

-100.00%

320.75%

257.32%

344.17%

0.00%

344.17%

990.43%

100.00%

730.49%

90.06%

436.84%

14214.19%

0.00%

6.74%

100.00%

474.21%

488.99%

468.97%

0.00%

468.97%

2024 2023 2022
100.00%

0.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

0.00%

100.00%

0.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

0.00%

100.00%

2021
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Ratios and Analysis
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As on 30 June 2025

 Vertical analysis

2025

 Property and equipments

Intangible Assets

Long term Security Deposits

 Investment in Subsidiary

 Total

Short term Investment

Advances for Commodities

Inventory

Trade and Other receivables

Advances & Prepayments

Cash and bank balances

Total

Share Premium

Issued, subscribed & paid-up capital

Reserves

1.83% 

0.09%

0.03%

5.94%

7.89%

32.89%

9.06%

15.70%

19.38%

1.66%

13.41%

92.11%

100.00%

10.90%

38.02%

4.11%

3.50%

0.35%

0.12%

8.09%

11.22%

38.44%

0.00%

25.02%

2.44%

14.78%

91.91%

31.77%

0.00%

4.96%

1.75%

0.00%

0.00%

6.71%

14.65%

29.54%

0.00%

21.76%

0.00%

27.34%

93.29%

8.11%

0.00%

4.73%

0.69%

0.00%

0.00%

5.42%

24.02%

0.00%

0.00%

49.02%

0.29%

21.26%

94.58%

15.13%

0.00%

2024 Rupees

 NON-CURRENT ASSETS

 CURRENT ASSETS

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL ASSETS
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

2023 2022

7.03%

1.44%

0.00%

0.00%

8.47%

59.75%

0.00%

0.00%

9.36%

6.50%

15.93%

91.53%

100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

28.67%

0.00%

45.57% 67.81% 56.41% 21.67% 7.22%

Total

Loan from Sponsors/Shareholders

Total

94.49%

0.00%

99.59%

0.00%

64.52%

33.86%

36.80%

40.47%

35.88%

60.20%

94.49% 99.59% 98.37% 77.27% 96.08%

Deferred tax liability

 CURRENT LIABILITIES

Provision for gratuity

Long term financing

Total

0.08%

 1.15%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

1.23% 0.00% 0.42% 0.39% 0.44%

Trade and Other Payables

Current portion of the bank finance

 3.71% 0.41% 1.21% 22.34% 3.48%

0.57% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Total

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

4.28% 0.41% 1.21% 22.34% 3.48%

100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

2021

0.00% 0.00% 0.42% 0.39% 0.44%
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Horizontal analysis

2025

 Property and equipments

Intangible Assets

Long term Security Deposits

 Investment in Subsidiary

 Total

Short term Investment

Advances for Commodities

Inventory

Trade and Other receivables

Advances & Prepayments

Cash and bank balances

Total

Issued, subscribed & paid-up capital

Share Premium

Reserves

199.72%

100.00%

100.00%

552.96%

373.46%

1121.62%

90.16%

100.00%

296.50%

260.09%

347.33%

383.57%

382.75%

131.25%

100.00%

211.54%

511.82%

100.00%

100.00%

307.75%

195.54%

332.19%

0.00%

293.50%

100.00%

137.95%

251.46%

1000.00%

0.00%

195.62%

475.65%

0.00%

0.00%

231.04%

113.81%

100.00%

0.00%

82.81%

100.00%

239.98%

184.02%

100.00%

0.00%

127.60%

90.00%

0.00%

0.00%

121.20%

76.15%

0.00%

0.00%

992.53%

8.38%

252.87%

195.78%

100.00%

0.00%

2024 Rupees

 NON-CURRENT ASSETS

 CURRENT ASSETS

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL ASSETS
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

2023 2022

100.00%

100.00%

0.00%

0.00%

100.00%

100.00%

0.00%

0.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

255.23% 186.57% 189.46% 100.00%

100.00%

0.00%

257.21% 306.86% 485.67% 568.97% 100.00%

Total

Loan from Sponsors/Shareholders

Total

363.15%

0.00%

393.99%

100.00%

327.09%

156.07%

 194.30%

127.38%

100.00%

100.00%

363.15% 258.38% 237.52% 152.37% 100.00%

Deferred tax liability

 CURRENT LIABILITIES

Provision for gratuity

Long term financing

Total

100.00%

100.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

100.00% 100.00% 201.38% 164.64% 100.00%

Trade and Other Payables

Current portion of the bank finance

3448.66% 86.83% 10.11% 1216.72% 100.00%

100.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Total

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

3974.88% 86.83% 10.11% 1216.72% 100.00%

382.75% 255.23% 186.57% 189.46% 100.00%

2021

0.00% 100.00% 201.38% 164.64% 100.00%

Ratios and Analysis
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As on 30 June 2025
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2025

 GP

Net Profit

 Return on Equity

 Return on Assets

 Debt to Equity

Interest Coverage (Times)

 Current Ratio

Quick Ratio

Cash to Current Liabilities

49.97%

29.48%

27.85%

33.12%

1.82%

89.57

21.53

17.48

70.34%

66.28%

46.71%

46.52%

-

3,233.90

223.16

217.23

78.86%

51.08%

51.07%

32.95%

-

1,587.86

77.06

77.06

73.76%

20.28%

48.53%

17.86%

-

90,076.80

4.23

4.22

2024

Profitability Ratios

Capital Structure

Investment

Liquidity Ratio

2023 2022

100.00%

42.83%

20.11%

7.22%

-

567.31

26.31

24.44

3.14 35.88 22.58 0.95 4.58

EPS Basic

Dividend Payout - - - - -

2021

3.04 3.99 51.84 11.80 2.52

2025

 GP

Net Profit

 Return on Equity

 Return on Assets

Debt to Equity

Interest Coverage (Times)

 Current Ratio

Quick Ratio

Cash to Current Liabilities

49.96%

29.48%

27.85%

33.12%

1.82%

89.49

21.52

17.47

70.34%

66.26%

46.70%

46.48%

-

3,232.65

215.24

209.54

78.86%

51.08%

51.07%

32.95%

-

1,587.86

77.06

77.06

73.76%

20.28%

48.53%

17.86%

-

90,076.80

4.23

4.22

2024

Profitability Ratios

Capital Structure

Investment

Liquidity Ratio

2023 2022

100.00%

42.83%

20.11%

7.22%

-

567.31

26.31

24.44

3.14 34.92 22.58 0.95 4.58

EPS Basic

Dividend Payout - - - - -

2021

3.04 3.99 51.84 11.80 2.52

Key Ratios 
Unconsolidated 

Consolidated
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Statement of Value Addition

2025 2024

Rs. Rs. %%
Wealth generated
Revenue 1,342,929,037                   78.03% 441,761,852                      92.75%
Other Income 378,130,021                      21.97% 34,521,421                        7.25%

1,721,059,058                   100.00% 476,283,273                      100.00%
Wealth distributed
Cost of services & materials 898,166,352                      52.19% 131,017,772                      27.51%

To employees
Salaries and other related costs 41,311,453                        2.40% 33,606,073                        7.06%

To Government
Taxes -                                     - (1,024,940)                         -0.22%

To providers of Capital
To shareholders -                                     0.00% -                                     0.00%
Finance cost 3,307,056                          0.19% 79,577                               0.02%

3,307,056                          0.19% 79,577                               0.02%
To society
Donations 2,558,000                          0.15% 535,400                             0.11%

Retained in the business
Dep & Amortization 11,154,809                        0.65% 1,177,288                          0.25%
To provide for growth 
Retained in Business 764,561,388 %24.44                      65.27%

775,716,197                      45.07% 312,069,391                      65.52%

1,721,059,058                   100.00% 476,283,273                      100.00%

2025 2024

Cost of services & materials

To employees

To Govt

To providers of Capital

To society:

Retained in the business

Dep & Amortization

Cost of services & materials 52.19% 27.51%
To employees 2.40% 7.06%
To Government 0.00% -0.22%
To providers of Capital 0.19% 0.02%
To society 0.15% 0.11%
Retained in the business 44.42% 65.27%
Dep & Amortization 0.65% 0.25%

%
2025 2024

0.19%
0.15%

0.65%2.40%

52.19%

44.42%

27.51%

65.27%

7.06%

0.11%

0.25%
0.02%

301,298,013



DuPont Analysis
Return on 

Equity

 105.40%

 Ownership 
ratio

 94.49%

Total 
assets

 Rs. 2,409,204,866

Owners 
Equity

 Rs. 2,276,433,497

Current
Liabilities

Rs. 103,043,816

Non 
Current 

Liabilities

 Rs. 29,727,553

 Current 
Assets

 Rs. 2,218,999,713

Non
Current
Assets

 Rs. 190,205,153

 Total cost

  Rs. 671,877,116

Sales 

 Rs. 1,342,929,037

  Total 
liabilities

 Rs. 132,771,369

Total 
assets

 Rs. 2,409,204,866

  Sales 

  Rs. 1,342,929,037

 Net profit

  Rs. 671,051,921

 Owners 
Equity

   Rs. 2,276,433,497

Assets 
turnover

  1.79

 Net profit 
margin

 49.97%

 Return on 
assets

  89.6%
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
TO THE MEMBERS OF ZAREA LIMITED 
REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025 
 

 

Opinion 

We have audited the annexed unconsolidated financial statements of Zarea Limited (the Company), which comprise the 
unconsolidated statement of financial position as at June 30, 2025, and the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss and 
other comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement of changes in equity, the unconsolidated statement of cash flows 
for the year then ended, and notes to the unconsolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, 
to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purpose of the audit.  

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the unconsolidated statement 
of financial position, unconsolidated statement of profit or loss, the unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, the 
unconsolidated statement of changes in equity and the unconsolidated statement of cash flows together with the notes 
forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information 
required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view 
of the state of the Company’s affairs as at June 30, 2025 and of the profit and other comprehensive loss, the changes in 
equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.  

 

Basis for Opinion  

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan. Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Unconsolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the 
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion. 
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Key Audit Matters  

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 
unconsolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the 
unconsolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate 
opinion on these matters. 

 

Sr. Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter 

 

(i) 

 

Revenue recognition  

(refer notes 5.16 and 21 to the annexed unconsolidated 
financial statements)  

The principal activity of the Company is through 
platform usage fees through its e-commerce platform 
and also earns income from the direct purchase and 
sale of agriculture commodities. Revenue is 
recognized when performance obligation is satisfied 
by transferring control of promised goods to a 
customer.  

Revenue includes Sale of Agricultural Commodities 
which are mainly settled in cash. Hence, due to the risk 
associated with cash transactions, we consider 
revenue as a Key Audit Matter. 

 

Our audit procedures, amongst others, included the 
following: 

1. Understand the company’s revenue 
recognition policy and ensure it aligns with 
accounting standards. 

2. Ensure that the type and quantity of the 
agricultural commodity sold match the trading 
form, delivery authorization notes & customer 
acknowledgements. 

3. Confirm that the agreed-upon price as per 
trading form is applied to the sale of the 
commodity. 

4. Verified that delivery of the commodity is 
evidenced by proper documentation such as 
weighment slips. 

5. Ensure that the buyer has accepted the 
commodity or that delivery has been confirmed 
by the delivery acknowledgement. 

6. If the company sells agricultural commodities 
to related parties, ensure that the terms are 
consistent with market conditions, and verify 
that the transactions are at arm’s length. 

7. Traced a sample of sales invoices to payment 
receipts in the bank statements/cashbooks to 
verify that payments have been received for the 
recorded sales. 
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(ii) 

 

Short-term Investments  

(refer notes 5.7 and 9 to the annexed unconsolidated 
financial statements)  

The Company has made investments in shares through 
open positions in margin finance which are held at Fair 
Value Through Profit or Loss model. Any unrealized 
gains or losses arising from changes in fair value are 
recognized directly in the income statement. Upon 
disposal, the difference between the carrying amount 
and the sale proceeds is recognized in the income 
statement. 

These investments have to be verified through 
National Clearing Company of Pakistan (NCCPL) 
Report, which is a complex task. However, we were 
able to verify the open positions through the report, 
and therefore we consider this as a Key Audit Matter. 

 

 

 

Our audit procedures, amongst others, included the 
following: 

1. Obtained statement of accounts with 
brokerages. 

2. Sent confirmation to brokerages to confirm 
Zarea's holding. 

3. Verified rate per share from Pakistan Stock 
Exchange (PSX). 

4. Obtained Central Depository Company (CDC) 
Report to verify investments in shares. 

5. Obtained National Clearing Company of 
Pakistan (NCCPL) Report to verify open 
positions of margin finance. 

6. Obtained BOD approvals for investment. 

 

(iii) 

 

Trade & Other Receivables  

(refer notes 5.3 and 12 to the annexed unconsolidated 
financial statements)  

The Company has trade and other receivables 
recognized at transaction price less provision for 
doubtful debts. Provision is made for debts considered 
doubtful of recovery based on expected credit loss 
(ECL) model and debts considered irrecoverable are 
written off as and when identified. 

Debtors outstanding at year end were significant, 
presenting risk to cashflows. However, substantial 
portion of debtors is subsequently cleared, and 
therefore we consider this as a Key Audit Matter. 

 

Our audit procedures, amongst others, included the 
following: 

1. Send Debtor Confirmations (Direct External 
Confirmations). 

2. Test Subsequent Receipts through subsequent 
ledger & subsequent bank statements. 

3. Review Credit Notes and Sales Returns After 
Year-End. 

4. Examine Supporting Documentations. 
5. Evaluate Provision for Doubtful Debts. 
6. Checked that amounts are recorded in relevant 

party's ledgers 
7. Payments received verified through 

subsequent bank statements. 
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Information Other than the Unconsolidated and Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon 

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the 
annual report, but does not include the unconsolidated and consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s reports 
thereon.  

Our opinion on the unconsolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any 
form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the unconsolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the unconsolidated financial 
statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work 
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report 
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Unconsolidated Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the unconsolidated financial statements in accordance 
with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX 
of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of unconsolidated 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  

In preparing the unconsolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis 
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so.  

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the unconsolidated financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as 
applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error 
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these unconsolidated financial statements.  

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the unconsolidated financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 
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 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Company’s internal control. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by management. 

 
 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the 

audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the unconsolidated 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the 
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the 
Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 
 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the unconsolidated financial statements, including the 

disclosures, and whether the unconsolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events 
in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 
 

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on 
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.  

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in 
the audit of the unconsolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe 
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in 
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse 
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication 
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion: 

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017); 
b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of 

changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity 
with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns; 

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the  
purpose of the Company’s business; and  

d) no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980). 
  

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Shahid Mohsin Shaikh (FCA). 

 

Signature:  

 

Lahore 

 

Date: September 26, 2025 

 

UDIN: AR202510575v98M4huVk 
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Notes 
 June
2025

 June
2024 

 June
2023 

 Restated  Restated 

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property and equipments 6 143,169,293          25,891,413          12,239,641          
Intangible Assets 7 44,054,984            22,058,377          4,309,771            
Long term Security Deposits 2,230,875              2,230,875 -                                   
Investment in Subsidiary 8 750,000                 750,000 -                                      

190,205,153          50,930,665          16,549,412          
CURRENT ASSETS
Short term Investment 9 792,460,397          70,653,024          36,131,603          
Advances for Commodities 10 218,179,017          241,982,657        72,845,210          
Stock in Trade 11 378,336,417          -                       -                       
Trade and Other receivables 12 466,997,833          157,503,596        53,663,495          
Advances & Prepayments 13 39,962,006            15,364,620 -                                 
Cash and bank balances 14 323,064,043          93,013,441          67,426,298          

2,218,999,713       578,517,338        230,066,606        

TOTAL ASSETS 2,409,204,866       629,448,003        246,616,018        

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share capital
Authorized capital
400,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs. 1/- each 400,000,000          300,000,000        25,000,000          

Issued, subscribed & paid-up capital
262,500,000 ordinary shares of Rs.1/- each fully paid in cash 15 262,500,000          200,000,000        20,000,000          
Share Premium 916,025,952          -                       -                       
Reserves 1,097,907,545       426,855,624        139,105,574        

2,276,433,497       626,855,624        159,105,574        
Loan from Sponsors/Shareholders 16 -                         -                       83,500,000          

2,276,433,497       626,855,624        242,605,574        
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Deferred tax liability -                         -                       1,024,940            
Provision for gratuity 17 1,995,000              -                       -                       
Long term bank �nance 18 27,732,553            -                       -                       

29,727,553            -                       1,024,940            
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and Other Payables 19 89,402,261            2,592,379            2,985,504            
Current portion of the bank �nance 18 13,641,555            -                       -                       

103,043,816          2,592,379            2,985,504            

668,402,904,2SEITILIBAIL DNA YTIUQE LATOT        629,448,003        246,616,018        

Contingencies and Commitments 20 -                         -                       -                       

The annexed notes 1 to 40 form an integral part of these �nancial statements.

DIRECTORCHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER         CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

------------------------------------Rs------------------------------------

ZAREA LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at June 30, 2025
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Notes 
 June
2025

 June
2024 

Revenue 22 1,342,929,037        441,761,852           

Cost of Sales 23 (898,166,352)         (131,017,772)         

586,267,444tiforp ssorG            310,744,080           

Administrative and General Expenses 24 (73,219,897)           (24,640,049)           

Selling and Distribution Expenses 25 (75,313,832)           (28,759,730)           

Other Income 26 378,130,021           34,521,421             

Finance Costs 27 (3,307,056)             (79,577)                  

129,150,176noitaxat erofeb tiforP            291,786,145           

Taxation 28 -                         1,024,940               

129,150,176noitaxat retfa tiforp teN            292,811,085           

-emocnI evisneherpmoC rehtO                          -                         

129,150,176emocnI evisneherpmoC latoT            292,811,085           

Basic & Diluted earning per share 35 3.04                        3.99                        

The annexed notes 1 to 40 form an integral part of these �nancial statements.

DIRECTORCHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

ZAREA LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the Year ended June 30, 2025

'------------------------------------Rs------------------------------------

Revenue Reserves Capital Reserves

 Particulars 
 Unappropriated

 pro�t 

 Unrealized (loss)/gain 
on investment at fair 

value through OCI 

000,000,02 3202 ,1 yluJ ta sa ecnalaB -                                       83,500,000       109,894,307 -                                                213,394,307           

E�ect of Restatement -                          -                          -                    29,211,267 -                                                  29,211,267             

Balance as at July 1, 2023 (Restated) 20,000,000 -                                       83,500,000       139,105,574 -                                                242,605,574           

Pro�t for the year -                          -                          -                    292,811,085           -                                     292,811,085           
Other Comprehensive income -                          -                          -                    -                          -                                     -                          
Incremental Depreciation (Net of Tax) -                          -                          -                    -                          -                                     -                          
Loan from Shareholders / Sponsors -                          -                          96,500,000       -                          -                                     96,500,000             
Issuance of shares 180,000,000           -                          (180,000,000)    -                          -                                     -                          
Share Issuance Expense -                          -                          -                    (5,061,035)              -                                     (5,061,035)              

Balance as at June 30, 2024 20,000,000             -                          -                    426,855,624           -                                     626,855,624           

Balance as at July 1, 2024 200,000,000           -                          -                    426,855,624           626,855,624           

Pro�t for the year -                          -                          -                    671,051,921           -                                     671,051,921           
Other Comprehensive income -                          -                          -                    -                          -                                     -                          
Issuance of shares 62,500,000             967,050,250           -                    -                          -                                     1,029,550,250        
Share Issuance Expense -                          (51,024,298)            -                    -                          -                                     (51,024,298)            
Balance as at June 30, 2025 262,500,000           916,025,952           -                    1,097,907,545        -                                     2,276,433,497        

The annexed notes 1 to 40 form an integral part of these �nancial statements.

DIRECTOR

------------------------------------Rs------------------------------------

RECIFFO LAICNANIF FEIHCRECIFFO EVITUCEXE FEIHC

ZAREA  LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the Year ended June 30, 2025

 Issued, 
subscribed and 
paid-up capital 

 Share Premium 
 Loan from 

Shareholders/ 
Sponsors 

 Total Equity 
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Notes 
 June
2025

 June
2024 

Revenue 22 1,342,929,037        441,761,852           

Cost of Sales 23 (898,166,352)         (131,017,772)         

586,267,444tiforp ssorG            310,744,080           

Administrative and General Expenses 24 (73,219,897)           (24,640,049)           

Selling and Distribution Expenses 25 (75,313,832)           (28,759,730)           

Other Income 26 378,130,021           34,521,421             

Finance Costs 27 (3,307,056)             (79,577)                  

129,150,176noitaxat erofeb tiforP            291,786,145           

Taxation 28 -                         1,024,940               

129,150,176noitaxat retfa tiforp teN            292,811,085           

-emocnI evisneherpmoC rehtO                          -                         

129,150,176emocnI evisneherpmoC latoT            292,811,085           

Basic & Diluted earning per share 35 3.04                        3.99                        

The annexed notes 1 to 40 form an integral part of these �nancial statements.

DIRECTORCHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

ZAREA LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the Year ended June 30, 2025

'------------------------------------Rs------------------------------------

Revenue Reserves Capital Reserves

 Particulars 
 Unappropriated

 pro�t 

 Unrealized (loss)/gain 
on investment at fair 

value through OCI 

000,000,02 3202 ,1 yluJ ta sa ecnalaB -                                       83,500,000       109,894,307 -                                                213,394,307           

E�ect of Restatement -                          -                          -                    29,211,267 -                                                  29,211,267             

Balance as at July 1, 2023 (Restated) 20,000,000 -                                       83,500,000       139,105,574 -                                                242,605,574           

Pro�t for the year -                          -                          -                    292,811,085           -                                     292,811,085           
Other Comprehensive income -                          -                          -                    -                          -                                     -                          
Incremental Depreciation (Net of Tax) -                          -                          -                    -                          -                                     -                          
Loan from Shareholders / Sponsors -                          -                          96,500,000       -                          -                                     96,500,000             
Issuance of shares 180,000,000           -                          (180,000,000)    -                          -                                     -                          
Share Issuance Expense -                          -                          -                    (5,061,035)              -                                     (5,061,035)              

Balance as at June 30, 2024 20,000,000             -                          -                    426,855,624           -                                     626,855,624           

Balance as at July 1, 2024 200,000,000           -                          -                    426,855,624           626,855,624           

Pro�t for the year -                          -                          -                    671,051,921           -                                     671,051,921           
Other Comprehensive income -                          -                          -                    -                          -                                     -                          
Issuance of shares 62,500,000             967,050,250           -                    -                          -                                     1,029,550,250        
Share Issuance Expense -                          (51,024,298)            -                    -                          -                                     (51,024,298)            
Balance as at June 30, 2025 262,500,000           916,025,952           -                    1,097,907,545        -                                     2,276,433,497        

The annexed notes 1 to 40 form an integral part of these �nancial statements.

DIRECTOR

------------------------------------Rs------------------------------------

RECIFFO LAICNANIF FEIHCRECIFFO EVITUCEXE FEIHC

ZAREA  LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the Year ended June 30, 2025

 Issued, 
subscribed and 
paid-up capital 

 Share Premium 
 Loan from 

Shareholders/ 
Sponsors 

 Total Equity 
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Notes June
2025

June
2024

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Pro�t before taxation 671,051,921               291,786,145           

Adjustment for non-cash items

Depreciation & Amortization 11,154,809                 2,613,621               

Capital Gain (359,206,932)             6,974,809               

Unrealized  (Gain) / loss on short term investments (18,377,485)               (41,496,230)            

Provision for gratuity 1,995,000                   -                          

Finance costs 3,307,056                   79,576                    

963,429,903segnahc latipac gnikrow erofeb tiforp gnitarepO                259,957,921           

Working capital changes

(Increase) / decrease in current assets

Trade and Other Receivables (309,494,237)             (103,840,100)          

Advances, Deposits and Prepayments (24,597,386)               (15,364,620)            

Advances for Commodities 23,803,640                 (169,137,447)          

Stock in Trade (378,336,417)             -                          

Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities

Trade and Other Payables 83,818,621                 2,291,737               

Income Tax Paid (609,255)                    (2,684,860)              

Finance Costs paid (2,800,365)                 (79,577)                   

(608,215,398)             (288,814,867)          

)920,192,892(seitivitca gnitarepo  morf swolf hsac teN              (28,856,946)            

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Property, Vehicle and Equipment (125,325,896)             (15,414,001)            

Intangible Assets (25,103,400)               (18,600,000)            

Short term Investments (344,222,956)             -                          

Long term security Deposits -                             (2,230,875)              

Investment in Subsidiary -                             (750,000)                 

)252,256,494(seitivitca gnitsevni morf swolf hsac teN              (36,994,876)            

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase in share Capital 62,500,000                 180,000,000           
Share Premium 967,050,250               -                          
Loan from Sponsors / Shareholders -                             (83,500,000)            
Bank Finance 44,467,931                 
Share Issuance Expense (51,024,298)               (5,061,035)              

388,399,220,1seitivitca gnicnanif  morf swolf hsac teN             91,438,965             

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 230,050,602               25,587,143             

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the Year 93,013,441                 67,426,298             

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR 14 323,064,043               93,013,441             

The annexed notes 1 to 40 form an integral part of these �nancial statements.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER DIRECTOR

ZAREA LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Year ended June 2025

------------------------------------Rs------------------------------------
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1 The Company and its Operations

2

3 Basis of Preparation

3.1 Statement of compliance

-

-

3.2 Basis of measurement

3.3 Functional and presentation currency

3.4

The Company was incorporated in Pakistan on 16 September , 2020 as a private limited company, under the Companies Act, 2017
having registered o�ce at 6011, Delta-6 NASTP, Abid Majeed Road Cantt. Lahore Pakistan. The company converted into Public
Limited Company on April 15, 2024 and listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX) on 28 February 2025 through Initial Public
O�er (IPO).

The company's registered o�ce is situated at 6011-Delta-6, NASTP, Abid Majeed Road, Lahore Cantt.

These �nancial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan.
The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

The company operates an online marketplace that connects buyers and sellers through a proprietary software platform. It generates
revenue primarily through platform usage fees through its e-commerce platform and from the direct purchase and sale of
agriculture commodities. The company also earns pro�t through its short-term investments in shares, margin-�nance open
positions and mutual fund units. The Company utilizes technology to streamline operations and improve user experience across its
platform. It is committed to environmental, social, and governance (ESG) principles, with a focus on responsible business
practices, operational integrity, ethical governance, and regulatory compliance.

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as noti�ed
under the Companies Act, 2017; and

The signi�cant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these �nancial statements are set out below:

provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017

These �nancial statements have been prepared under 'historical cost convention' except as otherwise stated in respective accounting
policies notes. 

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 di�er from the required of IFRS, the provisions of and
directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed in preparation of these unconsolidated �nancial statements.

Items included in the �nancial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
Company operates. These �nancial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Company’s functional currency

Signi�cant Transactions And Events A�ecting The Company's Financial Position And Performance

During the year the company got itself registered on Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX) on 28 February 2025 through Initial Public 
O�er (IPO).

New and amended standards and interpretations

There are certain amendments to the accounting and reporting standards which became applicable to the Company on July 1, 2024.
However, these amendments do not have any signi�cant impact on the Company’s �nancial statements.

The following standards and amendments will be e�ective for accounting periods, beginning on or after the date mentioned against
each of them:

ZAREA  LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year ended 30 June 2025
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ZAREA  LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year ended 30 June 2025

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

4 CRITICAL ASSUMPTIONS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation o�nancial statements in conformity with the Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that a�ect the
application of policies and reported amount of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis of making the judgments about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may di�er from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised, if
the revision a�ects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision a�ects both current and future
periods.

IFRS 17 ‘Insurance Contracts’ establishes the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure o�nsurance
contracts within the scope of the Standard. The objective of IFRS 17 is to ensure that an entity provides relevant information that
faithfully represents those contracts. This information gives a basis for users o�nancial statements to assess the e�ect that
insurance contracts have on the entity’s �nancial position, �nancial performance and cash �ows. SECP vide its SRO 1715(I)/2023
dated November 21, 2023 has directed that IFRS 17 shall be followed for the period commencing January 1, 2026 by companies
engaged in insurance / takaful and re-insurance / re-takaful business.

Amendment to IFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures’ and IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ - Contracts Referencing Nature-
dependent Electricity (e�ective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2026 with early adoption available).
These amendments change the 'own use' and hedge accounting requirements of IFRS 9 and include targeted disclosure
requirements to IFRS 7. These amendments apply only to ‘contracts referencing nature-dependent electricity’ that expose an entity
to variability in the underlying amount of electricity because the source o�ts generation depends on uncontrollable natural
conditions (such as the weather).

Amendment to IAS 21 ‘The E�ects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates’, - Lack of Exchangeability (e�ective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2025 with early adoption available). This amendment clari�es that a currency is
exchangeable when an entity is able to exchange that currency for the other currency through markets or exchange mechanisms that
create enforceable rights and obligations without undue delay at the measurement date and for a speci�ed purpose; a currency is
not exchangeable into the other currency if an entity can only obtain an insigni�cant amount of the other currency.

Other than the aforesaid standards and amendments, IASB has also issued the following standards and interpretation, which have
not been noti�ed locally or declared exempt by the SECP as at June 30, 2025:

IFRIC 12 (Service Concession Arrangements)

IFRS 19 (Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures)

IFRS 18 (Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements)

IFRS 1 (First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards)

The above standards and amendments to approved accounting standards have not been early adopted by the Company and are not
likely to have any material impact on the Company's �nancial statements.

Amendment to IFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures’ and IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ - Classi�cation and Measurement
of Financial Instruments (e�ective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2026 with early adoption
available). These amendments clarify the requirements for the timing of recognition and derecognition of some �nancial assets and
liabilities, with a new exception for some �nancial liabilities settled through an electronic cash transfer system; clarify and add
further guidance for assessing whether a �nancial asset meets the solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) criterion; add
new disclosures for certain instruments with contractual terms that can change cash �ows (such as some instruments with features
linked to the achievement of environment, social and governance (ESG) targets); and make updates to the disclosures for equity
instruments designated at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI).

In July 2024, the IASB issued ‘Annual improvements to IFRS – Volume 11’ (Amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 7, IFRS 9, IFRS 10
and IAS 7). The amendments are e�ective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2026 with early adoption
available
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ZAREA  LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year ended 30 June 2025

5 Summary of signi�cant accounting policies

5.1 Property, plant and Equipment

(a)

(b)

(c)

Subsequent costs 

(d)

5.2

Estimates

Estimates with respect to residual values, depreciable lives and pattern o�ow of economic bene�ts are based on the analysis of the
management of the Company. Further, the management reviews the value of the assets for possible impairments on an annual basis.
Any change in the estimates in the future might a�ect the carrying amount of respective item of property and equipment, with a
corresponding e�ect on the depreciation charge and impairment

The signi�cant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these �nancial statements are set out below: 

Intangible assets with �nite lives are amortized over the useful economic life on straight line basis and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortization year and the amortization method for
an intangible asset with a �nite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting year . Changes in the expected useful
life or the expected pattern of consumption o�uture economic bene�ts embodied in the asset are considered to modify the
amortization Year or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortization expense on
intangible assets with �nite lives is recognized in the statement of pro�t or loss in the expense category that is consistent with the
function of the intangible assets.

Depreciation is charged to pro�t or loss using the straight line method whereby the cost less residual value of an operating asset is
written o� over its estimated useful life. Depreciation is charged on additions from the date o�ts acquisition. The rates of
depreciation are stated in note 6 to the �nancial statements. The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, at each
�nancial year end, and adjusted if impact on depreciation is signi�cant.

Disposal

An item of property, plant and equipment and any signi�cant part initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal (e, at the date
the recipient obtains control) or when no future economic bene�ts are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss on
disposal or retirement of an asset represented by the di�erence between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is
recognized as an income or expense in the year in which it is incurred.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic bene�ts associated with the item will �ow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are charged to pro�t or loss during the year in which they are incurred.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost o�ntangible assets acquired in a business
combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either �nite or inde�nite.

Impairment

Owned assets

Intangible assets

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any identi�ed impairment loss.

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that property and equipment may be impaired. If such
indication exists, the carrying amount of such assets are reviewed to assess whether they are recorded in excess of their recoverable
amount. Where carrying values exceed the respective recoverable amount, assets are written down to their recoverable amounts and
the resulting impairment loss is recognized in pro�t or loss currently. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. Where an impairment loss is recognized, the depreciation charge is adjusted in the future Years
to allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount over its estimated useful life.
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For the Year ended 30 June 2025

(a)

5.3 Trade and Other Receivables

Expected Credit Losses

5.4 Advances, Deposits and Prepayments

5.5 Provisions

5.6 Investment in Subsidiary

5.7 Investment  held for trading

5.8

These are stated at cost and balances considered bad and irrecoverable are written o� when identi�ed.

Expected credit losses are calculated as a probability weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present
value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the di�erence between cash �ows due to the Company in accordance with the contract and cash
�ows that the Company expects to receive). 

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost in the unconsolidated �nancial statements of the Company. The cost of an
investment is measured as the fair value of the consideration transferred, including any transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the investment. Subsequent to initial recognition, investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. The carrying amounts o�nvestments are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An Impairment loss is recognized in the unconsolidated statement of
pro�t or loss when the carrying amount of the investment exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
the investment's fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. Dividends received from subsidiaries are recognized in the
unconsolidated statement of pro�t or loss when the Company's right to receive the payment is established. Where the Company
disposes of part or all o�ts investment in subsidiary, the di�erence between the carrying amount of the investment and the
consideration received is recognized in the unconsolidated statement of pro�t or loss.

Investments in shares held for trading are initially recognized at cost and subsequently measured at fair value through pro�t or loss
(FVTPL) as per IFRS 9. These investments are acquired with the intention of short-term pro�t-taking, and any unrealized gains or
losses arising from changes in fair value are recognized directly in the income statement. Transaction costs related to the
acquisition of these investments are expensed as incurred. Upon disposal, the di�erence between the carrying amount and the sale
proceeds is recognized in the income statement. Dividends from these investments are recognized in pro�t or loss when the
company’s right to receive payment is established.

Stock in Trade

Stocks are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value except those in transit which are valued at invoice value including 
other charges, if any, incurred thereon. Cost of inventory is based on weighted average cost.

Intangible assets with inde�nite useful lives are not amortized, but are tested for impairment annually, either individually or at the
cash-generating unit level. The assessment o�nde�nite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the inde�nite life continues
to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from inde�nite to �nite is made on a prospective basis.

An intangible asset is derecognized upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when no future economic
bene�ts are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising upon derecognition of the asset (calculated as the di�erence
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of pro�t or loss.

Trade receivables and other receivables are recognized at transaction price less an allowance for impairment. Trade debts and other
receivables are carried at original transaction price. Provision is made for debts considered doubtful of recovery based on expected
credit loss (ECL) model of IFRS 9 and debts considered irrecoverable are written o� as and when identi�ed.

Derecognition

Provisions are recognized in the statement o�nancial position when the Company has a legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events and it is probable that out�ow of resources embodying economic bene�ts will be required to settle the obligation and
reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each statement o�nancial position date and adjusted to
re�ect current best estimate. Where out�ow of resources embodying economic bene�ts is not probable, contingent liability is
disclosed, unless the possibility of out�ow is remote.
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5.9 Cash and Cash Equivalents

5.10 Trade and Other Payables

5.11 Gratuity

5.12

5.13

5.14

5.15

-

-

5.16

(a)

(b)

there is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be con�rmed only by the occurrence or non
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company, or

there is present obligation that arises from past events but it is not probable that an out�ow of resources embodying economic
bene�ts will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with su�cient reliability.

Basic and diluted earning per share
The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the
pro�t or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the year. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the pro�t or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the e�ects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the services in the ordinary course of the
Company's activities. Revenue is recognized as follows:

Platform Usage Revenue

Sale of Agriculture Commodities

Trade payables and other payables are recognized at fair value plus directly attributable cost, if  any.

Cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost in the statement o�nancial position. For the purpose of cash �ow statement cash and
cash equivalent consists of cash in hand and balances with banks and short term borrowings under markup arrangement, saving and
deposit accounts.

This is the platform usage fee charged by the company for allowing access to the application. The Company charges a platform
usage fee of each transaction. The company recognized revenue when order is delivered at customer premises.

The Company reviews the carrying amount of stock in trade on a regular basis and as appropriate, these are written down to its net
realizable value or provision is made for obsolescence if there is any change in usage pattern and / or physical form of related
inventory. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less costs necessary to be incurred in
order to make sale.

Related party transactions

The company enters into transactions with related parties on arm's length basis. Prices for transactions with related parties are
determined using admissible valuation methods, except in extremely rare circumstances where, subject to approval of the board of
directors it is in the interest of the company to do so.

The Company has introduced a gratuity scheme e�ective FY 2025, payable to all permanent employees who complete at least six
months of service, based on their last drawn gross salary at the time of cessation of employment. The gratuity liability will be
calculated on the basis of completed service and last gross salary, recognized as an expense in the pro�t and loss account and
recorded as a provision under non-current liabilities, with adjustments made annually for changes in salaries and employee
turnover.

A contingent liability is disclosed when:
Contingent liabilities

Dividend and appropriation

Dividend is recognized as liability in period in which it is declared. Appropriations of pro�t are re�ected in the statement of
changes in equity in the period in which appropriations are approved.
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5.17

5.18

-

-

-

-

IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

the contractual terms of the �nancial assets give rise on speci�ed date to cash �ows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

the �nancial asset is held within a business model whose objective achieved by both collecting contractual cash �ows and selling
the �nancial assets; and

Initial recognition

All �nancial assets and liabilities are initially measured at cost which is the fair value of the consideration given or received. These
are subsequently measured at fair value or amortized cost as the case may be.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortized cost:

the �nancial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold �nancial assets in order to collect contractual cash
�ows; and

the contractual terms of the �nancial assets give rise on speci�ed date to cash �ows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Classi�cation of �nancial assets

The Company classi�es its �nancial instruments in the following categories:
 - at fair value through pro�t or loss ("FVTPL")
 - at fair value through other comprehensive income ("FVTOCI"), or
 - at amortized cost.

The Company determines the classi�cations o�nancial assets at initial recognition. The classi�cation o�nstruments (other than
equity instruments) is driven by the Company's business model for managing the �nancial assets and their contractual cash �ow
characteristics.

Income tax expense is recognized in the statement of pro�t and loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity (if any), in which case the tax amounts are recognized directly in other comprehensive

income or equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year based on taxable pro�ts, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Income tax comprises of current tax and deferred tax. 

Taxation

Current Tax

Revenue is recognized to the extent it is probable that economic bene�ts will �ow to the Company and the revenue can be
measured reliably. Revenue from sale of agriculture commodities is recognized when the signi�cant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the customers, typically at the point of delivery.

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet method for all temporary di�erences at the reporting date between taxbase of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for �nancial reporting purposes. Deferred tax liability is recognized for all taxable
temporary di�erences and deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary di�erences, carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses, if any, to the extent that it is probable that future taxable pro�t will be available against which the
deductible temporary di�erences, carry-forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the liability is settled based on tax rates that
have been enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred Tax
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By default, all other �nancial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL.

- bank balances;

- due from related parties;

- deposits; and

- loan and advances

Loss allowance for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to life time ECLs. Life time ECLs are the ECLs that
result from all possible default events over the expected life of a �nancial instrument. Twelve months ECLs are portion of ECL that
result from default events that are possible within twelve months after the reporting date. ECLs are a probability weighted estimate
of credit losses. Credit losses are measured at the present value of all cash short falls (i.e. the di�erence between cash �ows due to
the entity in accordance with the contract and cash �ows that the company expects to receive).

The gross carrying amount of a �nancial asset is written o� when the Company has no reasonable expectation of recovering a
�nancial asset in entirety or a portion thereof.

Classi�cation of �nancial liabilities

The Company classi�es its �nancial liabilities in the following categories:
 -at fair value through pro�t or loss ("FVTPL"), or
 -at amortized cost

Financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost, unless they are required to be measured at FVTPL (such as instrument held for
trading or derivatives) or the Company has opted to measure them at FVTPL.

Subsequent measurement

 i) Financial assets at FVTOCI

Elected investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are initially recognized at fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently,
they are measured at fair value, with gains or losses arising from changes in fair value being recognized in unconsolidated
statement of other comprehensive income.

Impairment of �nancial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowance for Expected Credit Loss (ECL) on �nancial assets measured at amortized cost and
FVTOCI at an amount equal to life time ECLs except for the �nancial assets in which there is no signi�cant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition or �nancial assets which are determine to have low credit risk at the reporting date, in which case twelve
months' ECL is recorded. The following were either determined to have low or there was no credit risk since initial recognition and
at the reporting date:

 ii) Financial assets and liabilities at amortized cost

Financial assets and liabilities at amortized cost are initially recognized at fair value, and subsequently carried at amortized cost,
and in the case of �nancial assets, less any impairment.

 iii) Financial assets and liabilities at FVTPL

Financial assets and liabilities carried at FVTPL are initially recorded at fair value and transaction costs are expensed in the
unconsolidated statement of pro�t or loss. Realized and unrealized gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of
�nancial assets and liabilities held at FVTPL are included in the unconsolidated statement of pro�t or loss in the period in which
they arise.

Where the management has opted to recognize a �nancial liability at FVTPL, any changes associated with the Company's own
credit risk will be recognized in other comprehensive income/(loss). Currently, there are no �nancial liabilities designated at
FVTPL
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 ii)  Financial liabilities

The Company derecognizes �nancial liabilities only when its obligations under the �nancial liabilities are discharged, cancelled or
expired. The di�erence between the carrying amount of the �nancial liabilities derecognized and the consideration paid and
payable, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognized in unconsolidated statement of pro�t or loss
account. The Company's �nancial liabilities include long term �nances, trade and other payables, accrued mark-up and short term
borrowing.

De-recognition

i)  Financial assets
The Company derecognizes �nancial assets only when the contractual rights to cash �ows from the �nancial assets expire or when
it transfer the �nancial assets and substantially all the associated risks and reward of ownership to another entity. On derecognition
o�nancial assets measured at amortized cost, the di�erence between the assets carrying value and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognized in unconsolidated statement of pro�t or loss. In addition, on derecognition of an investment
in a debt instrument classi�ed as at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments revaluation
reserve is reclassi�ed to unconsolidated statement of pro�t or loss. In contrast, on derecognition of an investment in equity
instrument which the Company has elected on initial recognition to measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is not reclassi�ed to unconsolidated statement of pro�t or loss, but is
transferred to unconsolidated statement of changes in equity.

ZAREA  LIMITED
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6 Property & Equipment

2025
Computers O�ce Equipment Furniture Vehicle Total

Cost
As at July 01, 2024 12,171,960       7,931,931                9,615,755         -                    29,719,646     
Additions 8,610,000         14,188,500              10,719,560       91,807,836       125,325,896   
Disposals -                    -                           -                    -                    -                  
As at June 30, 2025 20,781,960       22,120,431              20,335,315       91,807,836       155,045,542   

Accumulated depreciation
As at July 01, 2024 2,402,444         687,450                   738,339            -                    3,828,233       
For the year 1,769,725         1,550,913                1,759,634         2,967,743         8,048,015       
Adjustment -                    -                           -                    -                    -                  
As at June 30, 2025 4,172,168         2,238,363                2,497,973         2,967,743         11,876,248     

Net book value as at June 30, 2025 16,609,792       19,882,067              17,837,342       88,840,093       143,169,293   
Depreciation rate % per annum 10.0% 10.0% 10.0% 10.0%

2024
Computers O�ce Equipment Furniture Vehicle Total

Cost
As at July 01, 2023 7,951,020         3,454,400                2,900,225         -                    14,305,645     
Additions 4,220,940         4,477,531                6,715,530         -                    15,414,001     
Disposals -                    -                           -                    -                    -                  
As at June 30, 2024 12,171,960       7,931,931                9,615,755         -                    29,719,646     

Accumulated depreciation
As at July 01, 2023 1,488,681         215,904                   361,421            -                    2,066,006       
For the year 913,762            471,547                   376,918            -                    1,762,227       
Adjustment -                    -                           -                    -                    -                  
As at June 30, 2024 2,402,444         687,450                   738,339            -                    3,828,233       

Net book value as at June 30, 2024 9,769,516         7,244,480                8,877,416         -                    25,891,413     
Depreciation rate % per annum 10.0% 10.0% 10.0% 10.0%
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For the Year ended June 30, 2025

6 Property & Equipment

2025
Computers O�ce Equipment Furniture Vehicle Total

Cost
As at July 01, 2024 12,171,960       7,931,931                9,615,755         -                    29,719,646     
Additions 8,610,000         14,188,500              10,719,560       91,807,836       125,325,896   
Disposals -                    -                           -                    -                    -                  
As at June 30, 2025 20,781,960       22,120,431              20,335,315       91,807,836       155,045,542   

Accumulated depreciation
As at July 01, 2024 2,402,444         687,450                   738,339            -                    3,828,233       
For the year 1,769,725         1,550,913                1,759,634         2,967,743         8,048,015       
Adjustment -                    -                           -                    -                    -                  
As at June 30, 2025 4,172,168         2,238,363                2,497,973         2,967,743         11,876,248     

Net book value as at June 30, 2025 16,609,792       19,882,067              17,837,342       88,840,093       143,169,293   
Depreciation rate % per annum 10.0% 10.0% 10.0% 10.0%

2024
Computers O�ce Equipment Furniture Vehicle Total

Cost
As at July 01, 2023 7,951,020         3,454,400                2,900,225         -                    14,305,645     
Additions 4,220,940         4,477,531                6,715,530         -                    15,414,001     
Disposals -                    -                           -                    -                    -                  
As at June 30, 2024 12,171,960       7,931,931                9,615,755         -                    29,719,646     

Accumulated depreciation
As at July 01, 2023 1,488,681         215,904                   361,421            -                    2,066,006       
For the year 913,762            471,547                   376,918            -                    1,762,227       
Adjustment -                    -                           -                    -                    -                  
As at June 30, 2024 2,402,444         687,450                   738,339            -                    3,828,233       

Net book value as at June 30, 2024 9,769,516         7,244,480                8,877,416         -                    25,891,413     
Depreciation rate % per annum 10.0% 10.0% 10.0% 10.0%
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stessa elbignatnI7

Particulars

Rate
% age

Software 23,170,378   25,103,400   -             48,273,778   10 1,112,001    3,106,793      -                 4,218,794     44,054,984           
23,170,378   25,103,400   -             48,273,778 100,211,1       3,106,793      -                 4,218,794     44,054,984           

Particulars

Rate
% age

Software 4,570,378     18,600,000   -             23,170,378   10 260,607       851,394         -                 1,112,001     22,058,377           
4,570,378     18,600,000   -             23,170,378 706,062          851,394         -                 1,112,001     22,058,377           

ZAREA  LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year ended June 2025

2025
noitazitromATSOC  Net book value 

as at June 30, 
2025 

 As at July 
01, 2024 

 Additions  Disposals 
 As at June 

30, 2025 
 As at July 

01, 2024 
 For the year  Adjustment 

 As at June 
30, 2025 

R   u   p   e   e   s

 Adjustment 
 As at June 

30, 2024 
R   u   p   e   e   s R   u   p   e   e   s

2024
noitazitromATSOC  Net book value 

as at June 30, 
2024 

 As at July 
01, 2023 

 Additions  Disposals 
 As at June 

30, 2024 
 As at July 

01, 2023 
 For the year 

R   u   p   e   e   s
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stessa elbignatnI7

Particulars

Rate
% age

Software 23,170,378   25,103,400   -             48,273,778   10 1,112,001    3,106,793      -                 4,218,794     44,054,984           
23,170,378   25,103,400   -             48,273,778 100,211,1       3,106,793      -                 4,218,794     44,054,984           

Particulars

Rate
% age

Software 4,570,378     18,600,000   -             23,170,378   10 260,607       851,394         -                 1,112,001     22,058,377           
4,570,378     18,600,000   -             23,170,378 706,062          851,394         -                 1,112,001     22,058,377           

ZAREA  LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year ended June 2025

2025
noitazitromATSOC  Net book value 

as at June 30, 
2025 

 As at July 
01, 2024 

 Additions  Disposals 
 As at June 

30, 2025 
 As at July 

01, 2024 
 For the year  Adjustment 

 As at June 
30, 2025 

R   u   p   e   e   s

 Adjustment 
 As at June 

30, 2024 
R   u   p   e   e   s R   u   p   e   e   s

2024
noitazitromATSOC  Net book value 

as at June 30, 
2024 

 As at July 
01, 2023 

 Additions  Disposals 
 As at June 

30, 2024 
 As at July 

01, 2023 
 For the year 

R   u   p   e   e   s

8 Investments in Subsidiary
 2025
June 

2024
June

Investment in Subsidiary - At cost 750,000                  750,000                
750,000                  750,000                

8.1 This represents 75% shareholding in Zarea Agri Tech (Pvt.) Ltd.

9 Investment held for trading

 2025
June 

2024
June

 2025
June 

2024
June

1.9serahS ni tnemtsevnI 391,238,773   58,217,271          421,083,823            70,653,024           

2.9sdnuF lautuM ni tnemtsevnI 382,844,139   -                      371,376,575            -                       

774,082,912   58,217,271          792,460,397            70,653,024           

9.1

9.2

9.3

10 Advances for Commodities
 2025
June 

2024
June

Advances for Commodities  ( Unsecured - Considered Good ) 218,179,017            241,982,657         

218,179,017            241,982,657         

10.1 The Company made Advances to the suppliers of Agri-Commodities to secure its supply as these Agri-commodities are seasonal commodities.

11 Stock in Trade
 2025
June 

2024
June

Inventory-Agri Biomass 378,336,417            -                       

378,336,417            -                       

11.1

12 Trade and Other Receivables
 2025
June 

2024
June

Receivable from Subsidiary 100,000                  100,000                

Trade Receivables ( Unsecured - Considered Good ) 12.1 469,642,896            157,403,596         

Less: Provision for doubtful debts 12.2 (2,745,063)              -                       

466,997,833            157,503,596         

This represents an investment of 20,169,805 units (2024: Nil units) in money market mutual funds, with a cost amounting to Rs. 382,844,139 (2024: 
Rs. Nil).

The Company purchased Agri-commodities of seasonal commodities like Wheat straw, Corncob, mustard Straw, corn, wheat grains at its 
Collection centers opened at various locations.

ZAREA  LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year ended June 2025

These include investments in shares held under margin �nance open positions carried at a cost of Rs. 386,638,183 (2024: Nil) and a fair value of Rs. 
415,849,205 (2024: Nil), under 100% equity margin.

Investments are measured at fair value through pro�t or loss

Fair ValueCost
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year ended June 2025

12.1 As of June 30, 2025, the age analysis of trade debts is as follows:

 2025
June 

2024
June

Past due:

Up to 3 months 469,642,896            117,027,698         

3 to 6 months -                          40,375,898           

6 to 12 months -                          -                       

More than 12 months -                          -                       

469,642,896            157,503,596         

12.2 Provision for Doubtful Debts
 2025
June 

2024
June

Opening balance -                          -                       

Charge for the year 2,745,063               -                       

Closing balance 2,745,063               -                       

13 Advances & Prepayments
 2025
June 

2024
June

Advances to employees ( Unsecured - Considered Good ) 20,180,120             14,964,620           
Advance held with brokerage house 10,184,406             
Advance Income tax 640,371                  -                       
Input Sales Tax 858,163                  -                       
Prepayments 8,098,946               400,000                

39,962,006             14,964,620           

14 Cash and Bank Balances
 2025
June 

2024
June

Cash in hand 36,375,220             59,003,405           

Cash at bank 286,688,823            34,010,036           

323,064,043            93,013,441           

15 Share Capital
 2025
June 

2024
June

Authorized Share Capital

Authorized share capital 400,000,000            300,000,000         

400,000,000  (2024: 300,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs. 1 (2024: Rs 1 ) each fully paid in cash

Issued, subscribed and-paid up capital

Issued, subscribed and-paid up capital 262,500,000            200,000,000         

262,500,000 (2024: 200,000,000 ) ordinary shares of Rs. 1 ( 2024: Rs 1 ) each fully paid in cash

Share premium on issue of shares 15.1 967,050,250            -                       

Share Issuance Expense (51,024,298)            -                       

916,025,952            -                       

15.1

15.2

The Company has been listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange on February 28, 2025, and issued 62,500,000 shares to the general public at a 
premium of Rs. 967,050,250.

Premium received over and above face value of the shares issued to general public through IPO amounting to Rs. 967.050 million out of which Rs. 
51.024 million had been utilized under section 81 of the Companies Act, 2017 during the year ended June 30, 2025.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year ended June 2025

 2025
June 

2024
June

16 Loan from Sponsors / Shareholders

Loan from Sponsors / Shareholders -                          90,000,000           

Loan from Related Parties -                          90,000,000           

-                          180,000,000         

Right share issued -                          (180,000,000)        

-                          -                       

17 Provision For Gratuity
 2025
June 

2024
June

Opening balance                             -                             -   

Charge for the year 17.1                 1,995,000                           -   

Closing balance                 1,995,000                           -   

17.1

18 Long Term Bank Finance

2025
June

2024
June

Loan from Bank Alfalah Limited - secured 41,374,108             -                       

Current portion of the bank loan - secured (13,641,555)            -                       

27,732,553             -                       

19 Trade and Other Payables
2025
June

2024
June

Trade creditors 78,939,486             -                       
Accrued expenses 6,308,715               1,383,124             
Employees withholding tax payable 2,384,150               609,255                
Finance cost payable 506,691                  -                       
Auditors remuneration 1,150,000               600,000                
Other payable 113,220                  -                       

89,402,261             2,592,379             
20 Contingencies and Commitments

The principal is payable in monthly installments, and taxes, repair, and insurance costs are to be borne by the Company. The present value of minimum
lease payments has been discounted using the implicit rate, i.e., 3-month KIBOR plus 3%, to be reviewed on a quarterly basis. The liabilities are secured
against personal guarantees of the directors and a promissory note.

There are no contingencies and commitment appearing at the date of statement of �nancial position of the Company.

The Company has introduced an unfunded gratuity scheme for its permanent employees for the �rst time. The liability has been recognized on the
basis of management’s estimate, calculated using the last month’s gross salary of all eligible employees as at the reporting date.

The loans provided by sponsors and shareholders were for business expansion. These were interest-free and repayable at the discretion of the Company.
During the last year, all loans from shareholders, sponsors, and related parties were converted into right shares. The Company issued right shares against
the loan amounts.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year ended June 2025

21 Impact of Restatement

30th June 2024

Particulars
Previously 

reported
Adjustment As Restated

646,308,13selbayaP rehtO & edarT           (29,211,267)            2,592,379             
753,446,793sevreseR         29,211,267             426,855,624         

30th June 2023

Particulars
Previously 

reported
Adjustment As Restated

177,691,23selbayaP rehtO & edarT           (29,211,267)            2,985,504             
703,498,901sevreseR         29,211,267             139,105,574         

22 Revenue
2025
June

2024
June

Platform Usage Fee 22.1 387,352,574            281,060,855         
Sale of Agriculture Commodities 22.2 955,576,463            160,700,997         

1,342,929,037         441,761,852         

22.1

22.2

23 Cost of Sales
2025
June

2024
June

Opening Stock                             -                             -   

Purchases - Agriculture Commodities 1,269,836,273         131,017,772         

Add: Insurance Expense 48,037                    -                       

Add: Salaries Expense 3,511,667               -                       

Add: Amortization Expense 3,106,793               -                       

Less: Closing Stock (378,336,417)          -                       

898,166,352            131,017,772         

24 Administrative and General Expenses
2025
June

2024
June

1.52secnawollA dna stifeneB ,seiralaS                      22,154,736             15,793,238           

Director's Remuneration 4,250,000               -                       

Repair and Maintenance 934,140                  643,990                

Legal and Professional Charges 5,186,844               386,000                

Fee and Subscription 2,884,990               766,000                

General O�ce Expenses 5,856,404               2,944,175             

Rent Expense 7,284,165               -                       

Vehicle Insurance 250,209                  -                       

Software maintenance Expenses 1,126,345               356,725                

1.42noitanoD dna ytirahC                      2,558,000               535,400                

In prior years, tax liabilities amounting to Rs. 29,211,267 were being re�ected in the �nancial statements, without taking into account the adjustment in 
respect of advance tax. Accordingly, the amounts have now been appropriately adjusted in the �nancial statements.

This is the platform usage fee charged by the company for allowing access to the application. The company charges a platform usage fee for each
transaction.

The sale of agriculture commodities is conducted through the e-commerce platform, with the selling price recognized as revenue. Excess of selling
price over cost of the commodities is gain of the Company instead of earning a platform usage fee, re�ecting the Company's direct involvement in
its procurement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year ended June 2025

Entertainment Expense 8,403,736               

2.42noitarenumer s'rotiduA                      1,537,250               600,000                

2.21stbed luftbuod rof noisivorP                      2,745,063               

0.6sesnepxE  noitaicerpeD                        8,048,015               1,762,227             

Amortization Expenses -                          851,394                

73,219,897             24,639,149           

24.1  Donation to following organization exceeds 10% of the company's total amount of donation or 1 million, whichever is higher.

1.1.42noitadnuoF MM - 2,558,000               464,000                
-Zaman Foundation 51,400                    -                       
-Idara Fikr e Jadeed 20,000                    -                       

2,629,400               464,000                

24.1.1

24.2  Breakup of Auditor's Remuneration
Audit Fee 750,000                  600,000                
Out of pocket expenses 101,000                  -                       
Other assurance engagements 486,250                  -                       

1,537,250               600,000                

25 Selling and Distribution Expenses
 2025
June 

2024
June

1.52secnawollA dna stifeneB ,seiralaS 19,156,717             17,812,835           

Travelling and Conveyance 5,485,638               4,843,004             

Entertainment Expenses 6,812,271               243,964                

Postage, Telephone and Telegram 740,106                  378,210                

Advertisement & Marketing expenses 33,312,302             5,481,717             

Rent Expense 1,748,836               -                       

Miscellaneous Expense 8,057,962               -                       

75,313,832             28,759,730           

25.1 Salaries, Bene�ts and Allowances also include charge of Rs. 1,995,000/- (2024: Rs. Nil) in respect of gratuity.

26 Other Income
 2025
June 

2024
June

Unrealized Gain on short term investments 18,377,485             41,496,230           

Realized Gain / (loss) on short term investments 359,206,932            (6,974,809)           

Dividend income 545,603                  -                       

378,130,021            34,521,421           

27 Finance Cost
 2025
June 

2024
June

Long term �nancing 3,005,093               -                       

Bank Charges 301,963                  79,577                  

3,307,056               79,577                  

Ms. Misbah Momin, the Chairperson, serves as the President of the Board of Governance of MM Foundation, while Mr. Ali Alam Qamar, the Chief
Executive O�cer, is also a member of the Board of Governance of MM Foundation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year ended June 2025

28 Income tax
 2025
June 

2024
June

Current Tax -                          -                       

Deferred Tax -                          (1,024,940)           

-                          (1,024,940)           

28.1

29 Financial Risk Management & Objectives

 2025
June 

2024
June

#

2,230,875               2,230,875             

218,179,017            241,982,657         

466,997,833            157,503,596         

39,962,006             15,364,620           

323,064,043            93,013,441           

371,376,575            -                       

421,083,823            70,653,024           

Long term Security Deposits

Trade and Other receivables

Fair value through pro�t or loss

Advances for Commodities

Short term investment – units of mutual funds

Short term investment – Investment in shares

The credit quality o�nancial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to external credit rating agencies or the historical information about
counter party default rates as shown below:

Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognized at the reporting date if counterparties fail to perform as contracted. The Company manages credit risk by 
limiting signi�cant exposure to any individual customers by obtaining advance against sales. As of the reporting date, the Company is exposed to credit risk on the
following assets:

Other price risk is the risk that the fair value o�uture cash �ows of the �nancial instruments will �uctuate because of changes in market prices. As at the reporting date,
the Company is not exposed to signi�cant other price risk.

Cash and bank balances

Credit risk

Advances & Prepayments

Currency risk

Financial assets carried at:

Zarea Limited is operating in Special Technology Zone, therefore income of company is exempt from Income Tax and minimum tax for ten years.

Reference: Clause (126EA) of Part I of The second schedule of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001: Pro�ts and gains derived by zone Enterprises as
de�ned in the Special Technology Zones AuthorityAct, 2021 (XVII of 2021) for a period of ten years from the date o�ssuance o�icense by the
Special Technology Zone Authority or up the30th day of June, 2035, whichever is earlier.

Other price risk

The Company is exposed to market risk (including return rate risk, currency risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s �nance and treasury
departments oversee the management of these risks. The Company’s �nancial risk–taking activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and �nancial risks
are identi�ed, measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s policies and risk appetite. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes and
assumptions during the year ended June 30, 2025. The policies for managing each of these risk are summarized below:

Market risk is the risk that the fair value o�uture cash �ows of a �nancial instrument will �uctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprise three types
of risk: return rate risk, currency risk and other price risk.

Return rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash �ows of the �nancial instruments will �uctuate because of changes in market return rates. As of the reporting
date the Company held long term loans amounting to PKR 41.37 million at �xed rates which are not materially exposed to signi�cant return rate risk.

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash �ows of a �nancial instrument will �uctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates and arises where
transactions are conducted in foreign currency. 

Market Risk

Return and interest rate risk

Credit quality of �nancial assets
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year ended June 2025

 2025
June 

2024
June

            466,997,833          157,503,596 

                            -                             -   

            466,997,833          157,503,596 

Financial institution Agency Short term Long term 

.oC gnitaR tiderC SIVdetimiL knaB nazeeM A1+  AAA 

.oC gnitaR tiderC SIVdetimiL natsikaP knaB cimalsI labuD A1+  AA 

 ARCAPdetimiL knaB lasyaF A1+  AA 

.oC gnitaR tiderC SIVdetimiL knaB detinU A1+  AAA 

 ARCAPdetimiL knaB BCM A1+  AAA 

 ARCAPdetimiL halaflA knaB A1+  AAA 

Short–term investments amounting to PKR 371.37 million (2024: Nil) are held in mutual funds rated not below AA.

Within one year 1-10 years Total
June 30, 2025

555,146,31gnicnanif mret gnoL           27,732,553             41,374,108           

357,833,29selbayaP rehtO dna edarT -                                    92,338,753           

June 30, 2024

-gnicnanif mret gnoL                       -                          -                       

646,308,13selbayaP rehtO dna edarT -                                    -                       

 2025
June 

2024
June

Long term �nancing               27,732,553                           -   

Current portion of the bank �nance               13,641,555                           -   

Total Debt               41,374,108                           -   

Equity             262,500,000          200,000,000 

Share premium             915,315,129                           -   

Reserves          1,095,681,876          397,644,357 

         2,273,497,005          597,644,357 

Gearing ratio 1.79% 0.00%

Total

Capital Risk Management

Liquidity risk re�ects the Company’s inability in raising funds to meet commitments. Management closely monitors the Company’s liquidity and cash �ow position. This
includes maintenance o�iquidity ratios, debtors and creditors concentration both in terms of the overall funding mix and avoidance of undue reliance on large individual
customers.
The table below summarizes the maturity pro�le of the Company’s �nancial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments.

Trade debts

Neither past due nor impaired

The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maintain capital ratios, strong credit rating and optimal capital structures in order to ensure ample
availability o�nance for its existing and potential investment projects, to maximize shareholders’ value and reduce the cost of capital. The Company manages its capital
structure and makes adjustment to it, in light of changes in economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies and processes during the year ended
June 30, 2025.The gearing ratios as at June 30, 2025 and 2024 were as follows:

Past due but not impaired 

Liquidity risk

A default on a �nancial asset is when the counterparty fails to make contractual payments within360 days of when they fall due. Trade debts are generally due within 30 to 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year ended June 2025

Fair Values Of Financial Instruments

Fair value hierarchy

The table below analyses �nancial instruments carried at fair value by valuation method. The di�erent levels have been de�ned as follows:

- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1);

- Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly (level 2); and

- Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (level 3)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial Assets

- Short term investments

As at June 30, 2025

Investment in Shares     421,083,823 421,083,823         

Investment in Mutual Funds          371,376,575 371,376,575         

As at June 30, 2024

Investment in Shares       70,653,024 70,653,024           

Investment in Mutual Funds                          -   -                       

There were no transfers amongst levels during the year.

30 Segment reporting
Platform usage 

fee
 Agri-

commodities 
Total

475,253,783euneveR         955,576,463            1,342,929,037      
)064,816,6(selaS fo tsoC            (891,547,892)          (898,166,352)        

Gross pro�t 380,734,114        64,028,571             444,762,685         
)219,632,26(sesnepxE lareneG dna evitartsinimdA          (10,982,985)            (73,219,897)         
)757,610,46(sesnepxE noitubirtsiD dna gnilleS          (11,297,075)            (75,313,832)         
)899,018,2(stsoC ecnaniF )850,694(                            (3,307,056)           

744,966,152xat erofeb tiforP         41,252,453             292,921,901         
120,031,873)ssoL(/niaG stnemtsevnI          

-noitaxaT                        
Pro�t after tax 671,051,921         

488,847,561stessa tnemgeS         1,084,988,661         1,250,737,544      
247,368,63seitilibail tnemgeS           95,907,627             132,771,369         
214,036,131erutidnepxe latipaC         18,798,884             150,429,296         

31 Shariah Compliance Disclosures
Conventional Shariah Compliant Total

Statement of �nancial position – Assets
Long term Security Deposits                          -                   2,230,875              2,230,875 
Short term Investment          532,278,699             260,181,698          792,460,397 
Cash and bank balances                          -               323,064,043          323,064,043 

Statement of �nancial position – Liabilities
Long term bank �nance           41,374,108                             -              41,374,108 
Accrued markup                506,691                             -                   506,691 

-------------------------------Rs.----------------------------------

Fair value is the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
Investment in associates are carried using equity method. The carrying values of all other �nancial assets and liabilities re�ected in these consolidated �nancial statements
approximate their fair values.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year ended June 2025

Statement of Pro�t and Loss
Revenue                          -            1,342,929,037       1,342,929,037 
Gain /( Losses ) on short term investments           45,116,440             332,467,977          377,584,417 
Finance Costs-Long term �nancing             3,005,093                             -                3,005,093 

31.1 Illequid Assets 2025

Property and equipments          143,169,293 
Intangible Assets            44,054,984 
Advances for Commodities          218,179,017 
Stock in Trade          378,336,417 

         783,739,712 

32 Remuneration of Chief Executive, Executives and Directors

The aggregate amount charged in the accounts during the period for remuneration including bene�ts to Chief  Executive o�cer and Directors is as follows:

Executives
Executive 
Directors

Chief 
Executive

Executives
Executive 
Directors

Chief Executive

Managerial Remuneration                  21,998,347            1,165,000                     -               7,772,375                             -                             -   

                 21,998,347            1,165,000                     -               7,772,375                             -                             -   

Number(s)                                 25                          2                       1                         11                               2                            1 

32.1 Chief Executive Director did not withdraw any salary from the Company.

33 Transactions With Related Parties

Name of the related party Nature of Transactions
 2025
June 

2024
June

Ali Alam Qamar Loan from Sponsors -                          90,000,000           
Gold�nger Private Limited Loan from Sponsors -                          90,000,000           

-                          180,000,000         

34 Financial Instruments

 June
2025 

June
2024

 June
2025 

June
2024

Financial Assets

Trade and Other receivables     466,997,833          157,503,596             466,997,833          157,503,596 

Cash and bank balances     323,064,043           93,013,441             323,064,043            93,013,441 

    790,061,876          250,517,037             790,061,876          250,517,037 

Financial liabilities

Bank Finance       41,374,108                          -                 41,374,108                           -   

Trade and other payables       89,402,261           31,803,646               89,402,261            31,803,646 

      89,402,261           31,803,646               89,402,261            31,803,646 

2024

Rupees

 ---------------------------------------- Rupees -----------------------------------------

Amortized Cost

 Amount in 
Rupees 

Total

2025

Rupees

The related parties of the Company comprise of directors and key management personnel. Transactions with related parties include advance for working
capital requirements. These transactions are as follows:

Annual 
Report 2024-25127



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year ended June 2025

35 Earning per Share - Basic & Diluted

 2025
June 

2024
June

Pro�t after taxation             671,051,921          292,811,085 

Weighted average number of  ordinary shares             220,833,333            73,309,589 

Basic earning per share 3.04 3.99

36 Utilization of IPO Proceeds

Below is the summary of utilization of proceeds from IPO as at June 30, 2025

2025

IPO Proceeds

Receipt against issue of 62,500,000 ordinary shares 1,029,579,750      

Return on investment in mutual fund 35,414,758           

IPO related expenses (51,024,298)         

1,013,970,210      

Proceeds Utilization in

Working Capital (450,000,000)        

Logistics -                       

Technology (18,238,400)         

Marketing (27,455,010)         

O�ce and Vehicles (26,055,320)         

Human Resource (12,429,800)         

(534,178,530)        

086,197,974tnuomA ecnalaB          

37 Number Of Employees
 2025
June 

2024
June

Total number of employees 62 29

Average number of employees 47 33

38 Subsequent Events

There are no subsequent events as at year end.

39 Date of Authorization for issue

40 General

Figures have been rounded o� to the nearest rupee.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER DIRECTOR

 Amount in 
Rupees 

There is no dilutive e�ect on the basic earnings per share 
which is based on: 

These �nancial statements were issued on  __________________________  by the board of directors of the Company.

                                          CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

September 26,2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
TO THE MEMBERS OF ZAREA LTD. 
REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE GROUP CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025 

Opinion: 

We have audited the annexed consolidated financial statements of Zarea Limited and its subsidiary (the Group), which 
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30th June, 2025, and the consolidated statement of 
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the 
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including material accounting policy information and 
other explanatory information.  

In our opinion, consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the 
Group as at 30th June, 2025 and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then 
ended in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan.  

Basis for Opinion: 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan. Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the 
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion. 

Key Audit Matters  

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the 
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion 
on these matters. 

Sr. Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter 

 
(i) 

 
Revenue recognition  
(refer notes 5.16 and 21 to the annexed consolidated 
financial statements)  
The principal activity of the Company is through platform 
usage fees through its e-commerce platform and also earns 
income from the direct purchase and sale of agriculture 
commodities. Revenue is recognized when performance 
obligation  is satisfied  by  transferring control of promised  

 
Our audit procedures, amongst others, included the 
following: 

1. Understand the company’s revenue recognition 
policy and ensure it aligns with accounting 
standards. 

2. Ensure that the type and quantity of the 
agricultural commodity sold match the trading 
form, delivery authorization notes & customer  
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goods to a customer.  
Revenue includes Sale of Agricultural Commodities which 
are mainly settled in cash. Hence, due to the risk 
associated with cash transactions, we consider revenue as 
a Key Audit Matter. 

              acknowledgements. 
3. Confirm that the agreed-upon price as per trading 

form is applied to the sale of the commodity. 
4. Verified that delivery of the commodity is 

evidenced by proper documentation such as 
weighment slips. 

5. Ensure that the buyer has accepted the commodity 
or that delivery has been confirmed by the delivery 
acknowledgement. 

6. If the company sells agricultural commodities to 
related parties, ensure that the terms are consistent 
with market conditions, and verify that the 
transactions are at arm’s length. 

7. Traced a sample of sales invoices to payment 
receipts in the bank statements/cashbooks to verify 
that payments have been received for the recorded 
sales. 

 
 
 

(ii) 

 
 
 
Short-term Investments  
(refer notes 5.7 and 8 to the annexed consolidated financial 
statements)  
The Company has made investments in shares through 
open positions in margin finance which are held at Fair 
Value Through Profit or Loss model. Any unrealized gains 
or losses arising from changes in fair value are recognized 
directly in the income statement. Upon disposal, the 
difference between the carrying amount and the sale 
proceeds is recognized in the income statement. 
These investments have to be verified through National 
Clearing Company of Pakistan (NCCPL) Report, which is 
a complex task. However, we were able to verify the open 
positions through the report, and therefore we consider this 
as a Key Audit Matter. 
 
 

 
 
 
Our audit procedures, amongst others, included the 
following: 

1. Obtained statement of accounts with brokerages. 
2. Sent confirmation to brokerages to confirm Zarea's 

holding. 
3. Verified rate per share from Pakistan Stock 

Exchange (PSX). 
4. Obtained Central Depository Company (CDC) 

Report to verify investments in shares. 
5. Obtained National Clearing Company of Pakistan 

(NCCPL) Report to verify open positions of 
margin finance. 

6. Obtained BOD approvals for investment. 

 
(iii) 

 
Trade & Other Receivables  
(refer notes 5.3 and 11 to the annexed consolidated 
financial statements)  
The Company has trade and other receivables recognized 
at transaction price less provision for doubtful debts. 
Provision is made for debts considered doubtful of 
recovery based on expected credit loss (ECL) model and 
debts considered irrecoverable are written off as and when 
identified. 
Debtors outstanding at year end were significant, 
presenting risk to cashflows. However, substantial portion 
of debtors is subsequently cleared, and therefore we 
consider this as a Key Audit Matter. 

 
Our audit procedures, amongst others, included the 
following: 

1. Send Debtor Confirmations (Direct External 
Confirmations). 

2. Test Subsequent Receipts through subsequent 
ledger & subsequent bank statements. 

3. Review Credit Notes and Sales Returns After 
Year-End. 

4. Examine Supporting Documentations. 
5. Evaluate Provision for Doubtful Debts. 
6. Checked that amounts are recorded in relevant 

party's ledgers 
7. Payments received verified through subsequent 

bank statements. 
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Information Other than the Consolidated and Unconsolidated Financial Statements and Auditors' Report Thereon:  

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the 
Annual Report, but does not include the consolidated and unconsolidated financial statements and our auditor’s reports 
thereon.  

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form 
of assurance conclusion thereon.  

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial 
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we 
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that 
fact.  

We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors for the Consolidated Financial Statements:  

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance 
with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and Companies Act, 2017 and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue 
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative 
but to do so.  

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process 

 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements:  

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs 
as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or 
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.  

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:  

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, 
or the override of internal controls.  
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• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.  

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by management.  

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit 
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on 
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to 
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date 
of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.  

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, 
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that 
achieves fair presentation.  

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities 
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, 
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.  

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit 
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.  

We also provide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought 
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.  

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in 
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe 
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in 
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse 
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Shahid Mohsin Shaikh. 

 

Signature: 

  

Lahore 

Date: September 26, 2025 

UDIN: AR202510575cgAPEKxSQ 
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Notes 
 June
2025

 June
2024 

 June
2023 

 Restated  Restated 

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property and equipments 6 143,169,293          25,891,413          12,239,641          
Intangible Assets 7 44,054,984            22,058,377          4,309,771            
Long term Security Deposits 2,230,875              2,230,875 -                                   

189,455,153          50,180,665          16,549,412          
CURRENT ASSETS
Short term Investment 8 792,460,397          70,653,024          36,131,603          
Advances for Commodities 9 218,179,017          241,982,657        72,845,210          
Stock in Trade 10 378,336,417          -                       -                       
Trade and Other receivables 11 466,897,833          157,503,596        53,663,495          
Advances & Prepayments 12 39,962,006            15,364,620 -                                 
Cash and bank balances 13 324,062,187          94,013,441          67,426,298          

2,219,897,857       579,517,338        230,066,606        

TOTAL ASSETS 2,409,353,010       629,698,003        246,616,018        

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share capital
Authorized capital
400,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs. 1/- each 400,000,000          300,000,000        25,000,000          

Issued, subscribed & paid-up capital
262,500,000 ordinary shares of Rs.1/- each fully paid in cash 14 262,500,000          200,000,000        20,000,000          
Share Premium 916,025,952          -                       -                       
Reserves 1,097,756,153       426,780,624        139,105,574        
Non-Controlling interest 199,536                 225,000 -                                      

2,276,481,641       627,005,624        159,105,574        
Loan from Sponsors/Shareholders 15 -                         -                       83,500,000          

2,276,481,641       627,005,624        242,605,574        
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Deferred tax liability -                         -                       1,024,940            
Provision for gratuity 16 1,995,000              -                       -                       
Long term bank �nance 17 27,732,553            -                       -                       

29,727,553            -                       1,024,940            
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and Other Payables 18 89,502,261            2,692,379            2,985,504            
Current portion of the bank �nance 17 13,641,555            -                       -                       

103,143,816          2,692,379            2,985,504            

010,353,904,2SEITILIBAIL DNA YTIUQE LATOT        629,698,003        246,616,018        

Contingencies and Commitments 19 -                         -                       -                       

The annexed notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these �nancial statements.

DIRECTORCHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER         CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

------------------------------------Rs------------------------------------

ZAREA LIMITED
GROUP CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at June 30, 2025
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Notes 
 June
2025

 June
2024 

Revenue 21 1,342,929,037        441,761,852           

Cost of Sales 22 (898,166,352)          (131,017,772)          

586,267,444tiforp ssorG            310,744,080           

Administrative and General Expenses 23 (73,319,897)            (24,740,049)            

Selling and Distribution Expenses 24 (75,313,832)            (28,759,730)            

Other Income 25 378,130,021           34,521,421             

Finance Costs 26 (3,308,912)              (79,577)                   

560,059,076noitaxat erofeb tiforP            291,686,145           

Taxation 27 -                          1,024,940               

560,059,076noitaxat retfa tiforp teN            292,711,085           

-emocnI evisneherpmoC rehtO                           -                          

560,059,076emocnI evisneherpmoC latoT            292,711,085           

Basic & Diluted earning per share 34 3.04                        3.99                        

The annexed notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these �nancial statements.

Attributable to:

925,579,076aeraZ fo srenwO-            292,736,085           

)464,52(ICN-                    (25,000)                   

DIRECTORCHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

ZAREA LIMITED
GROUP CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the Year ended June 30, 2025

'------------------------------------Rs------------------------------------
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 Particulars 

000,000,02 3202 ,1 yluJ ta sa ecnalaB -                                      83,500,000       109,894,307 -                                                213,394,307           

E�ect of Restatement -                         -                         -                    29,211,267 -                                                  29,211,267             

Balance as at July 1, 2023 (Restated) 20,000,000 -                                      83,500,000       139,105,574 -                                                242,605,574           

Pro�t for the year -                         -                         -                    292,736,085           (25,000)                              292,711,085           
Other Comprehensive income -                         -                         -                    -                         -                                     -                         
Incremental Depreciation (Net of Tax) -                         -                         -                    -                         -                                     -                         
Loan from Shareholders / Sponsors -                         -                         96,500,000       -                         -                                     96,500,000             
Issuance of shares 180,000,000           -                         (180,000,000)    -                         -                                     -                         
Share Issuance Expense -                         -                         -                    (5,061,035)             -                                     (5,061,035)             
NCI Reconized at acquisition -                         -                         -                    -                         250,000                             250,000                  

Balance as at June 30, 2024 20,000,000             -                         -                    426,780,624           225,000                             627,005,624           

Balance as at July 1, 2024 200,000,000           -                         -                    426,780,624           225,000                             626,855,624           

Pro�t for the year -                         -                         -                    670,975,529           (25,464)                              671,051,921           
Other Comprehensive income -                         -                         -                    -                         -                                     -                         
Issuance of shares 62,500,000             967,050,250           -                    -                         -                                     1,029,550,250        
Share Issuance Expense -                         (51,024,298)           -                    -                         -                                     (51,024,298)           
Balance as at June 30, 2025 262,500,000           916,025,952           -                    1,097,756,153        199,536                             2,276,433,497        

The annexed notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these �nancial statements.

DIRECTOR

------------------------------------Rs------------------------------------

RECIFFO LAICNANIF FEIHCRECIFFO EVITUCEXE FEIHC

ZAREA  LIMITED
GROUP CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the Year ended June 30, 2025

 Issued, 
subscribed and 
paid-up capital 

 Share Premium 
 Loan from 

Shareholders/ 
Sponsors 

 Total Equity 
Consolidated 

Reserves
Non-controlling Interest
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Notes 
June
2025

June
2024

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Pro�t before taxation 670,950,065              291,686,145           

Adjustment for non-cash items

Depreciation & Amortization 11,154,809                2,613,621               

Capital Gain (359,206,932)             (41,496,230)           

Unrealized  (Gain) / loss on short term investments (18,377,485)               6,974,809               

Provision for gratuity 1,995,000                  -                         

Finance costs 3,308,912                  79,577                    

963,428,903segnahc latipac gnikrow erofeb tiforp gnitarepO               259,857,922           

Working capital changes

(Increase) / decrease in current assets

Trade and Other Receivables (309,394,237)             (103,840,101)          

Advances, Deposits and Prepayments (24,597,386)               (15,364,620)           

Advances for Commodities 23,803,640                (169,137,447)          

Stock in Trade (378,336,417)             -                         

Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities

Trade and Other Payables 83,818,621                (293,125)                

Income Tax Paid (609,255)                    -                         

Finance Costs paid (2,802,221)                 (79,577)                  

(608,117,255)             (288,714,870)          

)688,292,892(seitivitca gnitarepo  morf swolf hsac teN              (28,856,948)           

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Property, Vehicle and Equipment (125,325,895)             (15,413,999)           

Intangible Assets (25,103,400)               (18,600,000)           

Short term Investments (344,222,956)             -                         

Long term security Deposits -                            (2,230,875)             

Acquisition of subsidiary-net of cash -                            250,000                  

)152,256,494(seitivitca gnitsevni morf swolf hsac teN              (35,994,874)           

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase in share Capital 62,500,000                180,000,000           
Share Premium 967,050,250              -                         
Loan from Sponsors / Shareholders -                            (83,500,000)           
Bank Finance 44,467,931                
Share Issuance Expense (51,024,298)               (5,061,035)             

388,399,220,1seitivitca gnicnanif  morf swolf hsac teN            91,438,965             

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 230,048,746              26,587,143             

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the Year 94,013,441                67,426,298             

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR 13 324,062,187              94,013,441             

The annexed notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these �nancial statements.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER DIRECTOR

ZAREA LIMITED
GROUP CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Year ended June 2025

------------------------------------Rs------------------------------------
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1 Legal status and Nature of Business

1.1 The Group comprises of :

2

3 Basis of Preparation

3.1 Statement of compliance

-

-

3.2 Basis of Consolidated

During the year the company got itself registered on Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX) on 28 February 2025 through Initial Public 
O�er (IPO).

The signi�cant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these �nancial statements are set out below:

These �nancial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan.
The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as noti�ed
under the Companies Act, 2017; and
provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 di�er from the required of IFRS, the provisions of and
directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed in preparation of these unconsolidated �nancial statements.

ZAREA  LIMITED
NOTES TO THE GROUP CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year ended 30 June 2025

> Zarea Limited - Holding Company
> Zarea Agri Tech Private Limited - Subsidiary Company ( 75% Owned by Zarea Limited and 25% Owned by Gold�nger
Private Limited

Zarea Limited-Holding Company is registered as a public limited company in Pakistan . The company was incorporated on 16
September 2020 under the Companies Act, 2017.

The company operates an online marketplace that connects buyers and sellers through a proprietary software platform. It generates
revenue primarily through platform usage fees through its e-commerce platform and through trading of agricultural commodities.
The company also earns pro�t through its short-term investments in shares, margin-�nance open positions and mutual fund units.
The company's registered o�ce is situated at 6011- Delta 6 NASTP, Abid Majeed Rd, Lahore Cantt.

Subsidiary Company (Zarea Agri-Tech) is a Private Limited company . The company was incorporated on 01-March 2024 under
the Companies Act, 2017.

The principal activity of the company is to sale and purchase of Commodities

The company's registered o�ce is situated at 6011- Delta 6 NASTP, Abid Majeed Rd, Lahore Cantt.

Signi�cant Transactions And Events A�ecting The Company's Financial Position And Performance

It has power to direct the relevant activities of the subsidiaries;

It is exposed to variable returns from the subsidiaries; and 

These Consolidated �nancial statements include the �nancial statements of the Holding Company and its Subsidiary.

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the group has the power to govern the �nancial and operating policies generally
accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights. The existence and e�ect of potential voting rights that are
currently exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether the group controls another entity. Father, the group also
considers whether:
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3.3 Subsidiaries

3.4 Basis of measurement

3.5 Functional and presentation currency

3.6

There are certain amendments to the accounting and reporting standards which became applicable to the Company on July 1, 2024.
However, these amendments do not have any signi�cant impact on the Company’s �nancial statements.

The following standards and amendments will be e�ective for accounting periods, beginning on or after the date mentioned against
each of them:

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of controls, is accounted for as an equity transactions. If the
group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognizes the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, carrying
amount of any NCI, cumulative translation di�erences recongingsed in other comprehensive income, and recognizes fair value of
considerations received, any investment retained, surplus or de�cit in pro�t or loss, and reclassi�es the groups share of components
previously recognized in other comprehensive income to pro�t or loss.

The assets, liabilities. Income and expenses of subsidiary companies and consolidated on a line by line basic and carrying value of
investments held by the holding company is eliminated against the subsidiary companies’ shareholders’ equity in these
consolidated �nancial statements.

Subsidiaries are those entities over which the Group has control. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to a�ect those returns through its power over the
investee. Speci�cally, the Group controls an investee if, and only if, the Group has:

- power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee);
- exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
- the ability to use its power over the investee to a�ect its returns.

These �nancial statements have been prepared under 'historical cost convention' except as otherwise stated in respective accounting
policies notes. 

Items included in the �nancial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
Company operates. These �nancial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Company’s functional currency

New and amended standards and interpretations

Decision making power allows the group to a�ect its variable returns form the subsidiaries. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the
date on which the group obtains control and continue to the consolidated until the date when such control ceases.

The �nancial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the holding company, using consistent
accounting policies in majority of the cases. The accounting policies of the subsidiaries have been changed to conform with
accounting policies of the group, where required.

All intra-group balances, transactions and unrealized gains and losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full.

Where the ownership of subsidiary is less than hundred percent and therefore, a non-controlling interest (NCI) exists, the NCI is
allocated its share of the total comprehensive income of the period, even if that results in a de�cit balance.
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-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

4 CRITICAL ASSUMPTIONS AND ESTIMATES

IFRIC 12 (Service Concession Arrangements)

The preparation o�nancial statements in conformity with the Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that a�ect the
application of policies and reported amount of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis of making the judgments about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may di�er from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised, if
the revision a�ects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision a�ects both current and future
periods.

In July 2024, the IASB issued ‘Annual improvements to IFRS – Volume 11’ (Amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 7, IFRS 9, IFRS 10
and IAS 7). The amendments are e�ective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2026 with early adoption
available

The above standards and amendments to approved accounting standards have not been early adopted by the Company and are not
likely to have any material impact on the Company's �nancial statements.

Other than the aforesaid standards and amendments, IASB has also issued the following standards and interpretation, which have
not been noti�ed locally or declared exempt by the SECP as at June 30, 2025:

IFRS 1 (First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards)

IFRS 18 (Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements)

IFRS 19 (Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures)

Amendment to IAS 21 ‘The E�ects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates’, - Lack of Exchangeability (e�ective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2025 with early adoption available). This amendment clari�es that a currency is
exchangeable when an entity is able to exchange that currency for the other currency through markets or exchange mechanisms that
create enforceable rights and obligations without undue delay at the measurement date and for a speci�ed purpose; a currency is
not exchangeable into the other currency if an entity can only obtain an insigni�cant amount of the other currency.

Amendment to IFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures’ and IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ - Classi�cation and Measurement
of Financial Instruments (e�ective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2026 with early adoption
available). These amendments clarify the requirements for the timing of recognition and derecognition of some �nancial assets and
liabilities, with a new exception for some �nancial liabilities settled through an electronic cash transfer system; clarify and add
further guidance for assessing whether a �nancial asset meets the solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) criterion; add
new disclosures for certain instruments with contractual terms that can change cash �ows (such as some instruments with features
linked to the achievement of environment, social and governance (ESG) targets); and make updates to the disclosures for equity
instruments designated at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI).

Amendment to IFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures’ and IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ - Contracts Referencing Nature-
dependent Electricity (e�ective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2026 with early adoption available).
These amendments change the 'own use' and hedge accounting requirements of IFRS 9 and include targeted disclosure
requirements to IFRS 7. These amendments apply only to ‘contracts referencing nature-dependent electricity’ that expose an entity
to variability in the underlying amount of electricity because the source o�ts generation depends on uncontrollable natural
conditions (such as the weather).

IFRS 17 ‘Insurance Contracts’ establishes the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure o�nsurance
contracts within the scope of the Standard. The objective of IFRS 17 is to ensure that an entity provides relevant information that
faithfully represents those contracts. This information gives a basis for users o�nancial statements to assess the e�ect that
insurance contracts have on the entity’s �nancial position, �nancial performance and cash �ows. SECP vide its SRO 1715(I)/2023
dated November 21, 2023 has directed that IFRS 17 shall be followed for the period commencing January 1, 2026 by companies
engaged in insurance / takaful and re-insurance / re-takaful business.

Annual 
Report 2024-25140



ZAREA  LIMITED
NOTES TO THE GROUP CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year ended 30 June 2025

5 Summary of signi�cant accounting policies

5.1 Property, plant and Equipment

(a)

(b)

(c)

Subsequent costs 

(d)

5.2

An item of property, plant and equipment and any signi�cant part initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal (e, at the date
the recipient obtains control) or when no future economic bene�ts are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss on
disposal or retirement of an asset represented by the di�erence between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is
recognized as an income or expense in the year in which it is incurred.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost o�ntangible assets acquired in a business
combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either �nite or inde�nite.

Intangible assets with �nite lives are amortized over the useful economic life on straight line basis and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortization year and the amortization method for
an intangible asset with a �nite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting year . Changes in the expected useful
life or the expected pattern of consumption o�uture economic bene�ts embodied in the asset are considered to modify the
amortization Year or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortization expense on
intangible assets with �nite lives is recognized in the statement of pro�t or loss in the expense category that is consistent with the
function of the intangible assets.

Impairment

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that property and equipment may be impaired. If such
indication exists, the carrying amount of such assets are reviewed to assess whether they are recorded in excess of their recoverable
amount. Where carrying values exceed the respective recoverable amount, assets are written down to their recoverable amounts and
the resulting impairment loss is recognized in pro�t or loss currently. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. Where an impairment loss is recognized, the depreciation charge is adjusted in the future Years
to allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount over its estimated useful life.

Estimates

Estimates with respect to residual values, depreciable lives and pattern o�ow of economic bene�ts are based on the analysis of the
management of the Company. Further, the management reviews the value of the assets for possible impairments on an annual basis.
Any change in the estimates in the future might a�ect the carrying amount of respective item of property and equipment, with a
corresponding e�ect on the depreciation charge and impairment

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic bene�ts associated with the item will �ow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are charged to pro�t or loss during the year in which they are incurred.

Disposal

The signi�cant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these �nancial statements are set out below: 

Owned assets
Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any identi�ed impairment loss.

Depreciation is charged to pro�t or loss using the straight line method whereby the cost less residual value of an operating asset is
written o� over its estimated useful life. Depreciation is charged on additions from the date o�ts acquisition. The rates of
depreciation are stated in note 6 to the �nancial statements. The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, at each
�nancial year end, and adjusted if impact on depreciation is signi�cant.
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(a)

5.3 Trade and Other Receivables

Expected Credit Losses

5.4 Advances, Deposits and Prepayments

5.5 Provisions

5.6 Investment in Subsidiary

5.7 Investment  held for trading

5.8

Provisions are recognized in the statement o�nancial position when the Company has a legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events and it is probable that out�ow of resources embodying economic bene�ts will be required to settle the obligation and
reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each statement o�nancial position date and adjusted to
re�ect current best estimate. Where out�ow of resources embodying economic bene�ts is not probable, contingent liability is
disclosed, unless the possibility of out�ow is remote.

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost in the unconsolidated �nancial statements of the Company. The cost of an
investment is measured as the fair value of the consideration transferred, including any transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the investment. Subsequent to initial recognition, investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. The carrying amounts o�nvestments are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An Impairment loss is recognized in the unconsolidated statement of
pro�t or loss when the carrying amount of the investment exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
the investment's fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. Dividends received from subsidiaries are recognized in the
unconsolidated statement of pro�t or loss when the Company's right to receive the payment is established. Where the Company
disposes of part or all o�ts investment in subsidiary, the di�erence between the carrying amount of the investment and the
consideration received is recognized in the unconsolidated statement of pro�t or loss.

Investments in shares held for trading are initially recognized at cost and subsequently measured at fair value through pro�t or loss
(FVTPL) as per IFRS 9. These investments are acquired with the intention of short-term pro�t-taking, and any unrealized gains or
losses arising from changes in fair value are recognized directly in the income statement. Transaction costs related to the
acquisition of these investments are expensed as incurred. Upon disposal, the di�erence between the carrying amount and the sale
proceeds is recognized in the income statement. Dividends from these investments are recognized in pro�t or loss when the
company’s right to receive payment is established.

Stock in Trade

Stocks are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value except those in transit which are valued at invoice value including 
other charges, if any, incurred thereon. Cost of inventory is based on weighted average cost.

Derecognition

An intangible asset is derecognized upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when no future economic
bene�ts are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising upon derecognition of the asset (calculated as the di�erence
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of pro�t or loss.

Trade receivables and other receivables are recognized at transaction price less an allowance for impairment. Trade debts and other
receivables are carried at original transaction price. Provision is made for debts considered doubtful of recovery based on expected
credit loss (ECL) model of IFRS 9 and debts considered irrecoverable are written o� as and when identi�ed.

Expected credit losses are calculated as a probability weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present
value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the di�erence between cash �ows due to the Company in accordance with the contract and cash
�ows that the Company expects to receive). 

These are stated at cost and balances considered bad and irrecoverable are written o� when identi�ed.

Intangible assets with inde�nite useful lives are not amortized, but are tested for impairment annually, either individually or at the
cash-generating unit level. The assessment o�nde�nite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the inde�nite life continues
to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from inde�nite to �nite is made on a prospective basis.
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5.9 Cash and Cash Equivalents

5.10 Trade and Other Payables

5.11 Gratuity

5.12

5.13

5.14

5.15

-

-

5.16

(a)

there is present obligation that arises from past events but it is not probable that an out�ow of resources embodying economic
bene�ts will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with su�cient reliability.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the services in the ordinary course of the
Company's activities. Revenue is recognized as follows:

Platform Usage Revenue

This is the platform usage fee charged by the company for allowing access to the application. The Company charges a platform
usage fee of each transaction. The company recognized revenue when order is delivered at customer premises.

The company enters into transactions with related parties on arm's length basis. Prices for transactions with related parties are
determined using admissible valuation methods, except in extremely rare circumstances where, subject to approval of the board of
directors it is in the interest of the company to do so.

Dividend and appropriation

Dividend is recognized as liability in period in which it is declared. Appropriations of pro�t are re�ected in the statement of
changes in equity in the period in which appropriations are approved.

Contingent liabilities
A contingent liability is disclosed when:
there is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be con�rmed only by the occurrence or non
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company, or

Cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost in the statement o�nancial position. For the purpose of cash �ow statement cash and
cash equivalent consists of cash in hand and balances with banks and short term borrowings under markup arrangement, saving and
deposit accounts.

Trade payables and other payables are recognized at fair value plus directly attributable cost, if  any.

The Company has introduced a gratuity scheme e�ective FY 2025, payable to all permanent employees who complete at least six
months of service, based on their last drawn gross salary at the time of cessation of employment. The gratuity liability will be
calculated on the basis of completed service and last gross salary, recognized as an expense in the pro�t and loss account and
recorded as a provision under non-current liabilities, with adjustments made annually for changes in salaries and employee
turnover.
Basic and diluted earning per share
The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the
pro�t or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the year. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the pro�t or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the e�ects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

Related party transactions

The Company reviews the carrying amount of stock in trade on a regular basis and as appropriate, these are written down to its net
realizable value or provision is made for obsolescence if there is any change in usage pattern and / or physical form of related
inventory. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less costs necessary to be incurred in
order to make sale.
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(b)

5.17

5.18

-

-

-

the �nancial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold �nancial assets in order to collect contractual cash
�ows; and

the contractual terms of the �nancial assets give rise on speci�ed date to cash �ows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

the �nancial asset is held within a business model whose objective achieved by both collecting contractual cash �ows and selling
the �nancial assets; and

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet method for all temporary di�erences at the reporting date between taxbase of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for �nancial reporting purposes. Deferred tax liability is recognized for all taxable
temporary di�erences and deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary di�erences, carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses, if any, to the extent that it is probable that future taxable pro�t will be available against which the
deductible temporary di�erences, carry-forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the liability is settled based on tax rates that
have been enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting date.

IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement

Initial recognition

All �nancial assets and liabilities are initially measured at cost which is the fair value of the consideration given or received. These
are subsequently measured at fair value or amortized cost as the case may be.

Classi�cation of �nancial assets

The Company classi�es its �nancial instruments in the following categories:
 - at fair value through pro�t or loss ("FVTPL")
 - at fair value through other comprehensive income ("FVTOCI"), or
 - at amortized cost.

The Company determines the classi�cations o�nancial assets at initial recognition. The classi�cation o�nstruments (other than
equity instruments) is driven by the Company's business model for managing the �nancial assets and their contractual cash �ow
characteristics.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortized cost:

Revenue is recognized to the extent it is probable that economic bene�ts will �ow to the Company and the revenue can be
measured reliably. Revenue from sale of agriculture commodities is recognized when the signi�cant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the customers, typically at the point of delivery.

Taxation

Income tax comprises of current tax and deferred tax. 
Income tax expense is recognized in the statement of pro�t and loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity (if any), in which case the tax amounts are recognized directly in other comprehensive

income or equity.

Current Tax

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year based on taxable pro�ts, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Sale of Agriculture Commodities
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-

- due from related parties;

- deposits; and

- loan and advances

Loss allowance for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to life time ECLs. Life time ECLs are the ECLs that
result from all possible default events over the expected life of a �nancial instrument. Twelve months ECLs are portion of ECL that
result from default events that are possible within twelve months after the reporting date. ECLs are a probability weighted estimate
of credit losses. Credit losses are measured at the present value of all cash short falls (i.e. the di�erence between cash �ows due to
the entity in accordance with the contract and cash �ows that the company expects to receive).

Classi�cation of �nancial liabilities

The Company classi�es its �nancial liabilities in the following categories:
 -at fair value through pro�t or loss ("FVTPL"), or
 -at amortized cost

Financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost, unless they are required to be measured at FVTPL (such as instrument held for
trading or derivatives) or the Company has opted to measure them at FVTPL.

Subsequent measurement

 i) Financial assets at FVTOCI

Elected investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are initially recognized at fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently,
they are measured at fair value, with gains or losses arising from changes in fair value being recognized in unconsolidated
statement of other comprehensive income.

 ii) Financial assets and liabilities at amortized cost

Financial assets and liabilities at amortized cost are initially recognized at fair value, and subsequently carried at amortized cost,
and in the case of �nancial assets, less any impairment.

 iii) Financial assets and liabilities at FVTPL

Financial assets and liabilities carried at FVTPL are initially recorded at fair value and transaction costs are expensed in the
unconsolidated statement of pro�t or loss. Realized and unrealized gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of
�nancial assets and liabilities held at FVTPL are included in the unconsolidated statement of pro�t or loss in the period in which
they arise.

Where the management has opted to recognize a �nancial liability at FVTPL, any changes associated with the Company's own
credit risk will be recognized in other comprehensive income/(loss). Currently, there are no �nancial liabilities designated at
FVTPL

Impairment of �nancial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowance for Expected Credit Loss (ECL) on �nancial assets measured at amortized cost and
FVTOCI at an amount equal to life time ECLs except for the �nancial assets in which there is no signi�cant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition or �nancial assets which are determine to have low credit risk at the reporting date, in which case twelve
months' ECL is recorded. The following were either determined to have low or there was no credit risk since initial recognition and
at the reporting date:

- bank balances;

the contractual terms of the �nancial assets give rise on speci�ed date to cash �ows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

By default, all other �nancial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL.
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De-recognition

i)  Financial assets
The Company derecognizes �nancial assets only when the contractual rights to cash �ows from the �nancial assets expire or when
it transfer the �nancial assets and substantially all the associated risks and reward of ownership to another entity. On derecognition
o�nancial assets measured at amortized cost, the di�erence between the assets carrying value and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognized in unconsolidated statement of pro�t or loss. In addition, on derecognition of an investment
in a debt instrument classi�ed as at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments revaluation
reserve is reclassi�ed to unconsolidated statement of pro�t or loss. In contrast, on derecognition of an investment in equity
instrument which the Company has elected on initial recognition to measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is not reclassi�ed to unconsolidated statement of pro�t or loss, but is
transferred to unconsolidated statement of changes in equity.

 ii)  Financial liabilities

The Company derecognizes �nancial liabilities only when its obligations under the �nancial liabilities are discharged, cancelled or
expired. The di�erence between the carrying amount of the �nancial liabilities derecognized and the consideration paid and
payable, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognized in unconsolidated statement of pro�t or loss
account. The Company's �nancial liabilities include long term �nances, trade and other payables, accrued mark-up and short term
borrowing.

The gross carrying amount of a �nancial asset is written o� when the Company has no reasonable expectation of recovering a
�nancial asset in entirety or a portion thereof.
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6 Property & Equipment

2025
Computers O�ce Equipment Furniture Vehicle Total

Cost
As at July 01, 2024 12,171,960       7,931,931                 9,615,755         -                    29,719,646      
Additions 8,610,000         14,188,500               10,719,560       91,807,836       125,325,896   
Disposals -                    -                           -                    -                    -                  
As at June 30, 2025 20,781,960       22,120,431               20,335,315       91,807,836       155,045,542   

Accumulated depreciation
As at July 01, 2024 2,402,444         687,450                    738,339            -                    3,828,233        
For the year 1,769,725         1,550,913                 1,759,634         2,967,743         8,048,015        
Adjustment -                    -                           -                    -                    -                  
As at June 30, 2025 4,172,168         2,238,363                 2,497,973         2,967,743         11,876,248      

Net book value as at June 30, 2025 16,609,792       19,882,067               17,837,342       88,840,093       143,169,293   
Depreciation rate % per annum 10.0% 10.0% 10.0% 10.0%

2024
Computers O�ce Equipment Furniture Vehicle Total

Cost
As at July 01, 2023 7,951,020         3,454,400                 2,900,225         -                    14,305,645      
Additions 4,220,940         4,477,531                 6,715,530         -                    15,414,001      
Disposals -                    -                           -                    -                    -                  
As at June 30, 2024 12,171,960       7,931,931                 9,615,755         -                    29,719,646      

Accumulated depreciation
As at July 01, 2023 1,488,681         215,904                    361,421            -                    2,066,006        
For the year 913,762            471,547                    376,918            -                    1,762,227        
Adjustment -                    -                           -                    -                    -                  
As at June 30, 2024 2,402,444         687,450                    738,339            -                    3,828,233        

Net book value as at June 30, 2024 9,769,516         7,244,480                 8,877,416         -                    25,891,413      
Depreciation rate % per annum 10.0% 10.0% 10.0% 10.0%
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Particulars

Rate
% age

Software 23,170,378   25,103,400    -              48,273,778    10 1,112,001    3,106,793       -                  4,218,794     44,054,984            
23,170,378   25,103,400    -              48,273,778 100,211,1        3,106,793       -                  4,218,794     44,054,984            

Particulars

Rate
% age

Software 4,570,378     18,600,000    -              23,170,378    10 260,607       851,394          -                  1,112,001     22,058,377            
4,570,378     18,600,000    -              23,170,378 706,062           851,394          -                  1,112,001     22,058,377            

R   u   p   e   e   s

 Adjustment 
 As at June 

30, 2024 
s   e   e   p   u   Rs   e   e   p   u   R

2024
noitazitromATSOC  Net book value 

as at June 30, 
2024 

 As at July 
01, 2023 

 Additions  Disposals 
 As at June 

30, 2024 
 As at July 

01, 2023 
 For the year 
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For the Year ended June 2025

2025
noitazitromATSOC  Net book value 

as at June 30, 
2025 

 As at July 
01, 2024 

 Additions  Disposals 
 As at June 

30, 2025 
 As at July 

01, 2024 
 For the year  Adjustment 

 As at June 
30, 2025 
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8 Investment held for trading

 2025
June 

2024
June

 2025
June 

2024
June

1.8serahS ni tnemtsevnI 391,238,773   58,217,271          421,083,823            70,653,024            

2.8sdnuF lautuM ni tnemtsevnI 382,844,139   -                       371,376,575            -                         

774,082,912   58,217,271          792,460,397            70,653,024            

8.1

8.2

8.3

9 Advances for Commodities
 2025
June 

2024
June

Advances for Commodities  ( Unsecured - Considered Good ) 218,179,017            241,982,657          

218,179,017            241,982,657          

9.1 The Group made Advances to the suppliers of Agri-Commodities to secure its supply as these Agri-commodities are seasonal commodities.

10 Stock in Trade
 2025
June 

2024
June

Inventory-Agri Biomass 378,336,417            -                         

378,336,417            -                         

10.1

11 Trade and Other Receivables
 2025
June 

2024
June

Trade Receivables ( Unsecured - Considered Good ) 11.1 469,642,896            157,503,596          

Less: Provision for doubtful debts 11.2 (2,745,063)               -                         

466,897,833            157,503,596          

11.1 As of June 30, 2025, the age analysis of trade debts is as follows:
 2025
June 

2024
June

Past due:

Up to 3 months 469,642,896            117,027,698          

3 to 6 months -                           40,375,898            

6 to 12 months -                           -                         

More than 12 months -                           -                         

469,642,896            157,503,596          

Fair ValueCost

ZAREA  LIMITED
NOTES TO THE GROUP CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year ended June 2025

These include investments in shares held under margin �nance open positions carried at a cost of Rs. 386,638,183 (2024: Nil) and a fair value of Rs. 
415,849,205 (2024: Nil), under 100% equity margin.

Investments are measured at fair value through pro�t or loss

This represents an investment of 20,169,805 units (2024: Nil units) in money market mutual funds, with a cost amounting to Rs. 382,844,139 (2024: Rs. 
Nil).

The Group purchased Agri-commodities of seasonal commodities like Wheat straw, Corncob, mustard Straw, corn, wheat grains at its Collection 
centers opened at various locations.
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NOTES TO THE GROUP CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year ended June 2025

11.2 Provision for Doubtful Debts
 2025
June 

2024
June

Opening balance -                           -                         

Charge for the year 2,745,063                -                         

Closing balance 2,745,063                -                         

12 Advances & Prepayments
 2025
June 

2024
June

Advances to employees ( Unsecured - Considered Good ) 20,180,120              14,964,620            

Advance held with brokerage house 10,184,406              

Advance Income tax 640,371                   -                         

Input Sales Tax 858,163                   -                         

Prepayments 8,098,946                400,000                  

39,962,006              14,964,620            

13 Cash and Bank Balances
 2025
June 

2024
June

Cash in hand 36,375,220              59,003,405            

Cash at bank 287,686,967            35,010,036            

324,062,187            94,013,441            

14 Share Capital
 2025
June 

2024
June

Authorized Share Capital

Authorized share capital 400,000,000            300,000,000          

400,000,000  (2024: 300,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs. 1 (2024: Rs 1 ) each fully paid in cash

Issued, subscribed and-paid up capital

Issued, subscribed and-paid up capital 262,500,000            200,000,000          

262,500,000 (2024: 200,000,000 ) ordinary shares of Rs. 1 ( 2024: Rs 1 ) each fully paid in cash

Share premium on issue of shares 14.1 967,050,250            -                         

Share Issuance Expense (51,024,298)             -                         

916,025,952            -                         

14.1

14.2

 2025
June 

2024
June

15 Loan from Sponsors / Shareholders

Loan from Sponsors / Shareholders -                           90,000,000            

Loan from Related Parties -                           90,000,000            

-                           180,000,000          

Right share issued -                           (180,000,000)         

-                           -                         

The Company has been listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange on February 28, 2025, and issued 62,500,000 shares to the general public at a premium 
of Rs. 967,050,250.

Premium received over and above face value of the shares issued to general public through IPO amounting to Rs. 967.050 million out of which Rs. 
51.024 million had been utilized under section 81 of the Companies Act, 2017 during the year ended June 30, 2025.
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NOTES TO THE GROUP CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year ended June 2025

16 Provision For Gratuity
 2025
June 

2024
June

   -                               -                              ecnalab gninepO

Charge for the year 16.1                  1,995,000                             -   

Closing balance                  1,995,000                             -   

16.1

17 Long Term Bank Finance

2025
June

2024
June

Loan from Bank Alfalah Limited - secured 41,374,108              -                         

Current portion of the bank loan - secured (13,641,555)             -                         

27,732,553              -                         

18 Deferred Tax Liability

Deferred Tax -                           -                         

18 Trade and Other Payables
2025
June

2024
June

Trade creditors 78,939,486              -                         
Accrued expenses 6,308,715                1,383,124              
Employees withholding tax payable 2,384,150                609,255                  
Finance cost payable 506,691                   -                         
Auditors remuneration 1,250,000                700,000                  
Other payable 113,220                   -                         

89,502,261              2,692,379              
19 Contingencies and Commitments

20 Impact of Restatement

30th June 2024

Particulars
Previously 

reported
Adjustment As Restated

646,308,13selbayaP rehtO & edarT           (29,211,267)             2,592,379              
753,446,793sevreseR 762,112,92                      426,855,624          

30th June 2023

Particulars
Previously 

reported
Adjustment As Restated

177,691,23selbayaP rehtO & edarT           (29,211,267)             2,985,504              

703,498,901sevreseR 762,112,92                      139,105,574          

The principal is payable in monthly installments, and taxes, repair, and insurance costs are to be borne by the Company. The present value of minimum
lease payments has been discounted using the implicit rate, i.e., 3-month KIBOR plus 3%, to be reviewed on a quarterly basis. The liabilities are secured
against personal guarantees of the directors and a promissory note.

There are no contingencies and commitment appearing at the date of statement of �nancial position of the Company.

The Company has introduced an unfunded gratuity scheme for its permanent employees for the �rst time. The liability has been recognized on the
basis of management’s estimate, calculated using the last month’s gross salary of all eligible employees as at the reporting date.

The loans provided by sponsors and shareholders were for business expansion. These were interest-free and repayable at the discretion of the Company.
During the last year, all loans from shareholders, sponsors, and related parties were converted into right shares. The Company issued right shares against
the loan amounts.

In prior years, tax liabilities amounting to Rs. 29,211,267 were being re�ected in the �nancial statements, without taking into account the adjustment in 
respect of advance tax. Accordingly, the amounts have now been appropriately adjusted in the �nancial statements.
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NOTES TO THE GROUP CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year ended June 2025

21 Revenue
2025
June

2024
June

Platform Usage Fee 21.1 387,352,574            281,060,855          
Sale of Agriculture Commodities 21.2 955,576,463            160,700,997          

1,342,929,037         441,761,852          

21.1

21.2

22 Cost of Sales
2025
June

2024
June

   -                               -                              kcotS gninepO

Purchases - Agriculture Commodities 1,269,836,273         131,017,772          

Add: Insurance Expense 48,037                     -                         

Add: Salaries Expense 3,511,667                -                         

Add: Amortization Expense 3,106,793                -                         

Less: Closing Stock (378,336,417)           -                         

898,166,352            131,017,772          

23 Administrative and General Expenses
2025
June

2024
June

1.42secnawollA dna stifeneB ,seiralaS                       22,154,736              15,793,238            

Director's Remuneration 4,250,000                -                         

Repair and Maintenance 934,140                   643,990                  

Legal and Professional Charges 5,186,844                386,900                  

Fee and Subscription 2,884,990                766,000                  

General O�ce Expenses 5,856,404                2,944,175              

Rent Expense 7,284,165                -                         

Vehicle Insurance 250,209                   -                         

Software maintenance Expenses 1,126,345                356,725                  

1.32noitanoD dna ytirahC                       2,558,000                535,400                  

Entertainment Expense 8,403,736                

2.32noitarenumer s'rotiduA                       1,637,250                700,000                  

2.11stbed luftbuod rof noisivorP                       2,745,063                

0.6sesnepxE  noitaicerpeD                         8,048,015                1,762,227              

Amortization Expenses -                           851,394                  

73,319,897              24,740,049            

23.1  Donation to following organization exceeds 10% of the company's total amount of donation or 1 million, whichever is higher.

1.1.32noitadnuoF MM - 2,558,000                464,000                  
-Zaman Foundation 51,400                     -                         
-Idara Fikr e Jadeed 20,000                     -                         

2,629,400                464,000                  

23.1.1

This is the platform usage fee charged by the company for allowing access to the application. The company charges a platform usage fee for each
transaction.

The sale of agriculture commodities is conducted through the e-commerce platform, with the selling price recognized as revenue. Excess of selling
price over cost of the commodities is gain of the Company instead of earning a platform usage fee, re�ecting the Company's direct involvement in its
procurement.

Ms. Misbah Momin, the Chairperson, serves as the President of the Board of Governance of MM Foundation, while Mr. Ali Alam Qamar, the Chief
Executive O�cer, is also a member of the Board of Governance of MM Foundation.
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NOTES TO THE GROUP CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year ended June 2025

23.2  Breakup of Auditor's Remuneration
 2025
June 

2024
June

Audit Fee 950,000                   700,000                  

Out of pocket expenses 101,000                   -                         

Other assurance engagements 486,250                   -                         

1,537,250                700,000                  

24 Selling and Distribution Expenses
 2025
June 

2024
June

1.42secnawollA dna stifeneB ,seiralaS 19,156,717              17,812,835            

Travelling and Conveyance 5,485,638                4,843,004              

Entertainment Expenses 6,812,271                243,964                  

Postage, Telephone and Telegram 740,106                   378,210                  

Advertisement & Marketing expenses 33,312,302              5,481,717              

Rent Expense 1,748,836                -                         

Miscellaneous Expense 8,057,962                -                         

75,313,832              28,759,730            

24.1 Salaries, Bene�ts and Allowances also include charge of Rs. 1,995,000/- (2024: Rs. Nil) in respect of gratuity.

25 Other Income
 2025
June 

2024
June

Unrealized Gain on short term investments 18,377,485              41,496,230            

Realized Gain / (loss) on short term investments 359,206,932            (6,974,809)             

Dividend income 545,603                   -                         

378,130,021            34,521,421            

26 Finance Cost
 2025
June 

2024
June

Long term �nancing 3,005,093                -                         

Bank Charges 303,819                   79,577                    

3,308,912                79,577                    

27 Income tax
 2025
June 

2024
June

Current Tax -                           -                         

Deferred Tax -                           (1,024,940)             

-                           (1,024,940)             

28.1

28 Financial Risk Management & Objectives

The Company is exposed to market risk (including return rate risk, currency risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s �nance and treasury
departments oversee the management of these risks. The Company’s �nancial risk–taking activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and �nancial risks
are identi�ed, measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s policies and risk appetite. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes and
assumptions during the year ended June 30, 2025. The policies for managing each of these risk are summarized below:

Zarea Limited is operating in Special Technology Zone, therefore income of company is exempt from Income Tax and minimum tax for ten years.

Reference: Clause (126EA) of Part I of The second schedule of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001: Pro�ts and gains derived by zone Enterprises as de�ned
in the Special Technology Zones AuthorityAct, 2021 (XVII of 2021) for a period of ten years from the date o�ssuance o�icense by the Special
Technology Zone Authority or up the30th day of June, 2035, whichever is earlier.

Annual 
Report 2024-25153



NOTES TO THE GROUP CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year ended June 2025

 2025
June 

2024
June

#

2,230,875                2,230,875              

218,179,017            241,982,657          

466,997,833            157,503,596          

39,962,006              15,364,620            

324,062,187            93,013,441            

371,376,575            -                          

421,083,823            70,653,024            

 2025
June 

2024
June

             466,997,833            157,503,596 

                              -                               -   

             466,997,833            157,503,596 

Financial institution Agency Short term Long term 

.oC gnitaR tiderC SIVdetimiL knaB nazeeM A1+  AAA 

.oC gnitaR tiderC SIVdetimiL natsikaP knaB cimalsI labuD A1+  AA 

 ARCAPdetimiL knaB lasyaF A1+  AA 

.oC gnitaR tiderC SIVdetimiL knaB detinU A1+  AAA 

 ARCAPdetimiL knaB BCM A1+  AAA 

 ARCAPdetimiL halaflA knaB A1+  AAA 

A default on a �nancial asset is when the counterparty fails to make contractual payments within360 days of when they fall due. Trade debts are generally due within 30 to
90 days.

Credit quality of �nancial assets

Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognized at the reporting date if counterparties fail to perform as contracted. The Company manages credit risk by
limiting signi�cant exposure to any individual customers by obtaining advance against sales. As of the reporting date, the Company is exposed to credit risk on the following
assets:

Other price risk is the risk that the fair value o�uture cash �ows of the �nancial instruments will �uctuate because of changes in market prices. As at the reporting date, the
Company is not exposed to signi�cant other price risk.

Market risk is the risk that the fair value o�uture cash �ows of a �nancial instrument will �uctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprise three types of
risk: return rate risk, currency risk and other price risk.

Return rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash �ows of the �nancial instruments will �uctuate because of changes in market return rates. As of the reporting
date the Company held long term loans amounting to PKR 41.37 million at �xed rates which are not materially exposed to signi�cant return rate risk.

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash �ows of a �nancial instrument will �uctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates and arises where
transactions are conducted in foreign currency. 

Cash and bank balances

Credit risk

Advances & Prepayments

Currency risk

Financial assets carried at:

Other price risk

Past due but not impaired 

Market Risk

Return and interest rate risk

Total

Long term Security Deposits

Trade and Other receivables

Fair value through pro�t or loss

Advances for Commodities

Short term investment – units of mutual funds

Short term investment – Investment in shares

The credit quality o�nancial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to external credit rating agencies or the historical information about
counter party default rates as shown below:

Trade debts

Neither past due nor impaired
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NOTES TO THE GROUP CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year ended June 2025

Short–term investments amounting to PKR 371.37 million (2024: Nil) are held in mutual funds rated not below AA.

Within one year 1-10 years Total
June 30, 2025

555,146,31gnicnanif mret gnoL           27,732,553              41,374,108            

162,205,98selbayaP rehtO dna edarT -                                     89,502,261            

June 30, 2024

-gnicnanif mret gnoL                        -                           -                          

973,296,2selbayaP rehtO dna edarT -                                       -                          

 2025
June 

2024
June

Long term �nancing                27,732,553                             -   

Current portion of the bank �nance                13,641,555                             -   

Total Debt                41,374,108                             -   

Equity              262,500,000            200,000,000 

Share premium              916,025,952                             -   

Reserves           1,097,756,153            426,780,624 

NCI                     199,536                   225,000 

          2,276,481,641            627,005,624 

Gearing ratio 1.79% 0.00%

Fair Values Of Financial Instruments

Fair value hierarchy

The table below analyses �nancial instruments carried at fair value by valuation method. The di�erent levels have been de�ned as follows:

- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1);

- Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly (level 2); and

- Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (level 3)

Fair value is the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
Investment in associates are carried using equity method. The carrying values of all other �nancial assets and liabilities re�ected in these consolidated �nancial statements
approximate their fair values.

Liquidity risk

The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maintain capital ratios, strong credit rating and optimal capital structures in order to ensure ample
availability o�nance for its existing and potential investment projects, to maximize shareholders’ value and reduce the cost of capital. The Company manages its capital
structure and makes adjustment to it, in light of changes in economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies and processes during the year ended
June 30, 2025.The gearing ratios as at June 30, 2025 and 2024 were as follows:

Capital Risk Management

Liquidity risk re�ects the Company’s inability in raising funds to meet commitments. Management closely monitors the Company’s liquidity and cash �ow position. This
includes maintenance o�iquidity ratios, debtors and creditors concentration both in terms of the overall funding mix and avoidance of undue reliance on large individual
customers.
The table below summarizes the maturity pro�le of the Company’s �nancial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments.

Annual 
Report 2024-25155



NOTES TO THE GROUP CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year ended June 2025

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial Assets

- Short term investments

As at June 30, 2025

Investment in Shares     421,083,823 421,083,823          

Investment in Mutual Funds          371,376,575 371,376,575          

As at June 30, 2024

Investment in Shares       70,653,024 70,653,024            

Investment in Mutual Funds                           -   -                         

There were no transfers amongst levels during the year.

29 Segment reporting
Platform usage 

fee
 Agri-commodities Total

--------------------------------------Rs.---------------------------------------
475,253,783euneveR         955,576,463            1,342,929,037       

)064,816,6(selaS fo tsoC            (891,547,892)           (898,166,352)         
411,437,083tiforp ssorG 175,820,46                      444,762,685          

)219,123,26(sesnepxE lareneG dna evitartsinimdA          (10,997,985)             (73,319,897)           
)757,610,46(sesnepxE noitubirtsiD dna gnilleS          (11,297,075)             (75,313,832)           
)675,218,2(stsoC ecnaniF )733,694(                             (3,308,912)             

968,285,152xat erofeb tiforP 571,732,14                      292,820,044          
Investments Gain/(Loss) 378,130,021          
Taxation -                         
Pro�t after tax 670,950,065          

488,847,561stessa tnemgeS         1,084,988,661         1,250,637,544       
247,368,63seitilibail tnemgeS           96,007,627              132,871,369          
214,036,131erutidnepxe latipaC 488,897,81                      150,429,296          

30 Shariah Compliance Disclosures
Conventional Shariah Compliant Total

Statement of �nancial position – Assets
Long term Security Deposits                           -                    2,230,875                2,230,875 
Short term Investment          532,278,699              260,181,698            792,460,397 
Cash and bank balances                           -                324,062,187            324,062,187 

Statement of �nancial position – Liabilities
Long term bank �nance            41,374,108                               -                41,374,108 
Accrued markup                 506,691                               -                     506,691 

Statement of Pro�t and Loss
Revenue                           -             1,342,929,037         1,342,929,037 
Gain /( Losses ) on short term investments            45,116,440              332,467,977            377,584,417 
Finance Costs-Long term �nancing              3,005,093                               -                  3,005,093 
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30.1 Illequid Assets 2025

Property and equipments            143,169,293 
Intangible Assets              44,054,984 
Advances for Commodities            218,179,017 
Stock in Trade            378,336,417 

           783,739,712 

31 Remuneration of Chief Executive, Executives and Directors

The aggregate amount charged in the accounts during the period for remuneration including bene�ts to Chief  Executive o�cer and Directors is as follows:

Executives
Executive 
Directors

Chief 
Executive

Executives
Executive 
Directors

Chief Executive

Managerial Remuneration                   21,998,347             1,165,000                      -                7,772,375                               -                               -   

                  21,998,347             1,165,000                      -                7,772,375                               -                               -   

Number(s)                                  25                           2                        1                          11                                2                               1 

31.1 Chief Executive Director did not withdraw any salary from the Company.

32 Transactions With Related Parties

Name of the related party Nature of Transactions
 2025
June 

2024
June

Ali Alam Qamar Loan from Sponsors -                           90,000,000            
Gold�nger Private Limited Loan from Sponsors -                           90,000,000            

-                           180,000,000          

33 Financial Instruments

 June
2025 

June
2024

 June
2025 

June
2024

Financial Assets

Trade and Other receivables     466,897,833          157,503,596              466,997,833            157,503,596 

Cash and bank balances     324,062,187            93,013,441              323,064,043              93,013,441 

    790,960,020          250,517,037              790,061,876            250,517,037 

Financial liabilities

Bank Finance       41,374,108                           -                  41,374,108                             -   

Trade and other payables       89,502,261            31,803,646                89,502,261              31,803,646 

      89,502,261            31,803,646                89,502,261              31,803,646 

Total

2025

Rupees

The related parties of the Company comprise of directors and key management personnel. Transactions with related parties include advance for working
capital requirements. These transactions are as follows:

 Amount in 
Rupees 

2024

Rupees

 ---------------------------------------- Rupees -----------------------------------------

Amortized Cost
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34 Earning per Share - Basic & Diluted

 2025
June 

2024
June

Pro�t after taxation              670,950,065            292,811,085 

Weighted average number of  ordinary shares              220,833,333              73,309,589 

Basic earning per share 3.04 3.99

35 Utilization of IPO Proceeds

Below is the summary of utilization of proceeds from IPO as at June 30, 2025

2025

IPO Proceeds

Receipt against issue of 62,500,000 ordinary shares 1,029,579,750       

Return on investment in mutual fund 35,414,758            

IPO related expenses (51,024,298)           

1,013,970,210       

Proceeds Utilization in

Working Capital (450,000,000)         

Logistics -                         

Technology (18,238,400)           

Marketing (27,455,010)           

O�ce and Vehicles (26,055,320)           

Human Resource (12,429,800)           

(534,178,530)         

086,197,974tnuomA ecnalaB           

36 Number Of Employees
 2025
June 

2024
June

Total number of employees 62 29

Average number of employees 47 33

37 Subsequent Events

There are no subsequent events as at year end.

38 Date of Authorization for issue

39 General

Figures have been rounded o� to the nearest rupee.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER DIRECTOR                                          CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

These �nancial statements were issued on  __________________________  by the board of directors of the Company.

 Amount in 
Rupees 

There is no dilutive e�ect on the basic earnings per share 
which is based on: 

September 26,2025
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Pattern of Shareholding

NO. OF 
SHAREHOLDERS From To SHARES HELD

HAVING SHARES

As On 30/06/2025

273 1

728 101

660 501

1311 1001

209 5001

77 10001

44 15001

45 20001

23 25001

14 30001

12 35001

23 40001

14 45001

9 50001

7 55001

4 60001

10 65001

8 70001

3 75001

2 80001

2 85001

3 90001

15 95001

1 100001

2 105001

1 110001

2 115001

1 120001

1 125001

3 130001

3 135001

100

500

1000

5000

10000

15000

20000

25000

30000

35000

40000

45000

50000

55000

60000

65000

70000

75000

80000

85000

90000

95000

100000

105000

110000

115000

120000

125000

130000

135000

140000

9722

329816

630980

3141644

1582661

974963

797417

1024328

640922

467251

453448

988365

684117

472107

415978

250129

677302

597481

227800

166510

173519

279125

1487952

100786

217407

110001

235834

123004

127558

399000

415120
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Pattern of Shareholding

NO. OF 
SHAREHOLDERS From To

HAVING SHARES

As On 30/06/2025

5 145001

1 150001

160001

165001

170001

190001

195001

200001

205001

210001

260001

295001

335001

345001

370001

395001

415001

420001

440001

455001

495001

570001

595001

620001

660001

745001

895001

930001

970001

980001

995001

150000

155000

165000

170000

175000

195000

200000

205000

210000

215000

265000

300000

340000

350000

375000

400000

420000

425000

445000

460000

500000

575000

600000

625000

665000

750000

900000

935000

975000

985000

1000000

SHARES HELD

746653

152400

325391

169500

172500

193000

800000

408260

210000

422302

262500

299600

337500

1050000

750000

800000

832500

425000

440218

456050

500000

574707

600000

622997

662750

750000

898429

932569

970283

981597

2000000

2

1

1

1

4

2

1

2

1

1

1

3

2

2

2

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

2
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Pattern of Shareholding

NO. OF 
SHAREHOLDERS From To SHARES HELD

HAVING SHARES

As On 30/06/2025

1015001 1020000 1019299

1120001 1125000 1125000

1190001 1195000 1194397

1

1

1

1 1215001 1220000 1220000

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1635001 1640000 1638000

2170001 2175000 2175000

2195001 2200000 2199569

3105001 3110000 3106284

3865001 3870000 3866250

3925001 3930000 3927128

5080001 5085000 5080124

89995001 90000000 90000000

108995001 109000000 108999996

Company Total 2625000003570
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Shareholding Categories 

 Directors, CEO, their Spouses and Minor Childern No. Of Shares held

As On 30/06/2025

108,999,996
90,000,000 

1,000,000
1
1
1
1

Mr. Ali Alam Qamar
Goldfinger (Private) Limited
Through Nominee director Nouman Ul Hassan
Mrs. Misbah Momin
Mr. Sohail Wajahat Siddiqui
Mr.Muhammad Afzal Chaudhry
Mr. Juneid Akram
Mrs. Meezan Fahd Mukhtar

Category of Shareholders
As On 30/06/2025

Particulrs No of Folio Balance Share

6 110,000,000SPONSORS, DIRECTORS, CEO AND CHILDREN

1 90,000,000ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

1 622,997BANKS, DFI AND NBFI

1 75,000INSURANCE COMPANIES

3151 31,444,631GENERAL PUBLIC (LOCAL)

379 11,478,407GENERAL PUBLIC (FOREIGN)

30 16,679,396OTHERS

1 2,199,569FOREIGN COMPANIES

Company Total 262,500,0003570
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

No e is hereby given that 5th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Shareholders of Zarea Limited (the 
“Company") will be held at Varioline, Le Grand Hall, Garrison Golf and Country Club, Lahore Can , Lahore on 
Monday, 27 tober 2025 at 09:00 a.m., to transa t the following business: 

 ORDINARY BUSINESS:  

1. To on rm the minutes of the Extra Ordinary General Mee ng held on 18-01-2025.  
2. To r eive, onsider and adopt the audited Separate and Consolidate nan l statements of the Company 

for the year ended June 30, 2025, together with Dir tors’, Auditors’ Report and Chairman’s Review thereon.  
3. To approve, as re ommended by the Board of Dir tors, the payment of nal Dividend @ Re. 1/- per share    
(100%) for the nan l year ended June 30, 2025. 
4. To appoint auditors and to x their remunera on for the year ending 30 June 2026.  
 

SPECIAL BUSINESS: 

Circulation of Annual Report through QR enabled code and weblink  
5.  To onsider and, if deemed  pass, with or without modi on(s), addi on(s) or dele on(s), the following 

resolu on, as  resolu ons, to enable and authorize the Company to r late the Annual Report 
(in uding the audited nan l statements, auditor's report, Dir tors' report, Chairman's review report) to 
the members of the Company through QR enabled ode and weblink, in ordan e with Se on 223(6) of 
the Companie , 2017 read with S.R.O. 389(I)/2023 dated Mar 21, 2023.  

 
"RESOLVED THAT Zarea Limited (the "Company") be and is hereby authorized to r late its annual 
report, in uding the annual audited nan l statements, auditor's report, Dire ors' report, Chairman's 
review report and other reports ontained therein, to the members of the Company through QR enabled 
ode and weblink, in allowed by ri es and Ex hange Commission of Pakistan vide its S.R.O. 

389(I)/2023 dated M h 21, 2023, and that the p  of ula on of the annual report through CD / 
USB be dis on nued.” 

 

 hed to this No e is a Statement of Material F  overing the above-m oned Sp l Business, as 
required under Se on 134 (3) of the Companies A t, 2017). 

ANYOTHER BUSINESS: 
 6. To tran  any other business with the permission of the Chair. 
          

By order of the Board  
         
          
         Company Secretary 
Lahore 
Dated: O tober 06, 2025 
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Notes:  
1. Closure of Share Transfer Books: 

The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from October 21, 2025 to October 27, 2025 
(both days inclusive). Transfers received in order at the office of Share Registrar M/s THK Associates (Pvt.) 
Ltd., Plot No. 32-C, Jami Commercial Street 2, D.H.A. Phase VII, Karachi by the closed of business on October 
20, 2025, will be considered in time for attending the Annual General Meeting and Entitlement.  A member 
entitled to attend and vote at this meeting may appoint any other member as his/her proxy to attend and 
vote on his/her behalf. The instrument appointing proxy must be received at Company’s Head Office Delta 
6, Office No.6011, NASTP, Abid Majeed Road, Lahore Cantt. Lahore duly stamped and signed not later than 
48 hours before the meeting. Proxy Form may also be downloaded from the Company’s website: ZAREA.PK  

       CDC Account Holders will further have to follow the under mentioned guidelines as laid down in Circular 
No.1 dated January 26, 2000 issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan. 

 
A. For Attending the Meeting: 

 
I. In case of individuals, the account holders or sub account holders and / or the person whose 

securities are in group account and their registration detail are uploaded as per the Regulations, 
shall authenticate his/her identity by showing his/her original Computerized National Identity 
Card (CNIC) or original passport at the time of attending the meeting. 

II. In case of corporate entity, the Board of Director’s resolution / power of attorney with the 
specimen signature of the nominee shall be produced (unless it has been provided earlier at the 
time of the meeting. 

 
B. For Appointing Proxies: 

I. In case of individuals, the holder or sub account holder and / or the person whose securities are 
in group account and their registration details are uploaded as per the Regulations, shall submit 
the proxy form as per the above requirement. 

II. The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC Numbers 
shall be mentioned on the form. 

III. Attested copies of CNIC or Passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished 
with the proxy form. 

IV. The proxy shall produce his / her original CNIC or original Passport at the time of the meeting. 
V. In case of corporate entity, the Board of Director’s resolution / power of attorney with specimen 

signature shall be submitted (unless it has been provided earlier) along with proxy form to the 
Company. 

2.   Video Conference Facility 
 Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2017, the shareholders residing in a city other than Lahore, 

and holding at least 10% of the total paid up share capital may demand the Company to provide the facility 
of video –link for participating in the meeting. The demand for video-link facility shall be received by the 
Share Registrar at the address given herein above at least 7 days prior to the date of the meeting. The 
Company will intimate members regarding venue of video conference facility at least 5 days before the date 
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of Annual General Meeting along with complete information necessary to enable them to access such 
facility. 
  
 I / we ___________________ of _____________________________ being member of Zarea Limited, 

holder of ____________ Ordinary shares as per Register Folio#/CDC Account # / participant ID # hereby 
opt for Video Conference facility at _____________________. 

 
3.     E-voting and Postal Ballot 
 The members of the Company are hereby notified that pursuant to Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations, 

2018 amended through Notification dated December 05, 2022, issued by the Securities and Exchange 
commission of Pakistan (“SECP”), Wherein, SECP has directed all the listed companies to provide the right 
to vote through electronic voting facility and voting by post to the members on all businesses classified as 
special business. 

  
 Accordingly, members of the Company will be allowed to exercise their right to vote through electronic 

voting facility and voting by post for the special business in its Annual General Meeting Schedule on October 
27, 2025 at 09:00 hours, in accordance with the requirements and subject to the conditions contained in 
the aforesaid Regulations, 

 
 For the convenience of the members, ballot paper is annexed to this notice and the same is also available 

on the Company’s website. 
 
 Procedure for E-Voting: 

a) Details of the e-voting facility will be shared through an e-mail with those members of the 
Company who have their valid CNIC numbers, cell numbers, and e-mail addresses available in 
the register of members of the Company by the close of business of 20-10-2025. 

b) The web address, login details, will be communicated to members via email. The security codes 
will be communicated to members through SMS from web portal of e-voting service provider. 

c) Identity of the members intending to cast vote through e-voting shall be authenticated through 
electronic signature or authentication for login. 

d) E-voting lines will start from 23-10-2025, 09:00 hours and shall close on 26-10-2025 at 05:00 
hours. Member can cast their votes any time in this period. Once the vote on a resolution is 
cast by a Member, he/she shall not be allowed to change it subsequently. 

 
 Procedure for Voting Through Postal Ballot: 

  
 The members shall ensure that duly filled and signed ballot paper along with copy of CNIC should reach the 
Chairman of the meeting through post on the Company’s registered address, at Head Office Delta 6, office 
No.6011, NASTP, Abid Majeed Road  Lahore Cantt one day before the Annual General Meeting on October 
27, 2025 during working hours. The signature on the ballot paper shall match with the signature on CNIC. 
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4. A. Payment of Cash Dividend Electronically (E-mandate) 
 In accordance with the provisions of Section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017 and Companies (Distribution 

of Dividend) Regulations, 2017, it is mandatory that dividend payable in cash shall only be paid through 
electronic mode directly into the bank account designated by the entitled shareholder. All shareholders are 
requested to provide details of their bank mandate specifying: (i) title of account, (ii) IBAN number (iii) bank 
name and (iv) branch name, code & address; to Company's Share Registrar. Shareholders who hold shares 
with Participants/Central Depository Company of Pakistan (CDC) are advised to provide the mandate to the 
concerned Broker/CDC. In absence of the complete bank details, including IBAN mentioned above the 
Company shall withhold the Dividend under the provision of Section 243 of the Companies Act, 2017. The 
“Electronic Dividend Mandate Form” in English and Urdu is available on the Company's website: 
(www.Zarea.pk). 

  
 B. Withholding Tax on Dividend  
 Currently, the deduction of withholding tax on the amount of dividend paid by the companies under Section 

150 read with division I of Part III of the First Schedule of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, are as under:  
I) For Persons appearing in Active Taxpayer List (ATL):  15% 
II) For Persons appearing in Active Taxpayer List (ATL):  30% 

 Shareholders who have filed their return are advised to make sure that their names are entered into latest 
Active Taxpayers List (ATL) provided on the website of FBR at the time of dividend payment, otherwise they 
shall be treated as persons not appearing in ATL and tax on their cash dividend will be deducted accordingly.  

 
C. Withholding Tax on Dividend in Case of Joint Account Holders 

 In order to enable the Company to follow the directives of the regulators to determine shareholding ratio 
of the Joint Account Holder(s) (where shareholding has not been determined by the Principal shareholder) 
for deduction of withholding tax on dividend of the Company, shareholders are requested to please furnish 
the shareholding ratio details of themselves as Principal shareholder and their Joint Holders, to the 
Company's Share Registrar, enabling the Company to compute withholding tax of each shareholder 
accordingly. The required information must reach the Company's Share Registrar by October 20, 2025, 
otherwise each shareholder will be assumed to have equal proportion of shares and the tax will be deducted 
accordingly. 

D. Deduction of Zakat 
Pursuant to the requirements of the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980, Zakat will be deducted at source 
from the dividend amount at the rate of 2.5% of the face value of shares as on the first day of Ramadan 
(subject to the sighting of the moon), only from the dividend payable to shareholders who are Muslim 
and have not submitted a Zakat Declaration Form (CZ-50) with the Company or their respective Central 
Depository Company (CDC) Participant/Investor Account Services. 
In case no CZ-50 Form has been submitted, it will be presumed that the shareholder is liable to pay zakat 
and zakat will accordingly be deducted. 
To claim exemption, shareholders are requested to ensure that their Zakat Declaration (CZ-50 Form) is 
duly submitted before the first day of Ramadan: 
Physical shareholders must send the duly attested CZ-50 Form to the Company's Share Registrar. 
 
CDC account holders must submit the form directly to their respective CDC Participant / CDC IAS account 
provider. 
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For further assistance, shareholders may contact the Share Registrar of the Company. 
 
 
5.   Change of Address 
 Members are requested to notify any change in their addresses immediately. Shareholders are requested 

to provide above mentioned information/documents to the respective Central Depository System (CDS) 
participants. 

6. The Annual Report is being transmitted to shareholders through Emails instead of sending these in Book 
form / hard copy. 

7.  In pursuance of directive issued by the Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan, no gifts will be 
distributed at the meeting 

 
8. The Annual Report for the Financial Year ended June 30, 2025 has been placed on Company’s website at 

"http://www.Zarea.pk". However, if any shareholder desire to get the hard copy of Annual Audited Financial 
Statements, the same shall be provided free of cost within seven working days of receipt of such request. 

 
STATEMENT OF MATERIAL FACTS UNDER SECTION 134 (3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017 

         
 
Agenda No.4 of Notice of AGM 
  
In view of technological advancements, and taking into account that old technology is becoming obsolete, the 
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan, vide its SRO.389(1)/2023 dated March 21, 2023 has allowed 
listed companies to circulate the annual report, including the annual audited financial statements, auditor's 
report, Directors' report, Chairman's review report and other reports contained therein, to their members 
through QR enabled code and web-link (instead of CD/DVD/USB), subject to approval of the shareholders in the 
general meeting. To comply with the requirement of said SRO shareholder’s approval is being sought.  
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ZAREA LIMITED 
 

Ballot paper for voting through post for Special Business at the Annual General Meeting to be held on (Monday) October 27, 2025 
at 9:00 hours at Varioline, Le Grand Hall, Garrison Golf and Country Club, Lahore Cantt, Lahore   

Designated email address of the Chairman at which the duly filled in ballot paper may be sent: cosecretary@Zarea.pk 

Name of shareholder/joint shareholders  

Registered Address  

Folio No./CDC Participant / Investor ID with sub-account No.  

Number of shares held  

CNIC, NICOP/Passport No. (in case of foreigner)(copy to be attached)  

Additional Information and enclosures 
(In case of representative of body corporate, corporation and Federal Government.) 

Name of Authorized Signatory:  

CNIC, NICOP/Passport No. (in case of foreigner)of Authorized Signatory (copy to be attached)  

I/we hereby exercise my/our vote in respect of the following resolutions through postal ballot by conveying my/our assent or dissent 
to the following resolution by placing tick (√) mark in the appropriate box below (delete as appropriate); 

“Special Resolutions” 
AGM Agenda Item No: 5 

5. To consider and, if deemed fit, pass, with or without modification(s), addition(s) or deletion(s), the following resolution, as special resolutions, to  
enable and authorize the Company to circulate the Annual Report (including the audited financial statements, auditor's report, Directors' report,  
Chairman's review report) to the members of the Company through QR enabled code and weblink, in accordance with Section 223(6) of the  
Companies Act, 2017 read with S.R.O. 389(I)/2023 dated March 21, 2023. 

 
"RESOLVED THAT Zarea Limited (the "Company") be and is hereby authorized to circulate its annual report, including the annual  audited financial 
statements, auditor's report, Directors' report, Chairman's review report and other reports contained therein, to the members  of  the  Company  
through QR enabled code and weblink, in allowed by Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan vide its S.R.O. 389(I)/2023 dated  
March 21, 2023, and that the practice of circulation of the annual report through CD / USB be discontinued.” 

 
Sr. 
No. 

Nature and Description of resolutions 

“Special Resolutions” 

I/We assent to the 
Resolutions 

(FOR) 

I/We dissent to the 
Resolutions 
(AGAINST) 

1. As per AGM Agenda item No.5 (as given above)   

 
 
 
 
 

Signature of shareholder/Proxy holder/Authorized Signatory 
(in case of corporate entity, please affix company stamp) 
Place: Date

NOTES: 
1. Dully filled postal ballot should be sent to chairman of Zarea Limited at Registered Office Delta 6 Office 

No.6011, NASTP , Abid Majeed Road Lahore Cantt  Or e-mail at cosecretary@Zarea.pk  
2. Copy of CNIC should be enclosed with the postal ballot form. 
3. Postal ballot forms should reach chairman of the meeting on or before 25-10-2025(last date of receiving postal 

ballot). Any postal ballot received after this date, will not be considered for voting. 
4. In case of a representative of a body corporate, corporation or Federal Government, the Ballot Paper form must 

be accompanied by a copy of the CNIC of an authorized person, an attested copy of Board Resolution / Power of 
Attorney / Authorization Letter etc., in accordance with Section(s) 138 or 139 of the Companies Act, 2017 as 
applicable. In the case of foreign body corporate etc., all documents must be attested by the Consul General of 
Pakistan having jurisdiction over the member. 

5. Signature on postal ballot should match with signature on CNIC. 
6. Incomplete, unsigned, incorrect, defaced, torn, mutilated, over written ballot paper will be rejected. 
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09:00 2025 27

 cosecretary@zarea.pk

    

   

  CDC  

 

 NICOP

 

 

 

 NICOP

 5  AGM.5

6 223 2017 2023 I S.R.O.389 2023 21 5

QR  

 2023 21 QR

CD/USB S.R.O389(i) 2023 

|

        |       

        

5  AGM

           

1

___________________ / /

  

___________________   ___________________

cosecretary@zarea.pk 6 NASTP 6011

    

1

   2

25-10-2025 3. 

    

3

139 138 2017 4. 

    

4

  5

    6
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50 CZ 50 CZ

IAS

5

CDS

6

7

' www.Zarea.pk 2025 30 8

7

2017  3 134

5

21 2023 1 389

2023

** **QR
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SMS  (b) 

 (c)

05 00 26-10-2025 09 00 23-10-2025  (d)

Postal Ballot

6011 6 CNIC

CNIC 2025 26 ** NASTP

Mandate E Dividend 4

2017 242 2017

iv iii IBAN ii Title of Account i

CDC

243 2017 IBAN

www.zarea.pk ) '' ''

I III 150 2001

15% ATL **   I)    

30% ATL **   II)   

30% ATL

2025 20

2.5% 1980

50 CZ 50 CZ
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48 NASTP 6011 6

ZAREA.PK

2000 26 1

  

CNIC

  

Proxy

 

CNIC   

Bene�cial Owner  

 IV)

  V)

10% 2017

7

** 5

AGM

_____________________________ ____________________

____________ ____________

Postal Ballot 3. 

SECP 2022 5 2018 Postal Ballot

Voting E * Special Business

09 00 2025 27

20-10-2025 CNIC (a)
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09 00 2025 27 AGM

18-01-2025 Extra Ordinary General Meeting 1    

2025 30 2

Final Dividend 100% 1 2025 30   3

2026 30  4

QR

5   

QR

2 0 2 3 2 1 2 0 2 3 I 3 8 9 6 2 2 3 2 0 1 7

'' ''

QR

2023 21 2023 I 389

3 134 2017

   6   

2025 06 

1

2025 20 2025 27 2025 21

VII 2 32

Entitlement
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


 Code of Corporate Governance 



 2025  30 






 

 
 
 
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

 1

 2

 3

 2  4  4 

                        

2 N/A 4       

N/A N/A 4       

2 N/A 4        

N/A 4 4      

N/A 4 4      
2 N/A 4     

N/A 3 4     

2 4 4     


 CCG  2017 




 2017 


 s length basis arm 




 2025  30 
 2024 
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 B2B   






    


  
  







  



















 1

 2

 3
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ESG 


 ESG  SECP




 

 



 



 









   ESG 









 2026  30 





  


  


  
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





 2019 
 


















CSR 






 Sustainable Development Goals 
 HSE 



 




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 — 


 — 





  





      B2B



   







 B2B 

   



























 IFRS 



 




 





 


 


 
 2017 



 



 Code of Conduct 
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   


 10 


  



  









 
   B2B 




 






 



  









 




  




   
 

 




 
 



 
 

   ESG 


     
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Consolidated

Particulars 2025 2024 CAGR (5 Years)

Revenue

Operating Profit 

Profit After Taxation 

Earnings Per Share (PKR) 

1,342,929,037 

296,128,957

670,950,065 

3.04

441,761,852

257,244,301 

292,711,085

3.99

226.95% 

153.76%

239.78%

Total consolidated assets
(PKR) CAGR 142.42%

Consolidated Operating profit 
(PKR) CAGR 153.78% 

Consolidated Revenue
(PKR) CAGR 226.95%

11.80

2025

2024

2023

2021

2022

296,228,956

257244301
111361509

1,342,929,037

 441,761,852

 159,066,227

 116,403,660

11,752,862

2025

2024

2023

2021

2022

296,228,956

257244301
111361509

296,128,957

257,244,301

111,361,509

76,475,203

 7,141,272

2025

2024

2023

2021

2022

296,228,956

257244301
111361509

2,409,353,010

 629,698,003

 246,616,018

 132,185,709

69,770,558

2025

2024

2023

2021

2022

296,228,956

257244301
111361509

670,950,065

  292,711,085

 81,252,073

  23,608,201

5,034,033

Consolidated PAT
(PKR) CAGR 239.79%





  


  




   B2B 










 



 
  

 

 B2B    









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
 B2B  B2B 




  B2B 

 PUF 
 

 


 ESG 




  

  


 
  




 


















 1,342.93  2025  30 
 204% 

 3.04EPS  129% 


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
 2025  30 


 6  6011  2017  202016 
 IPO  2025  28  2024  15 

  PSX 

 
 3.56%  2.7% 

 11%  22%  2.38%
 SBP 



30.7%  13.5% 
1.42%  3.03%  4.78%  4.72%  19%  15.4% 8.9% 

 23.5% 

 2025  
  

 252024 
 




 PSDP  

 B2B
 

 


  

 13 
 B2B 







 


 

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Glossary
AGM
Annual General Meeting

AI
Artificial Intelligence

AVPN
Asian Venture
Philanthropy Network

B2B
Business to Business

CA
Current Assets

CAGR
Compound Annual 
Growth Rate

NCI
Non-Controlling Interest

CEO
Chief Executive Officer

NCSW
National Commission on 
the Status of Women

CMO
Chief Marketing Officer

PACCS
Pakistan Automated Customs 
Clearance System

CO2
Carbon Dioxide

CSR
Corporate Social Responsibility

CFO
Chief Financial Officer

CL
Current Liabilities

CTO
Chief Technology Officer

ECL
Expected Credit Loss

EO
Entrepreneurs' Organization

ESG
Environmental, Social &
Governance

FBR
Federal Board of Revenue

FVOCI
Fair Value Through Other 
Comprehensive Income

FVTPL
Fair Value Through 
Profit or Loss

FX
Foreign Exchange

FZCO
Free Zone Company

GDP
Gross Domestic Product

GM
General Manager

HR
Human Resources

HR & R
Human Resource and 
Remuneration

HRM
Human Resource 
Management

IAS
International Accounting 
Standards

IASB
International Accounting 
Standards Board

IFRIC
International Financial 
Reporting Interpretations 
Committee

IFRS
International Financial 
Reporting Standards
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KYC
Know Your Customer

LCCI
Lahore Chamber of 
Commerce & Industry

ML
Machine Learning

MMF
Misbah Momin Foundation

NCA
Non-Current assets

NCI
Non-Controlling Interest

NCL
Non-Current Liabilities

PACRA
Pakistan Credit Rating 
Agency

NCSW
National Commission on 
the Status of Women

PAT
Profit After Tax

PESTLE
Political, Economic, 
Social, Technological, 
Legal, & Environmental

PKR
Pakistani Rupee

PM
Prime Minister

PSX
Pakistan Stock Exchange

PUF
Platform Usage Fees

PPC
Pay-Per-Click

Rs
Rupees

SBP
State Bank of Pakistan

SDG
Sustainable 
Development Goal

SECP
Securities & Exchange 
Commission of Pakistan

SEO
Search Engine 
Optimization

SPPI
Solely Payments of 
Principal and Interest

SRO
Statutory Regulatory 
Order

STARR
Standardized Trust 
Account Reconciliation 
Report

UAE
United Arab Emirates

UN
United Nations

USD
United States Dollar

VIS
VIS Credit Rating 
Company Limited

YPO
Young Presidents’ Organization

ZL
Zarea Limited

IPO
Initial Public Offering

KPK
Khyber Pakhtunkhwa
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



 . 

 0900  2025  27 
 /  / 









 6  NASTP6011 

 48  54600 
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براہ کرم 10/- روپے
ریونیو سٹیمپ لگائیں۔ 



Proxy Form  
IMPORTANT 
Instruments Of Proxy Will Not Be Considered As Valid Unless Deposited Or Received 
At The Company’s Registered Office At Delta 6 Office NO.6011,NASTP , Abid Majeed 
Road Lahore   Lahore  Not Later Than 48 Hours Before The Time Of Holding 

 

I/We………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………
………………………………………………... being a member of Zarea Limited and holder of 
…………… Share do hereby authorize ……………….. of and on my / our behalf at the 
5th  Annual General M n Monday  27th October 
2025 at 9:00:0 hours of adjournment thereof. 

 

Signature 

 

 

Witnesses: 

 

1.Singature: …………………..                                2 .Singature: ……………………………… 

Name: …………………………          Name: …………………………… 

Address: ……………………..                  Address: ………………………… 

CNIC or Passport ………………                             CNIC or Passport ……………… 

 

 

 

 

Please affix 
Rupees 10/- 
Revenue stamp 
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AFFIX
CORRECT
POSTAGE

The Company Secretary
Zarea Limited, Delta 6 Office No. 
6011, NASTP, Abid Majeed Road 
Lahore Cantt.
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AFFIX
CORRECT
POSTAGE

The Company Secretary
Zarea Limited, Delta 6 Office No. 
6011, NASTP, Abid Majeed Road 
Lahore Cantt.

Annual 
Report 2024-25190





+92 42 32176455

info@zarea.pk

www.zarea.pk

Zarea Limited, Delta 6 O�ce No. 
6011, NASTP, Abid Majeed Road 
Lahore Cantt.


